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To Build a
Environment, Resources, Energy, Climate

Four-in-One Carbon Neutral Comprehensive Service Provider

hina Everbright Greentech Limited (“Everbright Greentech”

or the “Company” or together with its subsidiaries, the

“Group”) is a professional environmental protection service
provider in China, with its businesses focusing on integrated biomass
utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment, environmental
remediation, solar energy and wind power, it listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 8 May 2017 (Stock Code: 1257). Upholding its philosophy of
leading the way through business innovations, Everbright Greentech
took a pioneer role to introduce integrated urban and rural waste
treatment project in Mainland China. Currently, the Company has
its business coverage spanning across 15 provinces, autonomous
region and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (‘Hong Kong”)
in China, and spreads far to Germany.

With strong support from China Everbright Group Limited
(“China Everbright Group”) and the controlling shareholder,
China Everbright Environment Group Limited (“CEEGL”), and
leveraging on its own extensive experience in the development and
operation of diversified project portfolio as well as its unparalleled
market expansion capability, the Group will continue to follow the
instruction to be “Prudent, Proactive and Practical”, bearing in
mind its initial commitment and mission as it strives incessantly to
become a leader in China’s environmental business sector.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

RESULTS
Revenue
EBITDA®M

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company
Return on shareholders’ equity (%)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Net asset value per share
attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company (HK$)

Cash and bank balances

Gearing ratio® (%)

Current ratio (%)

2022
—E_-_F
HK$°000
M T T
E4
& 8,048,171
BRAE - BIE - &
R AT RFO 2,175,944
AN ) 2 AR R E A & A
340,201
f% B & & 5] 3R (%) 2.60
BRERAF (EIL) 16.47
B AR R
BEHRTE 39,156,376
BERRE 25,622,091
PIN/NSIE i Sl e
12,384,795
RAE = IR R (L TR
BEFEEEIT)
5.99
& RIRITHER 2,003,293
BEBBELEO (%) 65.44
R ED L 3R (%) 137.31

2021

HK$'000
BT

8,446,999

2,837,942

1,110,385
8.40
53.74

40,539,581
26,394,214

13,761,195

6.66
2,644,110
65.11
137.50

Percentage
Change
Bt

5%

—23%

—69%
—5.80 ppt
—69%

-3%
-3%

-10%

-10%
—24%
0.33 ppt
—0.19 ppt

EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation,

EBITDABN AR FERF S « HIE - IwERBHEATAF -
EEARBRHERRIZAERERUNEELSETE -

Q)
2) Gearing ratio is calculated by total liabilities over total assets.
Q)
@)

depreciation and amortisation.
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Corporate Milestones

TRAREHME

January 2022

Signed for the Everbright Centre Rooftop Solar Energy
Project in Wanchai, Hong Kong; as well as Feng
County Urban Investment Rooftop Solar Energy
Project, Feng County Agricultural and Water Works
Building Rooftop Solar Energy Project and Feng
County Runcheng Food Centre Rooftop Solar Energy
Project, being 3 subsidiary projects under the County-
wide Solar Energy Advancement Project in Feng
County, Jiangsu Province

February 2022

Ongoing progress in the landfill remediation business,
signed for the Urban Household Waste Landfill
Concealment Service Project in Xinghua City, Jiangsu
Province and Household Waste Landfill Ecological
Remediation Project in Feng County, Jiangsu Province

March 2022

Signed for Huaiyuan Integrated Biomass and Waste-
to-energy Project Il (Waste-to-energy) in Anhui
Province

Huai’an Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-energy
Project Il (Waste-to-energy) in Jiangsu Province was
commenced construction

April 2022

Signed for Guanyun Economic Development Zone
Rooftop Solar Energy Project in Jiangsu Province

May 2022

Successful issuance of the first tranche of perpetual
medium-term notes in 2022, being the first green and
rural vitalization perpetual medium-term notes of China
issued by an offshore issuer

Received “ESG Report of the Year Awards — Main
Board — Small Market Capitalisation”, “Best in ESG
Awards — Main Board — Small Market
Capitalisation” and “Best in Reporting Awards — Main
Board — Small Market Capitalisation” in the BDO
ESG Awards 2022 organised by BDO Limited

June 2022

Garnered the 2020/2021
Zhoukan

ESG Award of Yazhou

2022%1 A
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August 2022

Received the “EcoChallenger” certificate and “3 Years +
EcoPioneer” logo in the “BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards 2021” jointly
organised by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
and Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The first general industrial solid waste disposal project
located in Sugian passed the “72+24-hour” test run
and entered the phase of commercial operation

September 2022

Entered into a cooperation agreement with Alibaba
Cloud Computing Co. Ltd. for the mutual promotion of
cooperation in new energy development and
operation, integrated energy management and digital
transformation

October 2022

Signed the heat supply supplementary agreement of
Huai’an Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-energy
Project in Hubei Province for an additional heat supply
capacity of 166,400 tonnes per year

Signed for the first contract for the dig-up and
screening of decayed garbage — land remediation
and disposal service project at the northern block of
Beifugang, Fenhu Gaoxin Area (Lili Town), Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province

November 2022

Secured a soil remediation project in the southern
section of Qibu Zone, Western Sub-district, Daxing
New Town, Beijing to expand our environmental
remediation business to Beijing for the first time

Rooftop Solar Energy Project at CNAC Tower, Hong
Kong was completed and commenced operation

December 2022

Entered into “Low-carbon City” and “Zero-carbon
Industry Park” framework cooperation agreements with
Huaiyin District and Lianshui County in Huaian City,
Jiangsu Province to establish our presence in the
smart energy sector

Received “Corporate Governance Special Mention”
under the H-share Companies and Other Mainland
Enterprises Category in the Best Corporate
Governance and ESG Awards 2022 presented by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

REINFORCING PRINCIPAL
BUSINESSES AND DRIVING
TRANSFORMATION

Unwavering adherence to
the path of high-quality development

BEXE  tER
BRETBESEEER 2K

-

In 2022, the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of China (“20th National Congress”)
was held, elucidating the significance of the ecological civilisation to the building of a modernised
China and the mission of achieving this civilisation as a national strategy for the first time and calling
for coordinated promotion of the goals of carbon reduction, pollution reduction, green enlargement,
growth, ecological priority, economical and intensive operation and low-carbon green development. As
an important pillar in the building of ecological civilisation, the environmental protection industry has
been playing an active and important role in the nation’s battle to protect the sky, waters and land
from pollution in recent years. Following the gradual implementation of various strategic arrangements
for the building of the ecological civilisation set out at the 20th National Congress, the environmental
protection industry would be obliged to step up with its role to serve qualitative economic
development and measures to facilitate coordinated efficiency enhancement in pollution and carbon
reduction, making intensive efforts to identify the sector’s intrinsic potential and extend its scope of
business and thereby continuing to embrace new opportunities for development.

RO _FRRAEES - TREERRAG (TR ER - aRUERESERRE T LRXAHTEE
FRAERCERNEEBENEABER - R IHREHEER RS - &A% 18K AREREL SR
HREERERNER BRREXFAEEXARRNERIHES  IFREBREETHER  B/K -
FTREBRIET  BETREBRERER -BE_TALERNAERERBBLHELSZE BT Eifid
REREESEER RS BEIEREE  EXNAEEBNUBIRRALZRE  EXSBRELEEE
TETER - BN B RIS



Dear Shareholders:

Overcoming hurdles to forge ahead amidst the accelerated
and drastic changes unseen in centuries. Year 2022 has been
marked by profound and complicated evolution in the international
landscape, escalating geopolitical conflicts, recurring outbreaks of
the unprecedented pandemic, frequent occurrence of massive
climate disasters, and unexpected factors dealing a blow to the
course of global economic recovery, resulting in significant and
far-reaching impact on all nations. Against turbulent developments
on the international front and enormously difficult tasks in reform
and development at home, the Chinese economy has
nevertheless withstood the downside pressure and accelerated
green transformation in the mode of development, reporting steady
improvement in the quality of development and showcasing immense
resilience. To seize opportunities arising from the national policies
while addressing enormous challenges presented by the external
conditions during this period that marked a new turn in history,
Everbright Greentech explored its intrinsic potentials against all odds
in adherence to the corporate vision of “Create Better Investment
Value and Undertake More Social Responsibility” and stayed
focused on quality and efficiency enhancement in its principal
operations while extending its business outreach in prudent steps

to overcome various adverse factors.

Innovation-driven transformation safeguarding development.
In 2022, the Company was focused on efforts to optimise and
enhance its operational and management regime, as it continued
to advance benchmarking management and enhance
standardisation of project operation. The foundation of its
principal businesses was fortified as the integrated biomass
utilisation business reported year-on-year growth in on-grid
electricity supply, heat supply and revenue following initiatives to
increase the proportion of yellow-straw fuel and local fuel, while
the hazardous and solid waste treatment business snatched up
market shares amidst ferocious competition with year-on-year
improvements in capacity utilisation ratio. To expedite
development in transformation, the Company actively explored
multi-dimensional market segments relating to environment,
resource and energy, including distributed solar energy, user
carbon

energy storage, energy consumption monitoring,

reduction, virtual power plant and digital cloud platform

construction, and landfill remediation, among others, seeking to
plan and deploy ahead in order to stock up driving force for a
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Chairman's Statement £E#H&

new stage of growth. The innovation-driven approach has
remained important for the Group as part of its effort to serve the
operating strategy of “Reinforcing Principal Businesses and Driving
As at 31

the Group held 228 authorised patents,

Transformation” through technological innovation.
2022,

including 32 invention patents, 191 utility model patents and 5

December

software copyrights. During the year under review, the Company
continued to broaden its financing channels with the successful
issuance of the 2022 first tranche of perpetual medium-term
notes in a bid to safeguard corporate development with solid
financial conditions.

Deep engagement in the green business forging a reliable
brand. In persistent adherence to the corporate mission of being
“Devoted to Ecology and Environment for a Beautiful China”, the
Group is committed to driving progress in social as well as
economic efficiency, upholding the principles of environmental
protection and social responsibility through vigorous promotion of
energy conservation and pollution reduction to achieve
synchronous improvements in social, economic and environmental
benefits. During the year under review, the Group supplied
approximately 6,264,398 kWh of green electricity, equivalent to
the saving of 2,505,759 tonnes of standard coal and reduction of
3,050,914 tonnes of carbon dioxide (CO,) emission. The
Company’s outstanding performance in sustainability, corporate
governance and social responsibility has been highly recognised
and commended by the community, as evidenced by honours
such as the 2020/2021 ESG Award presented by Yazhou
Zhoukan, ESG Awards by BDO Limited (“BDO”), Best Corporate
Governance and ESG Awards 2022 by The Hong Kong Institute
(“HKICPA”), and “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2021” jointly by the

of Certified Public Accountants

Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank of China (Hong
Kong). Under the principle of “Reinforcing Principal Businesses
and Driving Transformation”, Everbright Greentech is set to
continue to deliver long-term value to investors and stakeholders

through high-standard corporate governance.

2 AEBE AR ERHEESDE - AEH
RIS ERBIFSIE - BUOIRRBEM A RSN
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Following the
Sustainable economic and social
achieved through the co-existence of humanity and nature in

laws of nature to guide one’s actions.
development can only be

harmony. As a crucial component of the path of sustainability that
its people, the
environmental protection industry will remain high on the agenda

concerns the well-being of the nation and

of the community in the long run against the backdrop of
qualitative economic development and realignment of industry mix.
As an environmental protection enterprise, the Group will
strengthen and improve its existing businesses in active response
to the national strategy pertaining to ecological

enhancing the standard of management delicacy, intelligentisation

civilisation,

and efficiency to bolster the market competitiveness of its

business. To unleash the power of development in
transformation, the Group will extend the outreach of its existing
business based on its actual conditions with a primary focus on
Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality (“Dual Carbon”), while forging
strengths in technological innovation to develop new frontiers

targeting specifically at digitalisation.

Underneath the raging sandstorm, there lies the mine of
gold for the persistent miner. | wish to thank all shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”), investors and members of
the public for their support and concern for the Company. In
future, we will continue to persist in delivering value and make
greater contributions to the thriving development of China’s
ecological civilisation and environmental protection business in
vigorous fulfilment of corporate social responsibility.

HUANG HAIQING

Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2022, there was a notable slowdown in global economic
recovery under the persistent influence by the drastic change in
the international geopolitical landscape and the high pressure of
inflation. In China, contributions to economic growth from
investments and consumer spending were diminishing owing to
recurring COVID-19 pandemic, and the Chinese economy was
Facing with the

complicated and austere conditions both at home and abroad as

subject to enormous downside pressure.

well as the impact of a series of unanticipated factors, the
Chinese government implemented economic stabilisation
measures and enhanced green transformation of the economy
and the society with the aim of achieving high quality and
sustainable development. As such, the development of an
ecological civilisation has become increasingly important in

national planning and people’s livelihood.

During the year under review, the strategic arrangement for
building of a modern nation was affirmed at the 20th National
Congress. In respect of the ecological environment, the mission of
coordinated realignment of industry mix, pollution treatment,
ecological addressing climate change and
development of low-carbon green industry was set out. Focused

protection,

on the environmental industry, the industry policy continued to
advance the progress from quantitative to qualitative change in
terms of environmental improvement in 2022, as environmental
regulation became more stringent following the announcement
and implementation of energy conservation and carbon reduction
plans for as many as 17 sectors under the “14th Five-Year Plan”.
The environmental protection market was affected by the
pandemic with upstream enterprises operating under capacity,
and the direction for traditional market development has shifted
from “increasing in numbers” to “enhancing existing businesses.”
Directed by the Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality (“Dual
Carbon”) strategy, new growth drivers have been unleashed at a
faster pace. In connection with technology, with the gradual
escalation of environmental standards and formation of a new
market pattern, quality and efficiency enhancement for projects in
operation has been advanced through technological innovation, as
the research and investigation of sub-segment and low-carbon
technologies has become the latest area of interest for the
industry.
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In 2022, the Group persisted in the corporate vision to “Create
Better
Responsibility”,

Investment Value and Undertake More Social
initiating reforms with vigorous proactive efforts to
fight against difficulties as it enhanced the quality of project
operation through management initiatives and broaden financing
channels through innovative financing options. The Group was
engaged in close tracking and research of the technologies and
market developments in new sectors, stabilising the operation of
its principal businesses while exploring pathways for business
transformation as it ensured the stable and orderly operation of all
production activities in a strong effort to overcome the adverse
business conditions on the

impact of changes in external

Company’s business.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of integrated
biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment,
environmental remediation, solar energy and wind power. As of 31
December 2022, the Group had 139 environmental protection
projects with a total investment of approximately RMB32.828
billion and had undertaken 50 environmental remediation projects

with a total contract amount of approximately RMB1.409 billion.

In terms of market development, during the year under review,

the Group secured 12 new projects and entered into 1
supplementary agreement for biomass heat supply,
committed additional investment to 1 project

additional total investment of approximately RMB350 million and

and
involving an

environmental remediation projects with a total contract amount of
approximately RMB244 million. Such new projects included 1
hazardous and solid
energy projects and 8
environmental remediation projects. In terms of project scale, our

integrated biomass utilisation project, 1
waste treatment project, 2 solar
capacity for power generation was increased by 15.704 MW,
daily household waste processing designed capacity was
increased by 400 tonnes, while our designed capacity for steam
supply and hazardous and solid waste treatment were increased
by approximately 166,400 tonnes and 1,500 tonnes per annum,
respectively.
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During the year under review, the Group was engaged in full-gear
efforts towards business transformation. To seize the development
opportunities presented by the nation’s Dual Carbon strategy, the
Group entered into a cooperation agreement with Alibaba Cloud
Computing Co. Ltd. (“Ali Cloud”) for the mutual promotion of
cooperation in areas such as new energy development and
operation, integrated energy management and digital
transformation, with the aim of assuming a commanding position
in the technology for the digitalised new energy sector. On the
back of the sound investment, construction and operation of its
existing projects, the Group entered into “Low-carbon City” and
“Zero-carbon Industry Park” cooperation agreements with Lianshui
County and Huaiyin District in Huaian City, Jiangsu Province
during the year under review to establish our presence in the
smart energy market. In environmental remediation, the Company
has also secured its first contract for the dig-up and screening of
decayed garbage as well as taken up its first environmental
in an initial indication of the

remediation project in Beijing

outcome of its business transformation.

In terms of project construction, the Group continued to advance
its project work construction in a steady manner. During the year
under review, 16 new projects started implementation or
construction while 14 projects had completed construction and
commenced operation. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
25 projects under construction or implementation, including 2
integrated biomass utilisation projects, 6 hazardous and solid
waste treatment projects, 15 environmental remediation projects
and 3 solar energy projects. With a strong emphasis on
construction safety, construction quality and work scheduling for
projects under construction, the Group has enhanced safety
management standard at project sites through ongoing
optimisation of its construction management system and

framework.
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In terms of technology research and development, the Group’s
technology research has been conducted to support the
operating strategy of “Reinforcing Principal Businesses and Driving
Transformation”. During the year under review, the Group’s
technology research focused on biomass ash recycling, reduction
of emission of biomass flue particles and sulphur dioxide and
lowering of the concentration of soluble salt in landfills, with a
view to enhancing the quality and efficiency of projects in
operation. Moreover, the Group has commenced research in a
number of new frontiers, such as lithium-ion power battery
recycling, perovskite solar technology, carbon capture and solid
fuel battery (SOFC+SOEC), mobile power storage, spot trade in
the power market, virtual power plant and Energy Internet, to
provide technical support for business transformation. As of 31
December 2022, the Group held 228 authorised patents,
including 32 invention patents, 191 utility model patents, and 5
software copyrights.

In terms of operational management, the Group is committed to
the development and ongoing improvement of its production and
operation management regime. During the year under review, the
Group completed the formulation of the Integrated Biomass
Utilisation and Hazardous and Solid Waste Disposal Operational
and Management Standards (the “Operational Standards”) and
conducted two rounds of benchmarking inspection on the
projects according to the Operational Standards to give a full
assessment of the projects’ potential in quality and efficiency
enhancement and implement improvement measures accordingly.
In 2022, the Group continued to promote its experience in self-
operated fuel intake and storage for integrated biomass utilisation
projects, as substantial enhancement in the volume and quality of
fuel storage compared to the previous year was reported. During
the year under review, the Group continued to deepen the
implementation of its environmental, safety, health and social
responsibility (“ESHS”) management system with ongoing progress
in the standardisation of safe production and the building of the
dual prevention regime. Safe production and compliant emissions
at projects have been ensured through safety and health
education and training and more rigorous supervision and
inspection of safety and environmental indicators of projects.
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In terms of risk management, the Group has normalised its risk
identification and inspection work and endeavoured to improve its
risk management regime. During the year under review, the Group
formulated “Greentech Risk Appetite 2022” and “Greentech Risks
Subject to Key Control 2022” while making amendments to the
“Risk Factors Checklist”.
social

Risks factor of the Group relating to

environmental, and governance (“ESG”) matters were
identified and analysed with a view to providing guidance for the
Company’s operational compliance. During the year under review,
the Group established standards for risk rating and audit outcome
assessment to facilitate compliance management over the
operating activities of the projects. Effective control has been
exercised over significant risks and prominent effect in risk control

has been noted.

In 2022, the Group continued to fulfill its social responsibility and
enhance corporate governance as an established environmental
business, as it obtained numerous awards and honours on the
back of its effort to enhance sustainable development. During the
the Group garnered the 2020/2021 ESG
Award of Yazhou Zhoukan, received all 3 awards of “ESG Report
Awards — Main Board — Small Market
“Best in ESG Awards — Main Board — Small
Market Capitalisation” and “Best in Reporting Awards — Main
in the BDO ESG Awards
“Corporate Governance Special

year under review,

of the Year
Capitalisation”,

Board — Small Market Capitalisation”
2022 organised by BDO;
Mention” under the H-share Companies and other Mainland
Enterprises category in the Best Corporate Governance and ESG
Awards 2022 presented by the HKICPA,
certificate and “3 Years + EcoPioneer” logo in the “BOCHK
Leadership Awards 2021”

organised by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank of

“EcoChallenger”
Corporate Environmental jointly

China (Hong Kong).
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The Group firmly believes that commitment to public
accountability and acceptance of public scrutiny are requisite
conditions for driving sustainable development of an ecological
and environmental enterprise. During the year under review, the
Group continued to fulfill the responsibility of opening its
environmental protection facilities to the public with more intensive
actions and facilitated disclosure of environmental information with
a high level of transparency, as flue emission and sewage
discharge data of all projects in operation, among others, were
synchronised with and
regulatory platforms,

instantly uploaded to government
while environmental impact assessment
reports and environmental surveillance data of projects were also
disclosed to the public via various media for governmental and
public supervision. Our environmental protection facilities were
opened to the public on a normalised basis. As of 31 December
2022, a total of 47 projects were officially opened to the public
and 140 offline open-to-the-public activities was held, receiving a

total of 4,200 visitors.

Affected by the pandemic, the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2022 decreased by 5% to approximately
HK$8,048,171,000 from HK$8,446,999,000 for 2021. EBITDA
decreased by 23% to approximately HK$2,175,944,000 compared to
HK$2,837,942,000 for 2021.
shareholders of the Company for the year decreased by 69% to
approximately HK$340,201,000 from HK$1,110,385,000 for 2021.
Basic earnings per share for 2022 was HK16.47 cents, HK37.27
cents less compared to HK53.74 cents for 2021. The Group was
backed by ready access to various financing options and ample

Profit attributable to equity

cash flow with sound financial indicators. As at the end of the year,
cash and bank balances amounted to approximately
HK$2,003,293,000 and total bank loan facilities amounted to
HK$25,342,733,000, including unutilised bank loan facilites of
HK$8,545,654,000. The aggregate amount of available cash and
unutilised bank
HK$10,548,947,000.

loan facilities was approximately
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The decrease in revenue and profit attributable to equity holders
for the year under review reflected primarily the Group’s proactive
adjustment of the Company’s development strategy to

accommodate changes in national policies and market
developments, which resulted in the decline in revenue and profit
from construction services. Profit contributions from operations
were also affected by rising prices for raw materials of integrated
biomass utilisation segment, lacklustre demand and decline in unit
prices for hazardous and solid waste treatment owing to the

pandemic in China and control measures in related regions.

The Group recorded impairment losses on goodwill and property,
plant and machinery with the aggregate amount of HK$30 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, as compared to that of nil
for the year ended 31 December 2021, taking into account the
industry conditions and changes in operating environment. The
Group recorded expected credit losses on debtors of HK$109
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, as compared to
that of HK$1 milion for the year ended 31 December 2021,
mainly due to failure to collect government on-grid renewable
energy tariff subsidy receivables in a timely manner.

In April 2022, the Company completed the issuance of the third
tranche of medium-term notes, namely the 2022 Green Medium-
term Note (Series 1) (Bond Connect) (the “2022 Green Medium-
term Notes (Series 1) (Bond Connect)”) for an amount of RMB1.2
billion with a maturity period of 3+2 years at a coupon rate of
3.27% per annum for the first 3 years. The Company shall be
entitled to adjust the coupon rate of the 2022 Green Medium-
term Notes (Series 1) (Bond Connect) on the third anniversary of
the issuance date. The adjusted coupon rate shall remain
unchanged for the last 2 years. The proceeds from issuance of
the 2022 Green Medium-term Notes (Series 1) (Bond Connect)
will be used for the repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing
loans, replenishment of the Group’s working capital and/or
investment in and construction of the Group’s environmental
protection projects and other business development purposes. As
at 31 December 2022, the Company’s medium-term notes had

no unissued registered principal amount.
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In April 2022, the Company received the notice of registration
acceptance issued by the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors (the “NAFMII”) in respect of the Company’s
application for registration and proposed issuance of perpetual
medium-term notes with a registered principal amount of not
more than RMB4 billion in the national inter-bank bond market in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), and such registered
principal amount shall be valid for 2 years from the date of the
notice of registration acceptance, being 24 April 2022. The
targeted subscribers for the perpetual medium-term notes are
institutional investors in the national inter-bank bond market. The
perpetual medium-term notes are traded in the national inter-bank
bond market.

In May 2022, the Company completed the issuance of the first
tranche of perpetual medium-term notes, namely the “China
Everbright Greentech Limited 2022 Green Medium-term Notes
(Series 2) (Rural Vitalization)” (the “2022 First Tranche Perpetual
Medium-term Notes”) for an amount of RMB700 million with a
base term of 3 years (at the end of the base term and each
extended term, the Company shall have the right to extend the
maturity of the 2022 First Tranche Perpetual Medium-term Notes
for an additional term, or to repay the 2022 First Tranche
Perpetual Medium-Term Notes in full). The coupon rate is 3.35%
per annum for the first 3 years. The Company has the right to
redeem the 2022 First Tranche Perpetual Medium-term Notes at
par value plus interest payable on the last interest payment date
of the first pricing term and on each subsequent interest payment
date and to reset the coupon rate once every 3 years. The
proceeds from the issuance of the 2022 First Tranche Perpetual
Medium-term Notes will be used for repayment of the Group’s
interest-bearing debts. As at 31 December 2022, the unissued
registered capital of the Company’s remaining perpetual medium-
term notes amounted to RMB3.3 billion.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 7 March 2023, the Company made an application to the
NAFMII
instruments in the aggregate amount of not more than RMB5
billion (the “DFI”) to be issued in multiple tranches within two
years from the date of the notice of acceptance of registration to
be issued by NAFMII.
processed, there remains uncertainty as to whether and when the
Application will be approved and when the registration of the debt

for registration of multiple types of debt financing

As the aforesaid application is being

financing instruments will be completed. Details of the above
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 7 March
2023.

As at the date of this report, the Company has not received any
notice of registration acceptance issued by the NAFMII.

On 7 April 2023, the Company has obtained the approval of the
application from the NAFMII and has completed the registration of
the DFI. Accordingly, the Company may issue multiple types of
DFI in multiple tranches as and when appropriate within two years
from the date of the notice of acceptance of registration from
NAFMII, being 4 April 2023. Details of the above were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 11 April 2023.

The Company will make further disclosure on the progress of the
possible debt financing
appropriate.

instruments issue as and when

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT
Business Review

During the year under review, revenue generated from integrated
biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment,

environmental remediation and solar energy and wind
power segments amounted to approximately HK$8,048,171,000
in aggregate, comprising approximately HK$1,297,251,000
from construction services, representing a 25%
compared to HK$1,736,617,000 for 2021,
HK$6,384,333,000 from operation services, which was broadly
unchanged compared to 2021.

construction services, operation services and finance income

decrease
and approximately

Analysed by nature of revenue,

accounted for 16%, 79% and 5%, respectively, of the total

revenue.

ESREEC

R-B-=#=A+H ARARNARTHZSE
BE LR - S ERE SR TR ARE50M
EANSERABITNS REEBBETA(H

BRETAR] AENEZRBIRERTHEHRS
et ANRZEMAaNEN BT SHm

FRET BN EAPHFERERESD 8BS RMA
P IEHE /- A R RE B 75 B B T B a5 5 SE A AT
REETE - EXFTEBARBABEHRARRBEHR =
TR tHNREA-

RAREBH - ARAHARKEIRITEZ ZE B
SRLNEIEMBME -

RZZZ=FNALH ARRIZEREBRERS

BiHEHEREFI AN TREBRE T AEM -
Bt ARBE AR R ZE e R X EMEAN
EEHH(ED_?_:iﬂﬂEEI);*LEH%/H\EEWEW
REERRED ZHRETEmEBERMELE -

EXFraE RS %QEAZIK/ATEHJ%F%*?ffi
MA+—HOREA -

AR IER R A RE T A%
Y5 -

B E F

EBOBELRRE
£ 3E]

REEFERN  £MEEEFA - Bk X EREE

B RIBEEEMAREERRES BHWEEET

tiﬁ;‘%iﬂ% 048,171,0007T » A 2iERBW =L
A #1,297,251,000L R Z—F 2B

1,736,617,0007@)3&9 25% « EREERFKEL

A5 16,384,333,0007T - BT = —FHF o i%

M&/\'I*f%‘ AT BIEARTS - B RIS R A
DAL B EE16% ~ 79% &5% °



Major financial data of integrated biomass utilisation, hazardous
and solid waste treatment, environmental remediation and solar

energy and wind power projects for 2022 are summarised as
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follows:
2021
%
Hazardous Hazardous
Integrated  and solid Solar Integrated and solid Solar energy
biomass waste Environmental energy and biomass waste  Environmental and wind
utilisation ~ treatment  remediation wind power utilisation treatment remediation power
projects projects projects projects projects projects projects projects
HAMA ERRE REBE kEE A1 BRE ;
%R EH HE HH Eh ER e { HH A3t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 i HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI  B¥Tn BT B¥Tr E¥Tz B . BETR BBTT  AETR BB
Revenue L6
— construction services — RERS 763,527 533,724 - - 1,297,251 859,786 876,831 - - 1,736,617
— operation services - BERE 4,912,706 1,133,963 148,205 189,459 6,384,333 5,052,601 774,542 318,320 205,485 6,350,948
— finance income — BERA 360,508 6,079 - - 366,587 352,348 7,086 - - 359,434
6,036,741 1,673,766 148,205 189,459 8,048,171 6,264,735 1,658,459 318,320 205,485 8,446,999
EBITDA BAS - BiE-
FrEREHEA
B2 1,650,143 488,557 10,831 171,450 2,320,981 2,060,530 686,664 42,182 189,181 2,978,557

To reserve more capital to capture opportunities and meet the
challenges ahead, the board (the“Board”) of directors
(“Director(s)”) of the Company (the “Board”) does not recommend
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK4.0 cents per share) to the Shareholders.

RRBELZE S UMEMS KB RRE -
AREAIER(EENE(EFE)TEZMREIR
BEE-E-_—_F+-A=t+—RHIEFEZREH
BE(ZE=—%F : §R4.08) -
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Integrated biomass utilisation

The Group mainly utilises biomass raw materials to generate both
electricity and heat. Biomass raw materials are categorised into
yellow culms and grey culms. Yellow culms consist of agricultural
residues, such as wheat straw, rice straw, corn straw, rice husks,
peanut husks, etc.; while grey culms consist of forestry residues
such as branches, barks and other manufacturing wood wastes,
etc. In addition, the Group has developed a unique business
model of urban-rural integration combining the construction of
integrated biomass utilisation projects and waste-to-energy
projects for integrated treatment of agricultural and forestry
residues and rural household wastes in a pioneering attempt at
treatment of the ecological environment in county areas. The
unique advantage of the Group’s urban-rural integration model
enables it to significantly lower the operating costs of projects
and enhance our competitiveness in the industry.

The comprehensive biomass raw material supply regime has
safeguarded sufficient fuel supply for and stable operation of the
integrated biomass utilisation projects, while the Group has also
curbed fuel cost by acquiring biomass raw materials in nearby
regions through regional coordination initiatives. Through the
combined effect of technological optimisation and delicacy
management, the Group’s integrated biomass utilisation projects
sustained long cycles of stable operation, resulting in substantial
enhancement in operational standards and economic efficiency of

the projects.

EMERESRA
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% : ZZD%'%& . %aﬁ—f : \/Jﬁi—r SRR ’beﬁXﬁ ;
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WA B EBER  SEVERFRSTAER A
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BEEYREMNEENR - FElTREERRER
BHEA - REENES -BLEXBRED

AIABEREBRREEKA - BITEBRE S -

ENEMERMBHERBRARE T EMERS
*'JJ%IEHWSMEI’\J}EE@EE&%EEEA o AEER
B IR B AT A Y R R RS - R SRR
Ko BBRMELCEBACERBES  A&E
MEMEGRANAAEBER T RAMIBTET
RARIRTT T IR BB K R B aR o
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As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 54 integrated
biomass utilisation projects, distributed variously in 10 provinces
in China, which were mainly located in Anhui Province, Jiangsu
Province, Shandong Province, Hubei Province and Henan
Province, etc. Such projects commanded a total investment of
approximately RMB17.066 billion and provided an aggregate
power generation designed capacity of 1,069 MW, an aggregate
annual biomass processing designed capacity of approximately
8,089,800 tonnes, and a daily aggregate household waste
processing designed capacity of approximately 11,610 tonnes.

During the year under review, the Group operated and completed
50 integrated biomass utilisation projects, generating
approximately 6,009,489 MWh of on-grid electricity which was
approximate to 2021; the volume of steam supplied was
approximately 2,411,215 tonnes, representing an increase of
12% over 2021; and processed approximately 8,185,800 tonnes
of biomass raw materials and approximately 3,457,231 tonnes of
household waste, representing increases of 3% and 18% over
2021 respectively. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 2
integrated biomass utilisation projects under preparation, with
power generation designed capacity of 22 MW and daily
household waste processing designed capacity of approximately
1,000 tonnes and an estimated annual on-grid power generation
of approximately 117,000 kwh.

During the year under review, the Group’s integrated biomass
utilisation projects contributed EBITDA of approximately
HK$1,650,143,000, representing a decrease of 20% compared to
2021. The integrated biomass utilisation projects contributed net
profit of approximately HK$777,214,000, representing a decrease
of 27% compared to 2021. The decrease in profit was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the number of projects under
construction resulting in the corresponding decrease in revenue
generated from construction services, as well as the increase in
operating costs driven by rising biomass raw materials prices
owing to the pandemic during the year under review.

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—0 KAEEHEH
S4MEEYEREFIAER - HHEFPEEAN10ME
By EBNRETHRE TES - ILES B
BERNEESH  ZETHEE S NBIREBHAR
#A170.6618 7T - BRET B R A 231,060
B £ ERRETRIE R ) E T F 48,089,800
WE - AERIR AR AT R IR JEEF A AY11,610M8 o

REEFEAN  AEBBEMTINEVELGS
FFAIE B #5016 @ 24 48 E = 46,009,489
RE BT —FHRA BHEAEEED
2,411,2150F  \M-T = —FIEIN12% : REEE
Y E R MK 48,185,800 M8 & A JF £7 3 4
3,457,231H8 * DRI —FT = —F 1 jI3% &
18% HE_T-_—_F+_A=+—H £%£H
EEREVEEAFEEL Loff - RETHEHM
NE2QKE  AENERFTREENNETH
1,0000F + TEFT & F A/ 32 EEE49117,0005K
FUB

REBEFEN  AEENEMEGREFNAEBEER
RBRAE ME WERBHENABMNOBE
1,650,143,0007T * B =T = —FF L 20% ° £4
BixAFAEER EBNF AR BT77,214,000
T BT —FRA27% c BB EBHR
EREB AR UBEERS RSB R
MERBIEFEAZZELE  £WERMEHE
R SEERAIL AT -
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Major operating and financial data of the integrated biomass
utilisation segment for 2022 are summarised as follows:

CE I CFEYEREFNAS R o T EEEHE
BEERBLOT

Integrated biomass utilisation projects EYEHREFAER
On-grid electricity (MWh) TREE OCKRE) 6,009,489 6,027,143
Biomass raw materials processing volume EYERMERIEE ()

(tonnes) 8,185,800 7,964,335
Household waste processing volume (tonnes) — A4 & B3k BR 38 & (M) 3,457,231 2,918,918
Volume of steam supplied (tonnes) EAMES () 2,411,215 2,154,671
EBITDA (HK$'000) BAE HE - -TER

BRI RN CEEFT) 1,650,143 2,060,530
Segment net profit (HK$’000) DEFRA CEEFT) 777,214 1,059,693
Hazardous and solid waste treatment EEREEEE

The Group is principally engaged in the safe treatment and
integrated utilisation of wastes including general industrial solid
wastes, hazardous wastes and infectious animal
Currently, the Group conducts the disposal by way of incineration,
landfill, physicochemical treatment and integrated utilisation.

carcasses.

The Group is a leading industry player in the hazardous waste
treatment business, with capabilities for safely disposing of 44 out
of 46 categories of hazardous wastes listed in the National
Catalog of Hazardous Wastes. During the year under review, we
continued to explore the potential of the general industrial solid
waste electricity and heat cogeneration business. The Group is
well-positioned to fully meet various requirements of customers on
the back of its solid technical strengths and ability to provide
one-stop services.

AEBTENE—RIXERE BREY KL
FMENR2REMNGANA  BAIRANEE
FABERE  HE  YCREREE T

= o
=7

AEENCEREXRBETETURAIGE -
A z2RE(ERBREN RS Y46 BET
BV44%E - W EERFE NARB ISR — AR T X E B
REBMHEBERE) - HENRME N R —uh
AWRBENSAEET2EMESREPTX -
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As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 61 hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects, distributed variously in 9
provinces and autonomous regions in China, which were mainly
located in Jiangsu Province, Shandong Province, Anhui Province,
Hubei
commanded a total investment of approximately RMB14.284

Province, Zhejiang Province, etc. Such projects
billion and an aggregate annual processing designed capacity of

approximately 2,873,400 tonnes.

During the year under review, the Group had 40 hazardous and
solid waste treatment projects that were in operation or
completed construction. For detoxification treatment,
approximately 399,047 tonnes of hazardous and solid waste were
treated in total, representing an increase of 62% compared to
2021. 32,089 tonnes of
hazardous and solid waste were treated, representing an increase
of 40% compared to 2021, and approximately 12,058 tonnes of

recycled products were sold, representing an increase of a 27%

For integrated resource utilisation,

compared to 2021. There were 6 hazardous and solid waste
treatment projects under construction with an aggregate annual
hazardous waste processing designed capacity of approximately

592,500 tonnes.

During the year under review, the Group’s hazardous and solid
waste treatment projects contributed EBITDA of approximately
HK$488,557,000, representing a decrease of 29% compared to
2021. Hazardous and solid waste treatment projects recorded net
loss of approximately HK$23,973,000, representing a decrease of
107% compared to the profit contribution for 2021. The decrease
in profit was mainly attributable to the continuous decline in
treatment prices amidst escalated peer competition owing to
demand-supply imbalances and unyielding cost caused by the
shortage of production waste at certain upstream waste-
generating enterprises under the pandemic as well as road
blockade measures to deal with the pandemic which affected the
collection, storage and transportation of waste.
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Major operating and financial data of the hazardous and solid —ZE - —FERENERERED B2 T BELEET
waste treatment segment for 2022 are summarised as follows: BEBERENT

Hazardous and solid waste treatment BEREEEEEB

projects
Hazardous and solid waste processing EREREERES ()
volume (fonnes)
— Detoxification treatment — EELRE 399,047 245,676
— Integrated resource utilisation — BREGEEFNHE 32,089 23,003
Sales volume of recycled products (tonnes) — ER(LAIBERSEE (1) 12,058 9,490
On-grid electricity (MIWh) EREE OKRE) 6,362 —
Volume of steam supplied (tonnes) A ES (1) 8,146 —
EBITDA (HK$'000) BRAE B -TER
BIHRIRN CEETT) 488,557 686,664
Segment net profit/(loss) (HK$'000) DEFRF,(EBE)
CE#FoT) (23,973) 364,210
Environmental remediation RIBEKE

The Group’s environmental remediation business covers mainly the — AREBMMIRBEEEE T ERE T EISRBME
restoration of industrial contaminated sites, restoration of {85 EZMEE B MEEIBAEREE T
contaminated farmland, ecological restoration for mines and EREFRAIE  HELSARE AHERENTE'S
landfills, treatment of industrial gas emission, integrated treatment BRI - B ABZRIELE REEXREL
of oil sludge, treatment of river and lake sediments and industrial EIBHH L TIES -

sludge, construction and operation of wetland parks, environmental

stewardship services and anti-seepage at landfill sites.
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In connection with qualifications, as of 31 December 2022, the
Group held the following accreditations: First-grade Professional
Contracting Qualification for Environmental Protection Projects,
Second-Grade General Contractor for Municipal Public Works,
Third-Grade General
Environmental Engineering EPO License (Class B) (for pollution

Contractor for Construction Works,

remediation and prevention of water pollution), Environmental
Pollution Control License (Class A) (remediation of contaminated
sites) in Jiangsu Province, Environmental Pollution Control License
(Class B) (contaminated water body remediation)
Province, General Contractor for Environmental Pollution Control

in Jiangsu

License (First Class) (remediation of contaminated sites) in Jiangsu

Province and General Contractor for Environmental Pollution
(Second Class)

remediation) in Jiangsu Province. It had also obtained an “AAA”

Control License (contaminated water body
corporate credit rating given by a credit rating agency, as well as
ISO9001, OHSAS18001 and 1SO14001 management system
accreditations. In addition, the Group holds the China National
(CNAS)

qualification accreditation certificate which qualifies it to issue test

Accreditation Services for Conformity Assessment

data and results to third parties as valid proof for certification
purposes.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 14 environmental
remediation projects under implementation, which were mainly
located in Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province, Tianjin and Beijing
respectively, with a total contract amount of approximately
RMB733 million. There were also 3 projects in the preparatory
stage, with a total contract amount of approximately RMB117

million.

EEHH BEZTF+-_A=+—H =K
SECAERRIBEERR &K mHRAATL
SRABD H - BEIREHEIBEAB=H  IRE
IRBHBELROCSREEIRIKZREE
ITREE) IHARESPABENTIERR
(SRS HIEE)  THARIBSLERENTE
LB CFRKEBIEER)  IHREARESRPAEIR
BAEBPRENTE—RCSLIGEER)  TIHER
RISRRBETRBERBENTE R OCSLKE
BE)SEEYE  BIEATARBLEERER
AAAFE Z 17 4 iB1S09001 ~ OHSAS18001 &
ISO14001 ERBRRE - AEETRFBEFHEE
FIFERRRATEZESCNAS)EERERE - Al Y
SN B ABFRBNNBRRBAERMER

HE-_FE-_—F+-A=+—8 A&EBHTH
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During the vyear under review, the Group’s environmental
remediation projects contributed EBITDA of approximately
HK$10,831,000, representing a decrease of 74% compared to
2021. Environmental remediation projects recorded net loss of
approximately HK$7,641,000, representing a decrease of 148%
compared to the profit contribution for 2021. The decrease in
profit was mainly attributable to pandemic control measures in
force during the year under review which affected the progress of
project execution and process of new project tenders.

Major financial data of the environmental remediation segment for
2022 are summarised as follows:

L~ BEIE - ITE R SE AT A M 405 10,831,000
T BRITEZ—FFIT74% o IRIREEIEE BB
SR IBAEET 641,000 BT —FAEFE
R 148% c BFB D FZHAREEFERT
EEERE  FEBERNTEERNBEERERE -

REBEFER - AEBNRFEERB 5RERF
8

R CFRBBES N T EVBEBEREN
™

REMBERR

Environmental remediation projects
EBITDA (HK$'000)

BRAE - HIE - FER

BRI B OB TFor) 10,831 42,182
Segment net profit/(loss) (HK$'000) DEFRF,(EE)
CE#For) (7,641) 15,831
Solar energy and wind power KRRBEERRSE

Apart from the County-wide Advancement Solar Project in Feng
County, as of 31 December 2022, the Group has 19 operating
and completed solar energy projects and 2 wind power projects
in operation distributed in Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province,
Shanxi Province, Hong Kong and Germany, respectively, involving
a total investment of approximately RMB1.45 billion and providing
an aggregate power generation designed capacity of 132.63 MW.
The Group is responsible for building, managing and operating
these projects and selling electricity generated to local power grid
companies.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s County-wide Solar Energy
Advancement Project in Feng County included 14 subsidiary
projects with a total investment of approximately RMB27,038,000
and an aggregate power generation designed capacity of 6.014
MW, of which 6 projects with an aggregate power generation
designed capacity of 2.384 MW were in operation, 1 project with
an aggregate power generation designed capacity of 100 kW
were under construction and 7 projects with an aggregate power
generation designed capacity of 3.583 MW were under
preparation.

BREZKARBEZHEEBEEN #HE_T =

TZA=T—H  AEEHAF19EE S EKT
THRRBEEEUARESENREERE @ o
AoHmRIIEHRSE THE LAL FERE
S RBIFREBHOARE145ETT - BRE
BRMEAEAR1263KE - AEBMEEEE T
BREEZLIER - WKENSE THHTERAF

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H8 AEEETZE
SRR EBGHETE RS 14@FIEE - 25HEE
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During the year under review, the Group’s solar energy and wind
power projects sold approximately 254,909 MWh of electricity,
representing a 10% decrease compared to 2021. The projects
contributed EBITDA of approximately HK$171,450,000,
representing a 9% decrease compared to 2021. Solar energy and
wind power projects contributed net profit of approximately
HK$62,332,000,
2021. This was mainly attributable to reduced power generation
due to weaker wind

representing a decrease of 15% compared to

resources and the inability to repair
malfunctioning equipment owing to road blockade measures to
contain the pandemic, as well as decline in power tariffs caused

by electricity trades during the year under review.

Major operating and financial data of the solar energy and wind
power segment for 2022 are summarised as follows:
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Solar energy and wind power projects KRBERREIER
On-grid electricity (MIWh) FREE CKRE) 254,909 282,976
EBITDA (HK$'000) BRAE - BIE - TER

B AN CEEFT) 171,450 189,181
Segment net profit (HK$’000) DEFRF CEMFor) 62,332 73,110

With a consistent commitment to the dual emphasis on social as
well economic benefits, the Group has made vigorous effort in
driving energy conservation and discharge reduction. During the
year under review, the Group generated approximately
6,291,582* MWh of green electricity, which was sufficient for the
annual electricity consumption of 5,242,985 households, reducing
standard coal consumption by 2,516,633 tonnes and carbon
dioxide (CO,) emissions by 3,050,914 tonnes, while saving
817,905,660 trees. The Group also treated 721,601.5 tonnes of
leachate in its waste-to-energy power plants and hazardous
waste landfills and removed 2,736.7 tonnes of chemical oxygen
demand.

*

Such data is operational caliber data

REEBRKRBAN T EREEI=ESWER &
BHEBE AR EE - REBFEE R - AL EHKiRd
4R 1496,291,582* K FLEF + A 45,242,085
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Business Prospects

In 2023, global economic recovery continues to face enormous
pressure given uncertainties arise from geopolitical conflicts and
complicated international relations. During the year under review,
China optimised and adjusted its anti-epidemic measures, as
COVID-19 infection has been removed from the list of infectious
diseases subject to quarantine measures under the Frontier
Health and Quarantine Law of the People’s Republic of China.
With industrial production and investment gradually returning to
normalised operation amidst the waning social and economic
impact of the pandemic and domestic demand stabilising and on
the rise again with the aid of various stabilisation measures
adopted by the government, the Chinese economy is hopeful of a
speedy recovery.

With the implementation of the principle of developing an
ecological civilisation set out at the 20th National Congress,
pollution treatment and energy conservation and emission
reduction measures will be further implemented, and the scope
and boundaries of the environmental protection industry will be
gradually extended, unveiling a new era. From the environmental
perspective, the emphasis on coordination between pollution
reduction and carbon reduction remained the overtone of the
environmental policies in 2022. Following the joint publication of
the Implementation Plan for Synergizing the Reduction of Pollution
and Carbon Emission by 7 ministries including the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC, the scope of application of
the guiding policy for low-carbon environmental protection will be
extended to cover more regions and sectors, including numerous
sub-segments and their upstream and downstream businesses. In
terms of resources, the Guiding Opinions on the Accelerating
Construction of a Recycling System for Waste Materials and
Implementation Plan for Comprehensive Utilization of Industrial
Resources jointly published by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC and Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of the PRC during the year promote the
recycled use of solid waste, suggesting enormous market
potential for bulk industrial solid waste. In connection with energy,
following the promulgation of the Guiding Opinions on
Accelerating the Construction of a Uniform National Electricity
Market System in 2021, the authorities governing the industry
further published the Basic Rules for the Electricity Spot Market
(Draft for Comments) during the year under review, pointing to
new business models for the new electricity market regime, with
new business forms such as virtual power plant, energy storage
and auxiliary power services firmly positioned in the pipeline.
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While the gloom of the pandemic is waning after 3 years of
ravaging and the social economy is gradually returning to normal,
the environmental protection industry has experienced hushed
changes. Challenges will remain for environmental protection
enterprises as, on the one hand, recovery of the industry will take
some time given its extensive coverage of multiple sectors and
the extent to which it is affected by its upstream and
downstream sectors, while the start-up and operating costs for
environmental protection projects have been increasing and the
market has become increasingly competitive in tandem with the

ongoing upgrade of industry standards.

To address the radical changes in the external environment, the
Group will continue to persist in the business philosophy of
“Reinforcing Principal Businesses and Driving Transformation”. To
reinforce the foundation of its principal businesses, the Group will
closely monitor policy and market developments and conduct
thorough research on measures and methods, so as to enhance
the quality and efficiency of various business operations through
delicacy management. The integrated biomass utilisation business
will optimise project operation cost by promoting the experience
of developing self-operated fuel collection and storage regimes;
the hazardous and solid waste treatment business will improve its
“Major Market, Major Customer Service” mechanism in a bid to
consolidate market resources; the environmental remediation
business will expand its business boundary and improve its credit
standing. Moreover, the Group will drive project construction in a
systematic manner and continue to broaden its financing channels
and enhance technological innovation while implementing
benchmarking management to achieve cost reduction, in order to
comprehensively enhance the ability of its principal business to

deliver value.
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To facilitate development in transformation, the Group will persist
in the “three dimensions” development strategy — extending the
length of the industry chain, penetrating the depth for more
market shares and broadening the scope of its business — as it
seeks to identify markets of superior quality, more advanced
technologies and more valuable projects in adherence to policies
and measures under the Dual Carbon strategy and building the
“four-in-one”

business positioning of environment, resources,

energy and climate. In connection with environment, the Group
will actively expand the landfill remediation and leachate treatment
business and investigate the ecology-oriented development (EOD)
model. In connection with resources, the Group will focus on the
recycling of bulk industrial solid waste, while building up
experience in the investment, construction and operation of the
end-of-life tyre recycling business. In connection with energy,
integrated energy service business will be vigorously advanced
through the coordination of solar energy, wind power, energy
storage and the biomass projects in operation, with a special
focus on establishing our presence in the smart energy sector
featuring primarily the “Low-carbon City” and the “Zero-carbon
Industry Park” and advancing the virtual power plant business. In
connection with climate, the Group will track the progress of
development of the national carbon trading market and make
advanced moves to establish our presence in the China Certified
Emission Reduction (CCER) and green electricity trading market.
The Group will conduct in-depth research on the direction for
transformation to stock up ample resources for the next cycle of

value creation.

Moving forward, with the solid back-up of China Everbright Group
and strong support of CEEGL, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, and on the back of its extensive experience in the
development and operation of diversified project portfolios and
strong ability in market development, the Group will work in close
tandem with national policies and market trends with a firm
strategic focus, as it continues to uphold the corporate vision of
endeavouring to “Create Better Investment Value and Undertake
More Social Responsibility” and strive incessantly to become a

leader in China’s environmental protection industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial position

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately HK$39,156,376,000 (31 2021:
HK$40,539,581,000) with net assets amounting to approximately
HK$13,534,285,000 (31 December 2021: HK$14,145,367,000).
Net asset value per share attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company was HK$5.99, a decrease of 10% as compared to
HK$6.66 per share as at the end of 2021. As at 31 December
2022, the gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of the
Group was 65.44%, an increase of 0.33 percentage point as
compared to that of 65.11% as at the end of 2021. The current
ratio of the Group was 137.31%, a decrease of 0.19 percentage
point as compared to that of 137.50% as at the end of 2021.

December

Financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent approach on cash and financial
management to ensure proper risk control and lower the costs of
funds. It finances its operations primarily with internally generated
cash flow, proceeds from the issuance of medium-term notes and
bank loans. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$2,003,293,000, a decrease of
approximately HK$640,817,000 as compared to
HK$2,644,110,000 at the end of 2021. Most of the Group’s cash
and bank balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi.
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Indebtedness

The Group endeavours to develop a diverse range of financing
options and increasing banking facilities to reserve funds for the
development of its environmental protection business. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
approximately HK$20,736,525,000, an increase of approximately
HK$185,429,000 as compared to HK$20,551,096,000 as at the
end of 2021. The borrowings included secured interest-bearing
borrowings of approximately HK$8,654,292,000 (31 December
2021: HK$9,720,331,000) and unsecured interest-bearing
borrowings of approximately HK$12,082,233,000 (31 December
2021: HK$10,830,765,000). The borrowings of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, representing
73% and 27% of the total respectively. The majority of the
Group’s borrowings were subject to floating rates. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$25,342,733,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$24,334,199,000), of which approximately HK$8,545,654,000
(31 December 2021: HK$7,907,465,000) was unutilised. The tenor
of banking facilities ranged from 1 year to 18 years.

Foreign exchange risks

The Company’s financial statements are denominated in Hong

Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company. The Group’s investments made outside Hong Kong
(including Mainland China) may incur foreign exchange risks. The
Group’s operations have been predominantly based in Mainland
China, which makes up over 95% of its total investments and
revenue. The majority of the Group’s assets, borrowings and
major transactions are denominated in Renminbi, forming basically
a natural hedging effect. The Group closely manages its foreign
exchange risk through the optimal allocation of borrowings in
different currencies, moderate control of borrowings in non-base

currencies, and adoption of appropriate financial instruments.
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Pledge of assets

Certain banking facilities of the Group were secured by certain
revenue rights, contract assets, intangible assets and receivables
in connection with the Group’s service concession arrangements,
bank deposits, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and equity interest of a subsidiary of the Group. As at 31
December 2022, the aggregate net book value of assets pledged
amounted to approximately HK$19,430,554,000 (31 December
2021: HK$21,584,176,000).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had purchase commitments
of approximately HK$295,360,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$620,324,000) under the construction contracts and capital
commitments relating to capital injection in an associate and a
joint venture of Nil (31 December 2021: HK$36,535,000) and
approximately HK$27,935,000 (31 December 2021: Nil)
respectively.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

Tax relief and exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) and Build-
Operate-Own (“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its projects.

The Group concluded that all the BOT arrangements and certain
BOO arrangements are service concession arrangements under
Hong Kong (International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee) (“HK(IFRIC)”) Interpretation 12, because the local
government controls and regulates the services that the Group
must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service
charge. In respect of BOT arrangements, upon expiry of
concession right agreement, the infrastructure has to be
transferred to the local government at nil consideration.
Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is used in the service
concession arrangements for its entire or substantial useful life.
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TRBIIRBEFAVHREER ([EBEWHRE
RN ]) B IRF AR SR L B R IR R AT 2
BLFETENEECME

The following chart sets forth a summary of the accounting

treatment for service concession arrangements and non-service
concession arrangements under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”):

Projects with
guaranteed
revenue stream
HREURE N
AE

Projects fulfiling all of (1),
(2) and (3)

WRE) - (2 R(0Q)EIE
EMIEE

CRITERIA Z%

(1) The grantor of the project

controls or regulates what
services we must provide with
the infrastructure, to whom we
must provide the service, and
at what price
HEMEREALSREE RN
WARERREZ R - R
HRARRBER

(2) The grantor of the project controls,

through ownership, beneficial
entittement or otherwise, any
significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the
service concession arrangement
or the infrastructure is used in the
service concession arrangement
for its entire useful life
HEMRREAERBETFEE
R EEE M RES - BB
BiE - Eamdask H A%
HI B2 2 B AT ATz -
k% E R ERIRS AT SRR
PR EERAFHAER

(8) The infrastructure is constructed

or acquired from a third party
for the purpose of the service
concession arrangement or
is an existing infrastructure of
the grantor of the project to
which we are given access
for the purpose of the service
concession arrangement.

A A R RIS R AT AE 2R
ZHEE) B M RR S B E =T
B AEZARMEENER
AHMBHER - MEMHRR
IS SRR B B R
A

-

Projects with
non-guaranteed
revenue stream
BREUWRTH
BE

—

Other projects
HibER

Construction phase
ERREER

Statement of profit — construction revenue recognised

or loss
B R

Statement of
financial position

MRS R

Cash flow
RenE

B RS E

— construction costs charged
EHBRRERAE

— finance income recognised

ERRM KA

- the consideration receivable for the
construction service is recognised as service
concession assets, which is an interest
bearing contract asset
REERBOERKEER R BENEE
NIRBEATREREE

- finance income receivable is classified as
service concession assets

R TS MA D BB IRI AT A E

— payment for construction costs is classified
under operating activities
BERAXNRASBELEEEHET

- no cash flow effect for construction revenue
and finance income
HEERan kA BRALERSTEY

Operation phase

EEEE

— operation revenue (service fee received/
receivables less partial settlement of the
service concession assets recognised during
the construction phase) recognised
B RS s (PR R B TR AR
BRARBRBEFCEREERSER)

— finance income recognised

BHERMBBA

— service concession assets will be settled by
allocation of service fees received during the
operation phase
R 745 o ST A 4 4 K ZE G R OE B R IR R
BEREN

— service fee received is classified under
operating activities

BURBEERSRELEEFHET

3 SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
PR 45 FF AR E R

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
B A 45 R AT A R B

Construction phase
R B

Statement of profit — construction revenue recognised

or loss
B R

Statement of
financial position

BN R

Cash flow

EEREERE
— construction costs charged

BB EK A

receivable for the
recognised as

- the consideration
construction service is
intangible assets

RERERBOEEREBERIRBIVAE

— payment for construction costs is classified
under investing activities
BEKAXNSTESBREREEHET

- no cash flow effect for construction revenue

Operation phase

BERR

— operation revenue (service fee received/
receivable) recognised
EHREE Wzt (Bl AR B )

— amortisation charge of intangible assets

BVAEBRHER

— intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life

T B EE DA TRATHE A F PRI E AR L A 5

— service fee received is classified under
operating activities

BEURBERSBEELLEHAT

NON-SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
3 PR A 455 R AT A 2 B

Construction phase

BB

Statement of profit — nil
i3

or loss

BaR

Statement of
financial position

BT RIR

Cash flow

— construction costs are capitalised as
construction in progress and classified under
property, plant and equipment
BERAERMERERIRYDRENE
B KRR BET

— payment for construction costs is classified
under investing activities

BEKAXNFRASEERAEHRT

Operation phase

B

— operation revenue (service fee received/
receivable) recognised
ERREE ks (Bl BRREER)

— depreciation charge of property, plant and
equipment

mE BERRENEER

— upon completion of the construction,
construction in progress is reclassified to the
relevant categories under property, plant and
equipment

RIEKIE - ERREENDEEYE W
B RRENEBERT
cost of the infrastructure is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life

ERKAARHE A FREERELRE

is classified under

— service fee received
operating activities

BhRBRBRASEELETHAT
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As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 111 projects
had completed construction or commenced operation and 11
projects under construction, in which 52 integrated biomass
utilisation projects and 15 hazardous and solid waste treatment
projects are accounted for as service concession arrangements.
Most of the integrated biomass utilisation projects and some of
the hazardous and solid waste treatment projects are accounted
for as service concession arrangements. The construction
contracts for the biomass portion of our integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy projects and some of our hazardous and solid
waste treatment projects are recorded under “intangible assets”,
while the construction contracts for the waste-to-energy portion of
our integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects and some of
our hazardous and solid waste treatment projects are recorded
under “service concession assets”.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the construction
revenue recorded under intangible assets and service concession
assets for projects accounted for as service concession
arrangements during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31

December 2021.

Construction revenue recorded as additions to:
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SRS RIBE M et

2022 2021

—E-—F T —4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Intangible assets B\ EE 837,965 1,148,285
Service concession assets R EEREEE 459,286 588,332
Total @t 1,297,251 1,736,617
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

Strengthening corporate management is the cornerstone that
ensures efficient, healthy and sustainable development of an
enterprise. The Group has always upheld a “People-oriented,
Pragmatic, Creative and Systematic” management philosophy, as
it continues to develop and improve its management system and
mechanism with a special emphasis on fostering a corporate
management culture that encourages participation by all
employees, so as to enhance management awareness and
effectively raise its management standards.

In an ongoing effort to enhance the enterprise’s ability to
generate benefit and efficiency, the Group has robustly advanced
the informatisation of operations and management and extended
the boundaries of management to enhance the standardisation,
sophistication and systematisation of operational management
with the aid of information technology. Comprehensive cost
management on projects has been implemented with the

enhancement of cost management awareness and the
establishment of a long-term system. Meticulous effort was
devoted to the building of the biomass fuel collection and transit
regime and the construction of the power
management regime of project plants, while the “cost reduction

and efficiency enhancement” initiative was vigorously promoted.

consumption

Exchange with industry peers was broadened while deepening
internal benchmarking and appraisal management. Inspirations
were drawn from innovative projects to provide incentive and
driving force, while a management mechanism underpinned by
“target-oriented operation and performance-oriented personnel
appointment” was established.

During the year under review, the Group held meetings of the
Management Committee (the “Management Committee”) on a
monthly basis to conduct reviews on project investment,
preparation, construction and operation. It played its part as the
investment project review committee which effectively reviews
project investments and construction plans according to stringent
standards. In the meantime, members of the Management
Committee actively deliberated on corporate strategies for
transformation and development and discuss important tasks of
the enterprise in a collective effort to drive the stable

development of the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group strongly believes that staff is the most precious assets
of the Company and is committed to fostering an environment in
which all staff could thrive with their strengths with an emphasis
on opportunities for staff growth and development. To recruit
high-calibre staff and maintain workforce stability, as well as to
enhance the grooming of back-up officers, the Group has
formulated the Measures for the Management of Everbright
Greentech Back-up Officers to provide staff with more choices in
career development. The concept of “demotion as well as
promotion” has been put into practice, as the identification of
talents, selection and appointment of officers and talent pool has
been enhanced. The Group will continue to optimise the
mechanism of talent appointment by enhancing internal
recommendations and in-house training, stepping up with efforts
to retain core personnel and broadening the channels for staff
selection and appointment, in order to develop a sound and
diversified human resources management system. The Group has
also provided different types of trainings designed to explore the
potentials of employees, with a view to achieving co-development
with  employees and sharing with them the rewards of its
business achievements.

During the year under review, the Group continued to persist in
the implementation of anti-epidemic measures against the
COVID-19 pandemic, while safeguarding staff health and safety by
encouraging them to receive vaccination and arranging annual
body check and eye examination. The Group is committed to
foster a workplace characterised by diversity, inclusivity and
mutual respect at work for all employees and believes that it
should be safeguarded by a relevant mechanism, under which
everyone is entitled to equal opportunities within the system and
their job positions. The Company also believes that the availability
of diverse talents is closely associated with corporate
development, and has been vigorously procuring talents from
diverse backgrounds and strives to foster a harmonious, inclusive
and diverse workplace for staff of different genders from different
ethnic, cultural or professional backgrounds.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,580 employees (31
December 2021: 3,889 employees) in total in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Total staff cost for the year ended 31 December
2022 was HK$693,956,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$774,257,000). Employees are remunerated according to their
qualifications, experiences, job nature and performance, with
reference to market conditions. Apart from the discretionary
performance bonus, the Group also provides staff with other
benefits such as medical insurance and mandatory provident
fund.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the year under review, the Group placed a stronger
emphasis on the effectiveness of risk control on the back of an
improved internal control and risk management system. Feasible
and effective risk mitigation measures were implemented by
improving the internal environment, enhancing dissemination of
information and conducting specific inspections, among others, to
address material risks of the Group which had been identified and
evaluated. Key risks associated with the development of the
Group’s environmental protection business included policy
changes, receivables, investment and business
development, environmental compliance and safety management,
recruitment and staff allocation, production capacity management
and cost control. In addition to the above-mentioned material
risks, the Group has also implemented effective preventive
measures against the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic to avoid and
reduce the impact of the pandemic on project operation through
a range of measures. At the same time, ongoing effective
preventive measures were implemented at the project companies
to avoid infection of the Company’s staff. The Group has
incorporated ESG risks into the Company’s risk management
regime, including an ongoing focus on global climate change, in
particular contingency plans and reasonable response measures
to address risks which might result from extreme weather;
actively participated in the national policies and implementation
measures for “carbon reduction” and “carbon peak”; making
advanced arrangements and response measures catering to
higher mandatory emission standards for enterprises that might be
announced by the nation; facilitating staff development by
creating job opportunities and incorporating the concepts of
inclusivity and equality in the Staff Handbook and human
resources regime; and practicing defined poverty aid by
purchasing straws from local farmers to increase their income
within the context of the Company’s business in solid fulfilment of

trade

the corporate social responsibility of the Company.
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The risk of policy changes refers to the risk of failure to
respond to changes in national policies and business models in a
timely and effective manner resulting in an adverse impact on the
business of the Group. The Group has been closely monitoring
adjustments to national environmental policies and has been
actively involved in advancing national strategies and macro-
policies in tandem with the requirements of national development
strategies and environmental policies and prudent investment
principles, making adjustments to its development approach in
response to changes in environmental policies. In the meantime,
the Group has furnished advice and suggestions to relevant
policy-making authorities through industry associations and expert
teams, in a bid to ensure that the actual conditions and needs of
the industry would be taken into consideration by the nation in its
policy formulation. The Group has conducted in-depth and
detailed analysis on national industrial development strategies and
made pre-emptive moves in project deployment to explore new
business frontiers in response to national macro-control measures
and specific policies on the environmental industry. The Group
intends to seize development opportunities by employing
innovative business models, in order to accomplish the stated
objective of sustainable development.

The risk of trade receivables refers to the risk of incurring bad
debt losses that would affect the Company’s profit and solvency
owing to the failure to collect trade receivables in a timely
manner. With a strong emphasis on trade receivable
management, the Group has announced and implemented
pertinent rules and regulations to conduct regular analyses on the
overall profile of trade receivables, on the basis of which specific
call targets and plans have been formulated to ensure reasonable
trade receivable turnover periods and the effective implementation
of a mechanism for collection. Appraisals of trade receivable
collection have also been conducted to effectively implement the
clear-up of trade receivables. Regular analysis reports on trade
receivable collection, including reports on ageing management
and analysis management, have been prepared. Cross-checking
with clients has been conducted on a quarterly basis to facilitate
examination of trade receivables. Regarding commercial
customers, continuous improvements to customer credit check
have been made and a management model has gradually been
formed for screening prior to granting credit, supervision during
the granting process, and designated tracking after granting.
Flexibility in credit policies and call strategies are afforded in
relation to different customers and instant adjustments have been
made to reduce the probability of bad debt.
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The risk associated with investment and business
development refers to the risk of intense competition in the
industry affecting the Group’s business expansion capacity and
the investment return of its projects. The principal businesses of
the Group, comprising integrated biomass utilisation, hazardous
and solid waste treatment and solar energy and wind power, are
all subject to intense market competition. The Group has
refrained from unwarranted expansion, investment with
insignificant profit return and low price competition and has
optimised the project evaluation system and procedure with the
establishment of the investment project review committee, which
conducts examination on investment project risks to enhance the
quality of investment project evaluation and strengthen risk
management prior to investment in projects. The Group places a
strong emphasis on building partnerships and engaging in friendly
information sharing with leading fellow enterprises in the industry
to closely monitor movements and trends in the industry. Market
information is generated on a regular basis to facilitate
comprehensive monitoring and analysis of competitors, market
status, market investment information, national policies and
regulations, status of industry development, frontier developments
in technology and organisational management, among others.
Internal information such as the regular monthly report on market
development information and the annual industry analysis report
and national market investment guide are prepared. Relevant
competition strategies are formulated on a regular basis
according to market trends. Regular meetings are held for project
companies to facilitate information-sharing and put together
different ideas. Reference materials in the forms of minutes,
documents and special-topic publications are provided to relevant
departments for studying and to the management as reference
for decision-making.
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The risk associated with environmental compliance and
safety management can be distinguished into the risk
associated with environmental compliance and the risk associated
with safety management. The risk associated with environmental
compliance refers to the risk of exceeding environmental emission
limits, safety incidents and adverse external conditions resulting in
an adverse impact on project construction and operation. The risk
of safety management refers to the risk of safety liability incidents
occurring as a result of deficiencies in the safety management
imperfections in the safety management system and
ineffective implementation of safety management measures. The

regime,

Group has persisted in work design optimisation, stringent quality
control over project construction and efficiency upgrade for
equipment in a bid to enhance project management standards.
The Group has also exercised stringent control over emission
indicators to ensure the compliance with emission standards. The
Group has consistently procured the project companies to
commence requisite technological upgrades and has developed a
centralised environmental information platform and appointed
qualified third-party inspection bodies to conduct environmental
monitoring according to plans. The Group has continued to
disclose the environmental emission data of its waste-to-energy
projects in a proactive move to subject itself to the supervision of
the general public. The Group has upheld the principle of “safety
comes first in development” and continued to improve, as well as
resolutely and consistently implement, its safety management
regime in fulfillment of its responsibility in safety management. The
Group has conducted itself in strict accordance with the ESHS
management regime with consistent implementation of the
“Standard Operating Procedure” (“SOP”) and formulation of
contingency plans for accidents. Safety inspections within the
system have been conducted monthly and quarterly to identify
and eliminate safety hazards and avoid safety liability incidents.
The Group has also conducted numerous sessions of safety
training for the learning of safety management knowledge and
enhancement of safety risk awareness, with a view to curbing any
potential risks at source and improving its safety management
standards. Property and liability insurances have been purchased
based on the specific conditions of individual projects to transfer
the risks as necessary.
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The risk associated with recruitment and staff allocation
refers to the insufficiency of existing staff backup capacity or
establishment for important functions and positions, or inability to
recruit sufficient management and technical personnel (especially
the recruitment of technology team leaders) and experienced staff
affecting the fulflment of the Company’s strategic and operating
goals. The Group has sought to enhance its efficiency in
recruitment and expand its recruitment channels through a variety
of means, such as formulating plans to recruit talents from
relevant specialised tertiary colleges and exploring the
establishment of a long-term staff recruitment mechanism. We
have also commenced the assessment of specialised job skills to
procure a better match between job requirements with staff
competence. The Group is committed to improving its overall
human resources management standard with greater efforts to
maintain and manage staff relations to enhance staff unity and
solidarity. Active efforts are being made to investigate the reasons
for staff resignation and improve relevant management processes,
with a view to making anticipatory preparations that would
alleviate the adverse impact of staff turnover on the Company’s
production and operation. More duty-specific training sessions
have been provided to enhance staff performance at job
positions.

The risk associated with production capacity management
refers to the inability to take into full consideration of market
conditions (such as the types, quality and quantity of household
waste or hazardous waste and the volume of biomass fuel
available for collection and treatment) when designing the
production capacity of the projects or insufficiency or excess in
production capacity (household waste, hazardous waste and
biomass processing capacities, among others) owing to macro-
economic factors and peer competition (for example, changes in
the volume of intake of industrial sewage and hazardous waste),
resulting in higher operating cost which affected investment
returns. The Group continues to enhance information collection
and increase the volume of information collection, storage and
allocation during the stages of project development, design,
construction and operation, especially information regarding the
tenders and price-bidding of medium to large waste-generating
enterprises, in order to maximise the core client base of the
projects and safeguard the stable production and long-term
development of the projects. The Group has upgraded its project
technologies and competence in materials research and
development as well as increased technological input to gradually
enhance its ability to handle sophisticated materials, so as to
broaden the scope of market expansion through technical
competence. The Group has also continued to promote the
experience of advanced projects to enhance the standard of
project construction and operation, while driving technological
innovation and motivating staff vigour to lower operating cost and
increase market competitiveness by improving our operating
efficiency, thereby ensuring the full utilisation of project capacity.
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The risk associated with cost control refers to investment
overruns as a result of inadequate assessment of essential factors
such as technical requirements, design scheme, work schedule
requirements, project work quality and fundamental conditions for
construction, or inaccurate calculation of work volume during the
stage of construction work budget. The Group has been engaged
in ongoing efforts to enhance standardisation of work sites by
consistently substantiating its suppliers’ list to enable selection of
high-calibre partners while exercising reasonable control over
budgets and cost estimation. During the year, the Group
enhanced depth and quality of the feasibility study report to
closely integrate with the design tasks and increase the accuracy
of budget estimations. The furnishing of information between the
equipment manufacturers and the design institutes has been
expedited, while the information supply sequence among various
equipment was internally clarified to facilitate the streamlining and
implementation of the accountability system for incorporation into
the appraisal. Thorough understanding of investment status of
similar projects was sought at the preliminary stage; thorough
consideration was given to the feasibility and economics of the
technical processes at the stage of feasibility study; and
construction work was carried out in strict accordance with the
design scheme at the construction stage. Equipment tenders
commenced only after the completion of preliminary procedures.
Work progress requirements were strictly specified with specific
penalty terms in the tenders for civil engineering and design
contractors.
implemented at each milestone during the course of construction.
Optimised designs were sought to maximise reduction in cost of
construction. The suppliers’ list was expanded and
communication with suppliers (construction work contractors in

Control measures and assessments were

particular) was enhanced to lower cost of construction.
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Risks associated with the COVID-19 pandemic. In 2022, the
production at waste-generating enterprises was compromised by
the pandemic and the control measures adopted, resulting in
reduced supply of hazardous waste raw materials and demand for
treatment. Meanwhile, control over transport and the movement
of personnel has imposed restrictions on the transportation of
biomass fuel and eco-friendly consumables, resulting in significant
fluctuations
consumables, thereby affecting the stability of the operation of
project companies. Undersupply of raw materials will prevent
projects from reaching their design capacities, thereby resulting in

in the prices of raw materials and eco-friendly

an adverse impact on the Company’s operations. Leveraging its
scale advantage, the Group has continued to drive technological
innovation and motivate staff vigour, while promoting the
experience of advanced projects to enhance production and
operational management. Biomass fuel has been put to
reasonable use and resources within the system have also been
allocated in a reasonable manner. In connection with solid waste
raw materials, more types of materials have been processed in
greater volumes. Eco-friendly consumables have been put to
reasonable use to enhance efficiency. Ongoing effort has been
made to broaden suppliers’ channels, such that reasonable
volumes could be maintained to ensure uninterrupted collection
and transportation of raw materials wherever possible and
minimise impact on the Company. As the fight against the
pandemic has entered a new stage, the Company continues to
closely monitor staff health and the health impact of the epidemic
is prevented through body temperature monitoring, distribution
and use of anti-epidemic supplies and encouraging vaccination, in
an effort to safeguard the normal operation of the Company’s
production and business.
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Global climate change has left a material impact on the
environment for human survival, as environmental protection has
become a collective obligation and responsibility for all mankind.
As an enterprise dedicated to environmental improvement, the
Group has been consistently monitoring issues relating to global
climate change. The Group drives environmental protection and
improvement on a continuous basis primarily in connection with
“carbon reduction”, protection and reasonable use of water
resources and soil protection and remediation, among others. The
Group’s household waste-to-energy projects and biomass power
generation projects have effectively utilised waste to generate
green power and genuinely avoided the massive emission of
carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gas and polluted gas
arising from unrestrained incineration or natural degradation
through the centralised treatment of household waste and
biological straws, achieving considerable carbon reduction even
taking into account emissions from production operations to
facilitate improvements in atmospheric conditions. Through the
non-hazardous, recycling and reduction treatment of household
waste, biological straw and hazardous solid waste, the pollution of
natural water bodies and soil by such substances has been
avoided. The projects have also enhanced the use of reclaimed
water (processed sewage) through technical means and achieved
internal recycled use of water resources, resulting in higher
efficiency in the utilisation of water resources and reduction in
sewage discharge. Some projects have even achieved zero
discharge. During the year, effective preventive measures were
adopted against risks for the Company’s project construction and
operation that might result from natural calamities, such as flood,
hailstorm, persistent high or low temperature, torrential rain, gale
and thunderstorm, arising from extreme weather conditions. At the
outset of project preparation, efforts were made in site selection
to avoid as far as practicable geographic locations prone to
natural disasters, such as seismic belts, sedimentation, typhoon
and flood, and select locations where transport access is not
easily affected by extreme weather. During the stage of project
design, the first factor to be taken into consideration is the
response to extreme weather. The ability to withstand disasters
and lower the risk of projects suffering from the adverse impact
of extreme weather was strengthened by the enhancement of the
project construction standard. During project operation, plans are
drawn up to implement safety measures during extreme weather,
while drills are being organised to enhance our ability to deal with
such conditions. For projects susceptible to the impact of
extreme weather, such as solar energy projects and wind power
projects, relevant insurance policies have been taken out, in
addition to due preparations in the stages of project design,
construction and operation, to avoid significant loss. Meanwhile,
the Group has actively participated in and supported relevant
government authorities in the implementation of environmental
protection projects conducive to the attainment of Dual Carbon,
especially projects on safe disposal of waste, clean renewable
energy and environmental remediation projects relating to soil, the
atmosphere and water bodies, striving to exceed national
standards in project design and construction in a persistent effort
to contribute to the improvement of the environment. Local job
opportunities have increased as our projects sought to recruit
workers in nearby areas, while improvements to corporate
systems and procedures have been made to fulfil the aim of co-
prosperity and equality while enhancing staff sense of belonging
and identity. Our biomass treatment projects have acquired large
volumes of agricultural waste, turning trash into valuables and
increasing income for local farmers to bring about social benefits
of the Company.
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The Group has incorporated ESG-related risks into the risk
management regime of the Company . The Board (Audit and Risk
Management Committee) is responsible for formulating the
Group’s strategic directions. In the formulation of strategic goals
and directions of development, ESG-related areas, including
climate change and corporate social responsibility, are taken into
consideration and goals are set for the management and
supervision is exercised over the attainment of such goals. Aiming
to safeguard the attainment of the Company’s strategic and
business goals, the management (including the functional
departments at the headquarters) identifies ESG-related risks.
Risks subject to key control are designated annually and control
goals are determined according to the duties of personnel at
respective ranks. Sufficient resources are provided and risk
control principals are required to implement such goals and
improve the control measures on an ongoing basis to ultimately
supervise the achievement of the control goals. The project
companies of the Company (under the leadership of the business
centre) implemented effective control
measures for the attainment of the control goals. The principals of
the project company will duly perform their duties to provide
leadership over the implementation of the control measures by the
execution departments and personnel in order to achieve the

have formulated and

control goals.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT

The Group has continued to make improvements to its ESHS
management system, driving ongoing upgrades in the external as
well as internal management of environment, safety, occupational
health and social responsibility and
regulated and delicacy management to maximise control over
relevant risks and eliminate management deficiencies.

improving systematic,
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In 2022, the Group focused on enhancing management over
high-risk zones and operations in safety management in line with
the objective of “safe production and compliant emission”. Solid
efforts were made to drive the standardisation of safe production
and building of a dual prevention regime. The Group has
compiled and published 11 standard regulatory procedures for
high-risk operations and launched 24 joint inspections on specific
areas, while achieving 100% completion of our dual prevention
regime in an effective improvement of the standardisation and
reliability of our safety management work. Regarding
management, management
system was updated for better applicability with enhanced
process supervision and preemptive warning to ensure compliant
emission. In connection with epidemic prevention, the Group
vigorously fulfilled its social responsibilities as it assisted local

environmental the environmental

governments of affected areas to handle infected medical waste
on top of persistent implementation of normalised epidemic
control received commendations and honours
awarded by the government.

measures and

The performance of the operations and environmental services of
the Group’s projects are gauged in strict adherence to relevant
standards and requirements of their respective environmental
impact assessment reports, taking into account the expectations
of the neighboring communities. Major laws, regulations and
standards applicable to the Group’s projects include the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Standard for
Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration
(GB18485—2014), Directive 2010/75/EU and its relevant Annexes/
Amendments, the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Thermal
Power Plants (GB13223-2011), the Standard for Pollution Control
on the Hazardous Waste Landfill (GB18598-2019) and the
Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Incineration
(GB18484-2020), among others. No breach of the said laws and
regulations and environmental protection standards resulting in
significant loss for and impact to the Group was recorded in
2022.
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TtEERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group believes that maintaining sound and high standards of
corporate governance is not only a key element in safeguarding
the interest of the Shareholders but also creating long term value
for all relevant stakeholders by enhancing the corporate value,
accountability and transparency of the Group.

The Group has constantly reinforced its internal control, risk
prevention and management, corporate governance through a set
of rules and regulations. The Group strives to inculcate the
corporate governance, risk management and sustainable
development concept into the Company’s operation and business
for cultivating the strong backup to the breakthrough

development of the Company’s business.

The Group understands that corporate governance and ESG
performance is a good reflection of the management capability of
its performance
risks or impacts.
is not only a prerequisite for the effective

a company, including in dealing with

environmental and social Good corporate
governance
management of ESG issues, but also provides the cornerstone
needed to manage environmental and social risks, so as to
ensure that accountability is undertaken and fulfilled seriously by
the senior management of a company. The Board emphasises in
creating

delivering long-term value to all stakeholders.

long-term sustainable growth for Shareholders and

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) has been adopted by the
Board as the guidelines of corporate governance practices of the
Company. During the year of 2022, the Company fully complied
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.
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Corporate culture
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Responsibilities
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Leadership and independence ’
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Composition and nomination
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AN EFFECTIVE BOARD
Audit and risk oversight = 34 =
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Remuneration
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Shareholders’ rights and AGM

BEL R SN
Road map to achieve an effective Board
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CORPORATE CULTURE 1. RRXiE

Everbright Greentech has all along been adhering to the HRFEERR—ERA[BEERIRE &£
corporate mission of “Devoted to Ecology and Environment SEBHEINCECGAMEIEELZIRE
for a Beautiful China” and the corporate vision of “Creating BE REEZHEEFCINCERES B
Better Investment Value and Undertaking More Social TEBE BRE - BFE - BElF - BE
Responsibility”, and practising the core values of corporate moBOB- -BEHN BEAHNZLER
with sentiments, quality, characteristics, innovation, bottom o

line, reputation, vitality and responsibility.
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Everbright Greentech has formally adopted the Everbright
Group Culture (the “Everbright Culture”) as the corporate
culture of the Company, which has been formally
disseminated to all employees. Staff is the valuable asset of
the Company. Specific sessions were conducted by the
Company for collecting opinions from the staff of project
companies and headquarters. The topics of those sessions
related to technical management, construction work
management, talent grooming, remuneration and incentive,
team integration, etc. Senior management would listen to
their views and suggestions to reconsider or adjust its
operational and management thinking to formulate
management regimes and systems which are compatible
with its corporate development, so as to promote the spirit
of the Everbright Culture. Employees may also make formal
reports to the Audit and Risk Management Committee
through various whistleblowing channels. The Board
acknowledges that a healthy corporate culture is the core of
sound governance and that the Everbright Culture is a
corporate culture that will assist the Company in its pursuit
of success. As an environmental protection enterprise, the
Company’s business is closely related to the development
and promotion of ESG. The formal and well-established
sustainability strategies and objectives, together with various
financial incentives for promoting the development of the
Company’s business, safety, technology and staff, not only
provide the Company a clear direction, but also fulfil the
Everbright Culture pragmatically.
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Corporate Culture

X

-

' Home Culture
REXE

To foster at Everbright Greentech a cradle
for growth, a support for the pursuit of
dreams and a shelter for rest for every
employee in Everbright Greentech, a
“Heartwarming Home" based on the ideal
of “One Everbright”.

FEHAFERRUABERKNGERERAR
MEMNEE  Z2HH  ERREE - U
[—EYeRIBmER  ZENRRRE] -

' Sunshine Culture
f& 30k

To build a sunshine workplace ecosystem
underpinned by an ethos of mutual
appreciation and forbearance that provides
robust support as Everbright Greentech
takes on new challenges.

MBS ERERE HEERNBHME
BEBICERE - BICRGERFDEN
BRPRASE

' Culture of Undertaking
r’EX

To quest for “First-rate Quality and
Excellence” with a venturous spirit and
forge first-rate enterprises, products and
management.

ZoMBISEM R BREH R g
B FEl—RA%E - —REMRM—RERE -

' Business Culture
a4

To drive corporate development on the
basis of modern business culture and
ethics to ensure that Everbright Greentech
becomes a well-trusted and respected
enterprise in market competition as well as
cooperation.

ZUARR R CATEER BT P XRR -
FERARBRBRREMSHFESFPRBER
B BR{EREMDE -
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The specific indicators or measures proposed to assess and
monitor the promotion of each corporate culture are set out
in the Company’s 2022 Sustainability Report. The 2022
Sustainability Report of Everbright Greentech will be
published at the same time as the posting of this Annual
Report and will be uploaded on the “CSR” column of the
Company’s website homepage and on the website of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

By promoting the Everbright Culture, the Company
managed to offset 3,050,914 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions in 2022. The Company believes that
effective response to ESG and economic challenges is the
foundation for the long-term success of a company. It
directly enables the Company to transform its business, to
build up an environment, resources, energy, climate four-in-
one carbon neutral comprehensive service provider, and to
achieve excellent and long-term financial performance that
are in line with the national long-term plan of Dual Carbon
strategy.

Board Meetings

During the year of 2022, the Board held 5 meetings. In
addition to Board meetings, the Chairman held 1 meeting
with Independent Non-executive Directors annually without
the presence of Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors. The Board has considered, approved, reviewed
and/or formulated the matters summarised below, including
but not limited to:

° Financial results of the Company;
° Reports and recommendations from the Board
committees;

° Announcements/reports for publication, including
release of interim and annual report and sustainability
report;

° Declaration of interim dividend and recommendation of
final dividend;

° The effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and
risk management systems for the year of 2022;
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Registration and issuance of renminbi perpetual
medium-term notes;

Profit warning announcement;

Connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions;

Revision of Shareholders Communication Policy;
Revision of Whistleblowing Policy;

Changes of Non-executive Director and Chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company;

Change of Executive Directors of the Company;
Investment transactions;

The adequacy of the Company’s relevant resources,
staff qualifications and experience, and training
programmes received by staff and budgets in
accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions

and the Company’s ESG performance and reporting;

Any possible improprieties raised out through the
Whistleblowing Policy; and

Training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management.
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At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of regular Board
meetings is given to all Directors and an agenda together
with Board papers are sent to all Directors no less than 3
days before the date of meeting. All Directors are given
opportunity to include in the agenda any other matter that
they would like to discuss in the meeting. With respect to
the Board committee meetings, reasonable prior notice is
given to all committee members. All Directors and Board
committee members are urged to attend the Board
meetings and Board committee meetings in person. For the
Directors and committee members who are unable to
attend the meeting in person, participation through
electronic means will be arranged and available.

Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a
matter being considered in the Board meeting, he/she will
be abstained from voting. Independent Non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at
meetings dealing with such conflict of interest issues.

When approving a connected transaction, apart from the
fairness of the agreement terms, the Independent
Non-executive Directors also consider the commercial
rationale and the benefits brought by the proposed
transaction to the business of the Group.
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Attendance records of Meetings and Trainings of
Directors of the Company in 2022

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and the
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Board Committees Meetings Attendance

HEEEZE28:
Audit and Risk
Management Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors Meeting™ Meeting Meeting™ Meeting™ AGM®
Exg ZRRAKRER FHEES REZER KRB F

EEpE 28" ZEgg30 230 23O Rgo
HUANG Haiging® 2/2 C
=HiBFR
WANG Tianyi® 3/3 C 1/1 C 1/1
EXREO
QIAN Xiaodong 5/5 M 0/0 M 11
BER
YANG Zhigiang® 5/56 M 1/1
ot
LO Kam Fan 5/5 M 11
ZHU Fugang®
RIERO
GUO Ying 5/5 M 11
BE
SONG Jian 4/5 M 1/1
Rz
CHOW Siu Lui 5/5 M 3/3 C 0/0 M 171 M 11
B\
Philip TSAO 5/56 M 3/3 M 0/0 C 171 M 1/1
BERE
YAN Houmin 4/5 M 2/3 M 0/0 M 171 M 01
BER

Remarks: it

Board and Board Committees Membership: EFEREFLZEEKE

C — Chairman C— xR

M — Member
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Notes:

(1) Number of meetings attended/held.

) Appointed as Chairman of the Board and Non-executive
Director with effect from 18 June 2022.

3) Resigned as Chairman of the Board and Non-executive
Director with effect from 18 June 2022.

(4) Resigned as Executive Director with effect from 2 December
2022.

5) Appointed as Executive Director with effect from
15 December 2022.

During the meetings, Independent Non-executive Directors,
based on their respective expertise and experience as well
as the perspectives of minority Shareholders, actively
brought out valuable opinions and queries in order to allow
the Board to have comprehensive analysis and decisions on
each matter. According to the Board evaluation result in
2022, it was recognised that the Directors had been able to
seek external independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances to assist them in the performance of their
duties as reasonably required, had made significant
contribution to the Board by actively participating in the
Board and committees meetings and had provided
independent, constructive and well-founded opinions.

According to the Board evaluation result in 2021, the
Company Secretary has reported to the Board on the
corporate governance update of the Listing Rules and the
training on “Integrity Governance for Directors” presented by
Independent Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong
for the Directors to attend. Other than the above, the
Directors have also read the information on “Board Diversity
& Inclusion in Focus Repository” and the “ESG in Practice”
of ESG Academy websites, which are launched by HKEX,
and watched the online courses on Sustainability Reporting
Standards and TCFD Capacity Building Series in China.
They have also read regulatory/legal updates and other
materials pertinent to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
To meet the expectations and practical needs of the
Directors, the Company Secretary has obtained the views of
the Directors through a questionnaire and has consolidated
their views, which will be progressively advanced as
appropriate.
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Records of training received by each existing Board
member in 2022 are summarised below:

Name of Directors EEnA
HUANG Haiging* =585
QIAN Xiaodong R
LO Kam Fan E 7 E)
ZHU Fugang** =]
GUO Ying B
SONG Jian N
CHOW Siu Lui N
Philip TSAO BRE
YAN Houmin BERE

Remarks:

A — Attending seminar(s)/forum(s) and/or giving talk(s).
B — Reading materials.

C — Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s).

Notes:
* Appointed as Chairman of the Board and Non-executive
Director with effect from 18 June 2022.

Appointed as Executive Director with effect from

15 December 2022.

*%

Taking an Active Interest in the Company’s Affair

Other than attending regular meetings, the Directors also
take an active interest in the Company’s affairs and obtain
a general understanding of its business. Since the outbreak
of the pandemic, traffic has been blocked, therefore the
Executive Directors visited the project companies when the
pandemic was under control, or monitored project operation
and employee health and safety through electronic
communications from time to time.

Communication is critical to good governance. The valuable
recommendations contributed by each Board committee
have received serious attention by the Board and the Board
takes proactive actions to put the recommendations in
place. The Independent Non-executive Directors, in
particular Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, chairman of the Audit and
Risk Management Committee, made practical
recommendations in facilitating the Board to focus on ESG
related risks and opportunities.
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In line with the legal and regulatory development and
investor’'s expectations, the Company has established a
regulatory framework for sustainable development. The
Sustainability Committee with terms of reference is chaired
by the Chief Executive Officer with 3 Independent
Non-executive Directors as members. Members of the
committee have direct access to the latest development in
the Company’s operations and talent cultivation in the
meeting. From the perspective of sustainable development,
each Independent Non-executive Director, with their
knowledge and experience, can provide the management of
the Company with more pertinent and directional advice to
help the Company manage risks and capture opportunities.
In 2022, the Sustainability Committee reviewed the 2021
Sustainability Report, and discussed the latest information
on ESG disclosure requirements and sustainability
strategies.

According to the assessment of the Nomination Committee,
our Directors are able to devote sufficient time and effort to
perform their duties, despite some of them are holding
multiple directorship positions or important tasks in
universities.

Policies and Procedures

The Company adopted and implemented a series of policies
and procedures to ensure the good corporate governance
is maintained, including but not limited to Risk Management
Policy, Policy and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information, Whistleblowing Policy and Shareholders
Communication Policy. Those policies and procedures are
reviewed and monitored periodically.
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Policy and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information

To enhance the awareness of the specified procedures of
handling inside information and the importance of
compliance with the regulations of insider dealing, the
Board has formally adopted the Policy and Procedures on
Disclosure of Inside Information which contains the
guidelines to the Directors and the relevant employees,
including certain employees of the Company, certain
directors or employees of its subsidiaries (the “Relevant
Employees”) to ensure that the inside information of the
Company is to be disseminated to the public in an equal
and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations. The monitoring system is established to set
up formal escalation path of important information in relation
to the business, finance and operations of the Group and
such information is escalated to headquarters in a timely
manner. Chief Executive Officer, in the assistance of the
finance management department and company secretarial
department, determines whether such information
constitutes inside information within the meaning of Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”) and whether disclosure
requirements are needed to be fulfilled. External advisers
may be engaged throughout the process if needed.

Such policy, together with the enforcement actions taken by
the Securities and Futures Commission relating to insider
dealing, were circulated to the Relevant Employees from
time to time.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code and all
Directors confirmed that they complied with the provisions
of the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Written guidelines were established for the Relevant
Employees, in respect of their dealing in the Company’s
securities.
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Whistleblowing Policy

In order to maintain business integrity and promote a
healthy working culture, a fair and effective Whistleblowing
Policy, complementing with a confidential handling
mechanism, is adopted. The scope and purpose of the
Whistleblowing Policy is stated in the Company’s website at
https://www.ebgreentech.com/en/about/ewp.php.

As stated in the Whistleblowing Policy, the Company
prohibits the disclosure of identity of the whistleblower
without consent, unless otherwise specified by law. Case(s)
can be submitted, with name or without name, by post,
addressed to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong or office in Shenzhen, which are currently
located respectively at Room 3602, 36/F., Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or West Wing,
27/F, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan Avenue,
Futian District, Shenzhen, China, or by email (email address:
report@ebgreentech.com), for the attention of Audit and Risk
Management Committee and Chief Executive Officer.

A well-defined whistleblowing and reporting mechanism can
increase the trustfulness of the whistleblower and the
whistleblower protection is being enhanced through effective
awareness-rising, communication, and training. The
whistleblowing channel can be accessed on the Company’s
website, Staff Handbook, intranet, sustainability report and
annual report. An induction briefing to new joiners be
conducted for providing clear explanation on their right and
obligations when disclosing wrongdoing. The Group is
committed to protecting the privacy of whistleblowers and
providing a reporting mechanism for whistleblowers or those
involved in the investigation of whistleblowing cases to
protect them from harmful acts such as harassment,
intimidation, bullying or unreasonable negative performance.
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All whistleblowing cases and the investigation results will be
discussed in the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meetings and report the same to the Board on semi-annual
basis. During 2022, there were 3 cases reported through
the whistleblowing channels. No cases were refused to be
reported. After the investigation, these cases were mainly
caused by internal mismanagement and miscommunication
issues, and were not involved misconduct, fraudulent
activities, or malpractices in any matter related to the
Group. The necessary measures and actions were
immediately undertaken by the management for these
cases.

Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy

Our Staff Handbook and Code of Corporate Conduct (Trial)
provide that all employees are strictly prohibited to accept
or offer bribes from anyone while handling Company’s
affairs, and should stay vigilant against corruption and report
any cases in accordance with the Whistleblowing Policy in a
timely manner if they become aware of or reasonably
suspect that individuals or enterprises engaged in business
transactions with the Group which might involved in
corruption. Moreover, staff should surrender gifts or
souvenirs provided by individuals or enterprises engaged in
business transactions with the Group, and should refuse any
unreasonable hospitality to avoid compromising their
business judgement.

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for formulating business policies
and strategies, directing and supervising management of the
Group, adopting and monitoring internal business and
management control, approving and monitoring annual
budgets and business plans, reviewing operational and
financial performance, reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s systems of corporate governance, ESG, internal
control, and risk management. It oversees the task of
making decisions in the best interest of the Company and
maximising the financial performance of the Company. With
the assistance of each Board committee, the Company has
effectively monitored every management system, formulated
clear and forward-looking strategies, promoted the
Everbright Culture by example, and actively advanced
business transformation and seized the business
opportunities for rapid development under the national Dual
Carbon policy.
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The Board has delegated the daily operations and the
execution of policies and strategies developed by the Board
by formulating and implementing of annual work plans and
medium-term development plans for the Group to the
Management Committee. The Company formalised the
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
Management Committee, including but not limited to, the
Management Committee has no authority to approve any
mergers and acquisitions and non-recurring business
projects. Management Committee holds meeting every
month for discussing and reviewing the investment
proposals, key personnel matters and appraisals, project
schedules, budget executions, etc. Management Committee
has been actively implementing the strategies and targets
issued by the Board, practising the Everbright Culture and
passing it on to the staff of all departments; pragmatically
carrying out the governance of the management system and
controlling the environmental, social and governance of the
operation of each project, the Company has not violated
any environmental laws and regulations and environmental
standards, and since 2020, the Company has maintained a
work-related mortality rate of zero.

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely
Audit and Risk Management Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, to oversee the
particular aspect of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties. The Board plays a guiding and
monitoring role through the assistance of each Board
committee.
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The Board acknowledges that it should take leadership for
and accountability in promoting a top-down culture to
ensure ESG considerations are part of the business
decision-making process. Our comprehensive sustainability
governance structure ensures the smooth implementation of
sustainable development. Details of the same will be stated
in the 2022 Sustainability Report of the Company.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient
insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions taken against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities. The Directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out their
duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses and affairs
as well as unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, who is responsible for providing
Directors with board papers and related materials. The
Company provides monthly updates to the Board members
on the Company’s performance and business position to
enable them to make a balanced and understandable
assessments on the Company’s performance, position, and
prospect.

Board Evaluation

The Board recognizes that a formal, objective and open
assessment on a continuous basis can enhance the
effectiveness of governance structure of the Company.
Through the annual board evaluation exercise, each Director
can share his/her opinions and concerns to the Company,
which enhances Directors’ accountability. The evaluation
also enhances the continuing improvement and development
of the Board and the Board committees by reflecting on
their respective performance during the year, in turns
improving board effectiveness and maximising its strengths.
The Company Secretary acts as a bridge between the
Board and the management of the Company, delivers the
Board’s opinions and concerns to the management, which
in turn can take appropriate actions and report to the
Board.
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During the year under review, the Board conducted its
assessment through a questionnaire with latest information
provided on the HKEx website under “Board Diversity &
Inclusion in Focus”, which took into account 5 key board
performance and corporate governance areas, including the
structure and composition of the Board and Board
committees, performance of the Board and Board
committees, independent views, communication with
stakeholders and professional development, allowing each
Board member to rate relevant items in different areas. The
Company Secretary conducted statistics on the evaluation
results which concluded that the self-evaluation of the
Board was at a mid-to-high satisfying level, and had
reported the evaluation results to the Nomination Committee
and the Board.

LEADERSHIP AND INDEPENDENCE

From 18 June 2022, Mr. HUANG Haiging replaced the
vacancy of Mr. WANG Tianyi as the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. QIAN Xiaodong is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer is
clearly divided to ensure a balance of power and authority
and to reinforce their independence and accountability.

Mr. HUANG Haiging, being the Chairman, is responsible for
providing leadership to the Board and ensuring that the
Board functions effectively; that Directors receive in a timely
manner adequate information which is complete and reliable
and that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings. The Chairman also encourages Directors
to participate actively in and to make a full contribution to
the Board so that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company.

Mr. QIAN Xiaodong, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives and
plans as formulated and adopted by the Board and leading
the management of the Company.
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In compliance with rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors, one of whom has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting and financial management. The
Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence
set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee has reviewed and concluded that there is no
business or other relationships with the Group or
management that are likely to affect, or could affect their
independence.

Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of office held in Hong Kong and overseas listed
companies and organisations, and their other significant
commitments. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 106 to 111 of this annual report.

The Company has maintained an updated list of its
Directors identifying their roles and functions on websites of
the Company and HKEx. Independent Non-executive
Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors of the
Company.
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Independent Views

The Company firmly recognises that the independence of
the Board is critical to sound corporate governance. The
governance framework of the Company includes relevant
mechanisms to ensure a strong element of independence
on the Board, thereby enhancing its effectiveness. The
Company has a sufficient number of 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors (accounting for one-third of the Board
members) on the Board. They have been actively
participating in the Board and committee meetings,
contributing their skills, expertise and diverse backgrounds
and qualifications. The Directors may seek external
independent professional advice, where appropriate, to
assist them in performing their duties, as reasonably
requested. The independent, constructive and informed
views of the Directors contribute positively to the
formulation of the Company’s strategies and policies. The
Board is also being updated on the Company’s operations
and financial position through monthly management
updates. The Company Secretary arranges annual board
evaluations to review the implementation and effectiveness
of the above mechanisms.

COMPOSITION AND NOMINATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consisted of 9
members, including:

Mr. HUANG Haiqing (Non-executive Director and Chairman)
Mr. QIAN Xiaodong (Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LO Kam Fan (Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. ZHU Fugang (Executive Director and Vice President)
Ms. GUO Ying (Non-executive Director)
Mr. SONG Jian (Non-executive Director)
Mr. CHOW Siu Lui (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Philip TSAO (Independent Non-executive Director)
Prof. YAN Houmin (Independent Non-executive Director)

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) among one another.
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All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term. Each of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of 2 vyears and/or around 2 years. Under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), the term of service as a
Director is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election.
The Board is empowered to appoint any person as a
director to fill the casual vacancy on or as an additional
director of the Board. According to the Board Diversity
Policy and Nomination Policy, the Board considers a
candidate’s gender, experience, skill and knowledge and
competency and ability to fulfill duty of care and diligence
and fiduciary duties and recommendation by the Nomination
Committee (if any).

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Articles
of Association, Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and
Prof. YAN Houmin, are subject to re-election at the next
AGM and retirement by rotation.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. HUANG Haiging and Mr. ZHU Fugang shall
hold office only until the forthcoming AGM and shall be
eligible and offer himself for re-election.

Board Diversity

The Board believes that the ratio between Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of Shareholders and the Group and recognised the
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy. During the year,
with the assistance of the Nomination Committee, the
Board reviewed and confirmed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy. Conforming to
the international trend on board diversity, a female Director
was appointed. The Board also believes that the views and
participations of the Independent Non-executive Directors in
the Board and committee meetings provides independent
judgment on the issues relating to strategy, performance,
conflict of interest and management process to ensure that
the interests of all Shareholders are considered and
safeguarded.
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The Directors come from diverse background with varied
expertise in finance, legal and business fields. All Directors,
including Independent Non-executive Directors, have given
sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group.
Independent Non-executive Directors have provided
professional advices to the Board with their diversified
expertise and experience. In close adherence to national
strategies and seize opportunities for development
presented by Dual Carbon, the Nomination Committee
identified professional knowledge and experience in
sustainable development responsibility as being a new and
crucial selection criterion when selecting a director.
Nomination Committee has identified skills and experiences
being the measurable objectives that should be contained in
the Board and the relevant assessment was conducted:

HUANG QIAN

Haiging Xiaodong Kam Fan
Measurable 8B #BBRR ES®

objectives to the
Board Qualities required

EESUHRER FABHRBEAR

Leadership skill and Outstanding leadership qualities and (4 v

experience the ability to identify and develop

BAETREHLR the talents of other employees.
Hands-on understanding of the
Company, projects, strategies and risk
management, as well as know-how in
driving reform and growth.
AEBENAMBERE  ARBEHR
REMB TR - HARE - HE - ¥
B E IR BRIEAR - W AE (A
HBREMER -

As the Company measures its v
experience operational and strategic performance
ISR AR by reference to financial goals,
understanding finance and the financial
reporting process, and accurate financial
reporting is of paramount importance
to the Company’s success. It is also
essential to understand that the climate
change risk will directly result in financial
risk.
ERARRGL2EZHBAEREGEHE
N B AR R TR R B T B TS SRR
e R R I B R EHRAR AR
EWEZE - TRAGKELLRBREEXES
B BRRTIFTEE -

Industry experience Leadership in the environmental industry. v
TEER ERRITEER RGO -

Financial skill and
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Measurable
objectives to the
Board
EEZgTEESR

Marketing
experience

R

Government
experience

Corporate
governance
experience

REERER

Knowledge on
sustainability and
corporate
responsibility

YRR EEREME
BEENRHE

Risk management
experience
EkR E IR

Qualities required

FrEBHBEAR

Understanding the sustainable development
trends and seize opportunities presented
by national environmental policies on
reduction of carbon emission to explore
new business. Achieving the Company’'s
business growth through product
optimisation and development of new
businesses. Paying special attention to
the development of overseas markets in
order to diversify future development.
TRUHEZERBE  EERRBRR
PERIK R BT R - BBBLER
MRBHEBRERADREBNEE -
REBRARZHECERE - FHIBTEHN
WS EE -

Experience in liaison with the government.
The environmental business is subject to
stringent regulation and under the direct
impact of governmental behaviour and
socio-economic trends.

ABEERTHELER - RREBZIE

REE WEERIBFTAMNLER
EBENTE -

Supporting and providing recommendations
on the system of Board and management
accountability to enhance transparency,
with the ultimate aim of safeguarding
Shareholders’ interests, and creating long-
term value for all relevant stakeholders.

ZRREEERMNEEEMNERRMR
& EINBERE - REBRRMNE AL E
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Possessing expertise and know-how
for issues relating to climate related
topics, enhancing Board supervision over
sustainable development and ensuring
the achievement of strategies and
delivery of long-term shareholders and
stakeholders’ value under a responsible
sustainable business model.
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Supervising risk exposures and
opportunities of the Company from the
perspective of the Board (including ESG
risks and opportunities).
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Directors

-
HUANG QIAN LO ZHU GUO SONG CHOW Philip YAN
Haiqing Xiaodong Kam Fan Fugang Ying Jian Siu Lui TSAO Houmin

Measurable =8B B#BRR E&BH KIER BE Rt HBIE EBERE RBRER

objectives to the

Board Qualities required

EEEUHEER FFEBHRBEAR

Talent management Conducive to the Company’s effort to v (4

ATER attract, motivate and retain valuable
and talented staff to ensure the
continuous supply of talents during
the implementation of the Company’s
strategies. Having a good understanding
of the implications of “diversity and
inclusivity” and dedicated to the
promotion of employee diversity,
especially gender diversity.
BYRARERS HBNBEEEE
REAHHETL  UBEERREBARR
REEMBREPFEREAT - HZTH
BINEEE —ENRH  RNHEDHES
Zft - BRIRMBIZ Tt -

Nomination Committee REZEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. HUANG RAZEeRKAESEIRENBELLE
Haiging (chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and all 3 (XF)  ERZEIRBULIERNTESH /N
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHOW Siu Bk BAREAEREERIBRMAEN -
Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin. From 18 June BE-E__FXATN\BR Z885%4%
2022, Mr. HUANG Haiging replaced the vacancy of BEEITREAENTREZESIEAOR
Mr. WANG Tianyi as the chairman of the Nomination - RZE_—_FANEZEEKERKE D
Committee. Details of the committee’s membership and FEEEEE  VE N AR EEGIH -

members’ attendance records during 2022 are set out on
page 63 of this report.
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The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board, making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, reviewing and reporting the board
diversity to the Board and considering the need for
identifying suitable persons to become directors and made
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the
websites of both the Company and HKEX.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 1 Nomination
Committee meeting was held. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size, composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) and performance of the
Board and the qualification and experience of each of the
Directors according to the Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee has
considered the independence of each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors and assessed the qualification and
experience of the Directors to be retired and entitled to be
re-elected at the AGM. During the year, the Nomination
Committee also reviewed the appointments of Mr. HUANG
Haiging, Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board,
and Mr. ZHU Fugang, Executive Director and Vice
President, and reviewed the diversity of the Board following
the changes of Directors. The aforesaid approved matters
and review results were recommended to the Board for
consideration.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, length of service, skills
and/or professional experience. Other than the above
factors, the Company will also consider factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidate(s) will bring to the
Board.
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In consideration with the strategies and objectives of the
Company, the Nomination Committee takes a prime role on
board recruitment, including the appointment,
re-appointment or/and redesignation of the Director(s), to
ensure the Board possesses a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirement
of the business of the Company with a special focus on
female directors with the appropriate skills or knowledge.
When considering a candidate nominated for directorship or
a director’'s proposed re-appointment, the Nomination
Committee will make reference to certain selection criteria,
such as potential time commitment for the Board/
committees responsibilities, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience in environmental industry,
independence of the candidate and governmental or
geopolitical expertise. Currently, the Board comprises 9
members, including 1 female director, with a male-to-female
ratio of 8:1. The Company will endeavour to achieve a
board with at least 20% female directors in the next 3 to 5
years, provided that in making such appointments, the
Directors (i) are satisfied with the qualifications and
experience of the candidates concerned after a reasonable
review process based on the above criteria; and (ii)
discharge their fiduciary duties, so as to act for the interest
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Nomination committee reviews annually the structure, size
and diversity of the Board, external agencies for collecting
impartial opinion in the nomination procedure may be
engaged if necessary. The Board, having the ultimate
responsibility for selection and appointment of Director(s),
will contemplate the recommendations from the Nomination
Committee when considering candidate(s) to be appointed
or re-appointed as Director(s).
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The Company recognises the importance of Board
succession planning to ensure optimal continuity and that
the Board is composed of members with proper and
relevant expertise and skills to govern and strengthen the
Company effectively. To empower the basis of talent pool of
potential candidates, the Company continues to develop a
broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced
employees and that, in time, their skills will prepare them for
the positions of senior management and directorship, by a

series of training courses.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the gender diversity of the workforce
(including senior management) for the year
31 December 2022. The gender diversity of the workforce is

ended
as below:

Total staff headcount: 3,580
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As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 3,580
employees, including 772 female employees and 2,808 male
employees, and approximately 22% of the employees are
female. In the Group’s future development, it will continue to
uphold the corporate culture of gender equality and diversified
development, and stay focus to the rights and interests of
female employees in employee recruitment, appointment and
promotion to ensure diversified development of the enterprise.

There are 654 middle and senior employees in the Group,
including 79 female employees and 575 male employees,
with a female-to-male ratio of 1:7. This reflects that there is
still room for female diversified development in the middle
and senior management of the Group and there is still
potential to promote female employees to the middle and
senior management. In future, on one hand, the Group will
strengthen the recruitment of female middle and senior
management personnel, and adopts a multi-channel,
multi-tiered and all-round approach to actively identify,
discover and recruit female personnel who possess certain
development potential to join the middle and senior
management. On the other hand, the Group will step up its
efforts in the training and promotion of female managers
through various means such as invitation, secondment, job
rotation and exchange to nourish female management
talents in all respects and promote female talents into the
management team in a timely manner. In doing so, the
Group offers long-term development opportunities for female
employees, and fuel potential successors to the middle and
senior management of the Group and the Board.
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The Group has incorporated gender diversity into its long-
term development strategy, and is determined to keep on
maintaining gender diversity and gender equality for the
entire workforce, and to further expand female employees
recruitment by gradually increasing their proportion in the
middle and senior employees to 14% and all female
employees proportion to 25% in the next 3 to 5 years. The
Group will actively develop and facilitate employee diversity
policies, including gender diversity by, among others,
providing targeted training for female employees, clear
career planning directions, improving various professional
skills, tapping their own potentials and establishing
corresponding supporting systems to help female
employees tackling challenges such as childbirth in the
workplace. At the same time, it is expected that the above
goals is achievable through appropriate efforts to propel the
culture of gender diversity that the Group has always been
advocating.

Everbright Greentech is committed to fostering a workplace
characterised by diversity, inclusivity and mutual respect for
all employees, regardless of their age, gender, family status,
disability, race, ethnicity, nationality, religion or politics. The
Company will not tolerate employees using any physical or
verbal harassment, bullying or other regulation violations to
discriminate against any person on the ground of the
above factors. The Group advocates to safeguard this
by a mechanism, under which everyone enjoys equal
opportunities in terms of job positions. The Company also
believes that the availability of diverse talents is closely
associated with corporate development. Hence it is
vigorously procuring talents from diverse backgrounds and
strives to foster a harmonious, inclusive and diverse
workplace for staff of different genders from different ethnic,
cultural or professional backgrounds.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board
in preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations regarding the meetings are followed.
She also acts as the secretary to the 3 Board committees
and Sustainability Committee. She prepares and keeps
detailed minutes of each Board meeting, Board committee
meeting and Sustainability Committee meeting. Within a
reasonable time after each meeting, the draft minutes are
circulated to all Directors or committee members for
comments and the final and approved version of minutes is
sent to all Directors or committee members for their
records. Board committees, including the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, all follow the applicable principles,
practices and procedures adopted in Board meetings. The
Company Secretary is also responsible for organising Board
trainings for all Directors and circulating to all Directors
materials relating to the Directors’ jobs and duties for their
review.

Ms. CHOW Wing Man possesses professional qualification
and extensive experience in discharging her duties as the
Company Secretary of the Company and she is an
employee of the Company and directly reports to the Chief
Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company Secretary of the
Company has undertaken 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As
a key adviser on corporate governance and other regulatory
compliance matters, Ms. CHOW Wing Man keeps
up-to-date with the regulatory, legal and ESG developments
relevant to the Company that she serves.
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AUDIT AND RISK OVERSIGHT

Audit and Risk Management Committee and
Accountability

The Audit and Risk Management Committee, currently
comprises all 3 Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHOW Siu Lui (chairman), Mr. Philip TSAO and
Prof. YAN Houmin. Details of the committee’s membership
and members’ attendance records during 2022 are set out
on page 63 of this report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is primarily
responsible for, including but not limited to, providing an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process,
reviewing the completeness, accuracy, clarity and fairness of
the Company’s financial statements, considering the scope,
approach and nature of both internal and external audits,
reviewing and monitoring connected transactions and
performing other duties and responsibilities as may be
assigned by the Board from time to time, etc. The terms of
reference of the Audit and Risk Management Committee are
published on the websites of both the Company and HKEX.
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The Audit and Risk Management Committee held 3 meetings
in 2022 and all minutes were kept by the Company Secretary.
The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed
with the management and the external auditor of the
Company, including but not limited to the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, significant
audit matters such as significant accounting estimates and
judgmental areas and external auditor’s audit plan, and has
reviewed and discussed the Group’s financial reporting
matters, including review of the audited financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the unaudited interim
financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2022. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee has also approved the
remuneration and the terms of engagement of the external
auditors, and recommended the respective re-election to the
Board. In order to ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and interal control functions of the Company,
the committee reviewed, discussed and monitored the works
of risk management and internal audit in 2022 and their plans
for 2023. Further, it has reviewed the compliance of
continuing connected transactions; the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function; and the investigation results of the whistleblowing
cases reported through the whistleblowing channels; approval
of the amendment of the Company’s Whistleblowing Policy;
and non-audit services. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee reported that there was no material uncertainty that
casts doubt on the Company’s going concern ability. The
aforesaid reviews were proposed to the Board for review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, Ernst & Young, the
external auditor, received the following remuneration from
the Group in connection with the provision of audit and

non-audit services to the Group:

HE-_Z-_-—#+-_A=+—RBIL=FE -
INERBAM L KSR BT ALEE
REFESRIEETRS  MAEEBRIRT
5 5B

2022 2021

—E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Annual audit services FEERE 2,700 2,600

Interim review services R HA 28 B AR 7S 300 300
Other services, includes tax service, etc. B RS  BEHRG

PR 7% & 2,448 1,000

5,448 3,900

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable statutory
requirements and accounting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in
this annual report.

Dividend Policy

Adhering to the principle of sharing the fruit of our success
with our Shareholders, the Board has adopted Dividend
Policy. Subject to certain factors, including but not limited
to, general business conditions and strategies of the
Company and the Company’s financial results and capital
requirements, the dividend payout ratio is approximately
20%.
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Risk Management and Internal Control [ B B B % g R B 4

The Group always places emphasis on risk management AEE-ESREARERENIPEZE T

and internal control. The main features of the risk X ASBERBREERGANEERE:

management system of the Group are summarised as

follows:

I, Risk Management Objective, Mission and Risk B EEr R - (& RE R fEif
Preferences

The risk management objective of the Group is to
ensure the realisation of the Company’s strategic and
operational goals through carrying out risk
management works in terms of participating in the
development and diversification of the Company’s
strategic goals and ensuring the achievement of
financial and non-financial operational goals.

The Group takes the principle of “Overall Compliance,
Minimise Weaknesses, Manage Uncertainties and
Optimise Performance based Management” as its
mission of risk management.

The risk management is guided by the medium-to-long
term strategic goals of the Group. We formulate our own
risk appetites reasonably by focusing on 6 dimensions
including “Investment, Finance, Engineering Construction,
Operation, Reputation and Human Resources” through
reliable market expansion and prudent operation
management. Moreover, we set up our quantitative early
warning values and limit values in line with our financial
and non-financial indicators and constantly optimise the
effectiveness of internal control to enhance our risk
resistance and management control capabilities.
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1.

Risk Management Structure

The risk management structure of the Group is based
on the following “Three Lines of Defense” model:

Board

The Board shall be responsible for the evaluation and
determination of the nature and level of risk it is
willing to undertake in order to achieve the strategic
targets of the Group. It shall also ensure the
establishment and maintenance of proper and
effective risk management and internal control
systems by the Group.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee shall
assume the role of supervising the overall risk
management structure of the Group and provide
advice to the Board on any risk-related matter of the
Group.

First Line of Defense

In respect of the first line of defense, each of the
business centre, the project companies, command
authority and project departments of the Group, being
the officers for risk management, shall ensure effective
implementation of risk control measures based on the
risk management system and requirements of the
Company, supervise any risk which involve in every
business operations and collect details of, and report
any risk-related incident in a timely manner.
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Second Line of Defense

The risk management department, being the second
line of defense, shall, based on the Board’s appetite,
identify and assess relevant risks and conduct
necessary monitoring in this regard, execute
appropriate supervision to ensure effective and
efficient control of all activities of all departments
internally or between different departments, as well as
evaluate and provide regular report to the Audit and
Risk Management Committee. Each functional
department at headquarters jointly deals with the
risk-related incidents reported from the first line of
defense and the comments from the Audit and Risk
Management Committee with the risk management
department.

Third Line of Defense

For the third line of defense, the internal audit
department shall carry out internal audit on a yearly
basis and ensure the effectiveness of the first and the
second lines of defense. The internal audit
department shall provide to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Board an
independent assurance as to the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

Risks (including ESG-related risks) management
process

The Board has formulated with due care a risk
management system policy and risk tolerance levels
through the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
while the management identifies and ranks major risks
according to sources of risks, scope of influence,
incidents and their potential impacts. Risks identified
have been categorised into policy changes, trade
receivables, investment and business development,
environmental compliance and safety management,
recruitment and staff allocation, capacity management
and cost control. The Company specially took “Risks
arising from COVID-19 pandemic” into consideration for
the year. Discussion in relation to the management
policies and procedures for the respective principal risk
categories exposed to the Group, the material impact
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that may have occurred or may occur in future, and the
corresponding mitigation measures is set out in the
section headed “PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 44 to 52 of this annual report. The
Group’s risks are classified according to their impact and
probability of occurrence. The ranking shall be based on
the level of remaining risk. The level of remaining risk
refers to the score value of the existing risk after taking
into account all monitoring measures currently in force.
The assessment of risk analysis results aims at
determining whether the risks identified are within our
default risk appetite and risk tolerance level. Based on
such risk assessment, the risks could be transferred,
eliminated or effectively controlled through risk mitigation
measures formulated. During the year under review, the
changes in the severity of the Company’s principal risks
are as follows:

Principal risks

(Higher/unchanged/
lower) (L#H #F TK)
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V.

ESG-related risks

The Group has incorporated ESG-related risks into its
risk management regime, including continuously
monitoring global climate change, in particular,
contingency plans and reasonable response measures
have been put in place to address risks which might
result from extreme weather; actively participating in

|“

the national “carbon reduction” and “carbon peak”
policies and their specific implementation; making prior
arrangements and responses to the possible
introduction of the increase of national mandatory
emission standards for enterprises; providing
conditions for the development of employees by
creating employment opportunities and incorporating
the concept of inclusion and equality into the Staff
Handbook and personnel system; combining the
Company’s business with straw acquisition for precise
poverty alleviation to increase the income of local
farmers, etc., so as to fulfill social responsibility of the
Company.
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Risk Control and Report

A report, which contains the implementation of risk
control measures, as well as details of the risk-related
incidents, shall be submitted to the risk management
department by each risk bearing unit on a quarterly
basis. Based on the contents reported by various
project companies and functional departments, the risk
management department will prepare Risk and Internal
Control Report and submit the same to the
management of the Company. The management of
the Company will understand the status of risk
management and optimise the relevant measures. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee provides
assistance to the Board for maintaining and
monitoring the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of Everbright Greentech.
The risk management department and internal audit
department will semiannually provide conclusive report
to the Audit and Risk Management Committee in
respect of the risk management and internal control
aspects of the Company, and adopt the risk
management and internal control plan for the next
year. In addition, the Board reviews principal risks
taken by Everbright Greentech annually. The risk
management department submits the Risk and
Internal Control Report to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee on a quarterly basis. The
Company also reviews the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems in a timely
manner through the above procedures, identifies
deficiencies timely and improves them constantly.

The Board and the Audit and Risk Management
Committee have conducted reviews on the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and
they considered all of the above were adequate.
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Internal Audit

Everbright Greentech has established the internal audit
department which shall directly report to the Audit and
Risk Management Committee. Undertaking a key role
to provide assurance to the Board of proper
maintenance and operation of the internal control
system by the management, the internal audit
department prepares internal audit report to the Audit
and Risk Management Committee and the Board for
the review of the sufficiency and effectiveness of the
internal audit functionalities. Any matter proposed in
the internal audit report shall be dealt with by the
management in a timely manner. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Board are satisfied
with the sufficiency of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.

Risks Management Culture

Sound communication and ongoing education are
among some of the effective means adopted by the
Group to cope with existing material risk and internal
Members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee actively furnish specific

control issues.

opinions to the management in relation to the
development, operations and culture building of the
Company’s risk management system, while the
management carried out the tasks of implementing
the operation of the risk management system and
promoting the risk management culture with pragmatic
efforts to strengthen the risk management awareness
of frontline staff.
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Vill.

A safe working environment is particularly important in
the environmental industry. During the year, the Group
carried out safety management works in an orderly
manner in accordance with its internal safety
management system. It conducted comprehensive
safety risk inspections on a quarterly basis, with
irregular inspections on the implementation of various
safety management systems of project companies to
identify issues and make rectifications in a timely
manner, so as to eliminate potential safety hazards.
The Company has set up an ESHS management
system to exercise systematic control over risks
relating to its operations. For details, please refer to
the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 52 to 53 of this annual report.

The environmental industry itself is already an industry
with many SOP. When experienced employees face
difficulties and risks in their daily works, they do not
want to be restricted by more policies and codes, but
a set of feasible and effective work methods.

Annual Confirmation

The risk management and internal control systems of
the Group are designed to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss, as well as to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives. The
systems take up an important role in risk
management, which is critical to achieving business
objectives. Through the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022, and
considered that the systems were effective and
sufficient during the year. The management has
provided confirmation as to the effectiveness of the
systems for the year ended 31 December 2022 to the
Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
Board.
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REMUNERATION
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Philip
TSAO (chairman), an Independent Non-executive Director,
Mr. QIAN Xiaodong, the Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer, and 2 other Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. CHOW Siu Lui and Prof. YAN
Houmin. Details of the committee’s membership and
members’ attendance records during 2022 are set out on
page 63 of this report.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
updated on 2 December 2022 and published on the websites
of both the Company and HKEx, which set out the duties of
the Remuneration Committee, including determining, with
delegated responsibilities, the remuneration packages of the
individual Executive Directors and senior management, etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee did not hold any meeting, but it has considered
the remuneration packages of Executive Directors, members
of senior management, Mr. HUANG Haiging, a newly
appointed Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Board, and Mr. ZHU Fugang, a newly appointed Executive
Director and Vice President, by way of written resolutions
with reference to the objects and objectives of the
Company. The terms of reference of Remuneration
Committee were also revised and approved by way of
written resolutions. The above approved matters and the
results of the deliberations have been submitted to the
Board for consideration.
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Remuneration Policy

A reasonable and comprehensive remuneration package is
one of the measures in attracting, retaining and motivating
experienced people of high calibre. The Company takes into
consideration a number of factors in determining
remuneration package of all level of staffs of the Company
(including Executive Directors and members of senior
management of the Company), including but not limited to
their job duties and responsibilities, performances, updated
salary index launched by independent human resource
agency and the financial and operational performances of
the Company. The remuneration of the Executive Directors
and members of the senior management of the Company
consists of fixed remuneration, double pay and performance
bonus, of which fixed remuneration includes basic salary
and cash allowance.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior

management by band for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out below:
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Number of

persons

Remuneration bands (HK$) Mg E (B oT) A8
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,0007T 4
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,0007T 0
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001 7t 23,000,0007T 0

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
5 highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.

RBCETRADMETRNATRENES
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND AGM
Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining
effective  communication with the Shareholders and the
investors and also recognises the value of providing current
and relevant information to the Shareholders and the
investors.

The Company has adopted the Shareholders
Communication Policy, which was revised during the year
and published on the Company’s website. In view of the
contents of the policy, work arrangements and the results of
the Board’s evaluation below, the Board considers that the
implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders
Communication Policy is unquestionable. The provisions
contained in such policy aim to ensure that Shareholders
and investors have timely access to comprehensive and
consistent information about the Company (including its
financial and operational performance, business plans and
strategies, significant developments, corporate governance
and corporate structure, etc.), to enhance Shareholders’
understanding and awareness of the Company and to
enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner.
Such policy sets out the means of contact for Shareholders
and investors to express their views and terms to protect
the privacy of its Shareholders.
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The Company has all along been publishing annual reports,
interim reports, circulars and results announcements in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and
posting them on the websites of both the Company and
HKEx. The Company’s website contains information
regarding the Group’s business and projects, environmental
information and green finance information, etc., and also
issues press releases containing contact details of investor
relations from time to time. The corporate communication is
available on the “Investor Relations” section of the home
page of the Company’s website. In addition, the AGM held
each year serves as a bridge between the Board and its
independent Shareholders, who can raise questions directly
to the Directors. For investors, our investor relations team
facilitates communication with investors through participating
in the strategy sessions with major brokerages, having
individual one-on-one meetings and project site visits.

Shareholder Relations

The Company understands the importance of maintaining
effective mutual communication with its Shareholders and
values every opportunity to communicate with them.

The AGM and site visit proceedings have been well
prepared to ensure that the Company will follow corporate
governance practices and Shareholders’ rights are
preserved.

The AGM was held on 17 May 2022, the Chairman of the
Board chaired the AGM and the chairman (or their
delegates) of each Board committee attended the meeting
to ensure Shareholders’ views are communicated to the
Board. Auditor of the Company was available to answer any
queries that Shareholders may raise.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“EGM Requisitionists”) shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

The EGM Requisitionists can deposit the written request at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong,
which is currently located at Room 3602, 36/F., Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The EGM
Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the objects of
the EGM, and such request must be signed by all the EGM
Requisitionists, and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the EGM
Requisitionists.

The share registrar will verify the EGM Requisitionists’
particulars in the EGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly
after confirmation from the share registrar that the EGM
Requisitionists’ request is in order, the Company Secretary
will arrange the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in
accordance with all the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. On the contrary, if the EGM Requisitionists’
request is verified not in order, the EGM Requisitionists will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will
not be convened as requested.

If such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting within 21 days, the EGM Requisitionists’ himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the EGM Requisitionists by
reason of the Board’s failure to duly convene an EGM shall
be reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to purpose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law. However, Shareholders are
requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of Association
for proposing a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above. Pursuant to Article 113
of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at a meeting, shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a
member (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose such person for
election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office
provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notices(s) are given, shall be at least 7 days
and that (if the notices are submitted after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.
The written notice must state that person’s biographical
details as required by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as Director is posted on the Company’s website.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the investor
relations whose contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations

China Everbright Greentech Limited

Room 3602, 36/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2433 6546

Email: ir@ebgreentech.com

Significant Changes in the Company’s
Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, there is no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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China Everbright Greentech Limited

1
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENREEAE

Mr. HUANG Haiqing

aged 58, is a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board and the Nomination Committee. He is also the executive
director and the chairman of the board and the chairman of the
nomination committee and the member of the remuneration
committee of CEEGL (stock code: 0257.HK, a listed intermediate
holding company of the Company). Mr. HUANG is currently a
director of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, an
indirect controlling shareholder of the Company. He holds a
doctoral degree in Economics from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. HUANG is currently a member of the
Strategic Advisory Committee and postgraduate tutor of the PBC
School of Finance of Tsinghua University, and he is also a senior
economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HUANG had served as
executive director and president of China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited, member of CPC committee and secretary of
the discipline committee (executive vice president level) of China
Everbright Bank Company Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
codes: 6818.HK and 601818.SH). He also served as division
chief level officer of Hainan Provincial Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, deputy general manager of
Pudong Branch of Bank of Shanghai, and vice mayor of Xi'an
City. Mr. HUANG joined the Board in June 2022.

Mr. QIAN Xiaodong

aged 49, is an Executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer, the
chairman of Sustainability Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee. Mr. QIAN currently serves as a director
of numerous subsidiaries and certain joint venture companies of
the Group. Prior to his position in the Company, Mr. QIAN served
as the general manager of the investment development
department of CEEGL and the general manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection Venture Capital (Shenzhen) Ltd, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CEEGL. He is also the executive
director and the vice president and the member of the disclosure
committee of CEEGL. Mr. QIAN obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
Thermal Engineering from Dalian University of Technology in the
PRC and a Master’s degree in Environment Engineering from the
Southeast University in the PRC. He has comprehensive
experience in market development of environmental protection
industry, national environmental policies and industrial trend in the
PRC. As at the date of this report, he beneficially owns 242,000
shares of the Company within the meaning of the Part XV of the
SFO. Mr. QIAN joined the Board in October 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management EERSREEAE

Mr. LO Kam Fan

aged 48, is an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. LO also serves as a director of numerous subsidiaries and
certain joint venture companies of the Group. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. LO held senior positions at a number of listed
companies on the Stock Exchange, including financial controller of
Shenzhen International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0152.HK),
financial controller and company secretary of Eco-Tek Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8169.HK), chief financial officer and
company secretary, respectively, of Wai Chun Bio-Technology
Limited (stock code: 0660.HK), Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1018.HK) and Sinopharm Tech Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8156.HK). Mr. LO obtained an honour diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University and a Master’s
degree in Finance from Curtin University of Technology Australia.
He is a fellow member of the HKICPA. As at the date of this
report, he beneficially owns 150,000 shares of the Company
together with his spouse and he is deemed to be interested in
50,000 shares of the Company through his spouse; and also
beneficially owns 281 shares of CEEGL together with his spouse
and he is deemed to be interested in 5,760 shares of CEEGL
through his spouse within the meaning of the Part XV of the SFO.
Mr. LO joined the Company in November 2015 and joined the
Board in June 2019.

Mr. ZHU Fugang

aged 43, is an Executive Director and the Vice President. Mr.
ZHU currently serves as general manager of Everbright Greentech
Environmental Protection Clean Energy Administrative Centre,
general manager of a subsidiary, namely EB Greentech
Technology Services (Jiangsu) Limited, and a director of
numerous subsidiaries and certain joint ventures and associated
companies of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he served as
president of eco-recycling sector in CEEGL, vice president of
each of Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Company
Limited and Everbright Envirotech (China) Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CEEGL, and general manager of each of
Everbright Environmental Energy (Changzhou) Co., Ltd, Everbright
Environmental Energy (Nanjing) Limited and Everbright
Environmental Testing (Nanjing) Company Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CEEGL. Mr. ZHU holds a Master's degree in
Business Administration from Southeast University and at the
same time qualified as a senior engineer. Mr. ZHU joined the
Group in September 2019 and joined the Board in December
2022.
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Ms. GUO Ying

aged 54, GUO holds a
Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from Beijing Technology and

is a Non-Executive Director. Ms.

Business University. She holds titles of senior accountant and
senior auditor in the PRC. She is the general manager of audit
department of CEEGL and was the general manager of risk
management department of CEEGL. Ms. GUO joined the Board in
January 2018.

Mr. SONG Jian

aged 53, SONG holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Renmin University of China.
He joined CEEGL in 2007 and currently takes a position of the
general

is a Non-executive Director. Mr.

manager of operation and safety and environmental
management department of CEEGL and was a director of
Everbright Brilliant Greenergy and Lighting (Shenzhen) Limited (a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of CEEGL), the general manager of
strategic development department of CEEGL and the chief
executive officer of Everbright Ecological Resources (Shenzhen)
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEEGL). Prior to joining
CEEGL, Mr. SONG had worked in China Light
International Engineering Co., Ltd. As at the date of this report,
Mr. SONG is deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares of the
Company through his spouse, and he is also deemed to be
interested in 7,851 shares of CEEGL through his spouse within
the meaning of the Part XV of the SFO. Mr. SONG joined the
Board in June 2019.

Industry
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Mr. CHOW Siu Lui

aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of Audit and Risk Management Committee and a member of each
of Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Sustainability Committee. Mr. CHOW is currently an independent
non-executive director of each of Genertec Universal Medical
2666.HK), Futong
Technology Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 0465.HK),
China Tobacco International (HK) Company Limited (stock code:
6055.HK) and AGTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 8279.HK),
and a non-executive director

Group Company Limited (stock code:

of Renrui Human Resources
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 6919.HK), the shares of
all of the above companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Global Cord
Blood Corporation (listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
Symbol: CO). He was an independent non-executive director of
each of Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd.*
(stock code: 1635.HK), Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code:
0607.HK), NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 0659.HK), Shi Shi
Services Limited (stock code: 8181.HK) and Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (stock code: 6833.HK), the
shares of all of the above companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was also a partner of VMS Investment Group
(HK) Limited, a partner in KPMG and chairman of the Mainland
Development Strategies Advisory Panel of the HKICPA and a
member of its Registration and Practice Committee of the
HKICPA. Mr. CHOW was also the chairman of the audit
committee and a council member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Institute. Mr. CHOW obtained the Professional

in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic

Governance
Diploma
University. He is qualified as a fellow member of the HKICPA and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. CHOW

joined the Board in May 2017.

*

For identification purpose only
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Mr. Philip TSAO

aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
Nomination Committee, Audit and Risk Management Committee
TSAO
independent non-executive director of Perfect Corp. (a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: PERF) with
effect from 28 October 2022, the chairman of Bank SinoPac (a
subsidiary of SinoPac Financial

and Sustainability Committee. Mr. is currently an

Holdings Company Limited
(“SinoPac”, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2890.TT)) with effect from 1 July 2022, and a
director of each of SinoPac and Bank SinoPac with effect from
13 May 2020 and 1 May 2018, respectively. He was the founder
and chief executive officer of CHANCES Advisory Group and
served as a consultant at Barclays Capital Asia Limited. Prior to
his current role, Mr. TSAO was a managing director of Barclays
Capital Asia Limited, an executive director of Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C., a managing director of UBS, the president of China
Bank (“CDIB”,
Development Financial Holding Corporation (“CDFHC”, a company

Development Industrial a subsidiary of China
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, stock code: 2883.TT)), an
executive vice president of CDFHC, a director of CDFHC and
CDIB, a non-executive director of SinoPac Securities (Asia)
Limited (a subsidiary of SinoPac) and a managing director of
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited. Mr. TSAO received a Bachelor’'s
degree in Power Mechanical Engineering from National Tsing Hua
University in Taiwan, and a Master of Business Administration
degree from National Taiwan University in Taiwan. Mr. TSAO is
qualified as a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. TSAO joined the
Board in May 2017.
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Prof. YAN Houmin

aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member of
each of Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit
and Risk Management Committee and Sustainability Committee.
Prof. YAN is Chair Professor of Management Sciences at City
University of Hong Kong (“CityU”) where he directs International
PPP China Center of Excellence of the Unite Nations Economic
Commission for Europe (UNECE). Prof. YAN is also a director of
Laboratory for Al-Powered Financial Technologies Limited. He was
the Dean of the College of Business from January 2013 to June
2020. Prior to joining CityU, Prof. YAN was a Professor at the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the program director
for the Executive Master for Logistics and Supply Chain
Management, and he was the executive director of Center for
Supply Chain and Logistics Optimization, Li & Fung Logistics and
Supply Chain Institute, the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
was the associate director and science advisor for the Hong
Kong Government R&D Center for Logistics and Supply Chain
Management Enabling Technologies. He was also a tenured
Associate Professor at the School of Management, University of
Texas at Dallas. Prof. YAN’s main research areas are stochastic
models, simulations, and supply chain management. He has
published extensively in top-tier international journals and has
been awarded the Best Paper Prizes by professional societies
such as the Production and Operations Management Society
(POMs) in 2004 and Institute of Industrial Engineers (IIE) in 2005
and 2012. He consults a number of international and local
Prof. YAN
Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering from the Department of

enterprises. received his Bachelor's degree and
Automation in Tsinghua University in the PRC and his Doctor of
Philosophy degree from the University of Toronto in Canada. Prof.
YAN joined the Board in May 2017.
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Mr. WANG Dianer

Mr. WANG is the Vice President of the Company. Mr. WANG
joined China Everbright Group since November 2006. At present,
he serves as a director of Everbright Environmental Remediation
(Jiangsu) Limited and Suntime Environmental Remediation CO.,
Ltd. Mr. WANG has previously served as the deputy general
manager of Everbright Environmental Energy (Yixing) Limited, the
deputy general director of engineering of Jinan WTE Project, the
general director of engineering of Dangshan project, the general
manager of each of Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan)
Company Limited, Everbright Environmental Energy (Zhenjiang)
Limited, Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Zhenjiang) Limited and
Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Huaining) Limited. Mr. WANG
completed the legal studies program at Anhui University in the
PRC and the Power Plant and Electricity System program at
Shanghai University of Electric Power in the PRC and is a senior
engineer. Mr. WANG joined the Group in January 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Jianping

Mr. ZHANG is the Chief Investment Officer and the general
manager of its solid waste management centre of the Company.
Mr. ZHANG currently serves as a director of various subsidiaries,
a joint venture and an associated company of the Group. Before
joining the Group, he was the deputy director of Suzhou
Environmental Sanitation Administration Agency. Mr. ZHANG has
served sequentially as the vice chairman of Everbright
(Suzhou) Limited,

representative of the Nanjing Representative Office of CEEGL, the

Environmental Energy the standing
general manager of each of Everbright Environmental Energy
Limited, Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou)
Limited and Everbright Environmental (Suzhou) Solid Waste
ZHANG graduated from Nanjing

Engineering Institute (currently known as Southeast University),

(Nanjing)

Treatment Limited. Mr.

majoring in professor level senior engineer of Environmental
Engineering, Mr. ZHANG joined the Group in April 2016.
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Mr. SUN Xiandong

Mr. SUN is the safety director of the Company. He graduated
from China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in
Thermal Energy and Power Engineering, and completed a CEO
management training programme from Tsinghua University. Mr.
SUN has been engaged in power-related construction and power
plant operation and administration for over 35 years. Since joining
China Everbright Group in November 2006, he has been
repeatedly named as the “Outstanding Manager in CEEGL”. He
of Everbright
Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Limited, general director at the

has served as deputy general manager
project command centre of Everbright Alternative Energy
(Dangshan) Company Limited, deputy general
(Pizhou)

of each of Everbright Greentech Environmental

manager of

Everbright Environmental Energy Limited, general
manager
Protection (Northern Anhui) Administrative Center and Everbright
Greentech Environmental Protection (Anhui) Administrative Center.
Meanwhile, he concurrently served as general manager of various
subsidiaries of the Group, namely Everbright Biomass Energy
(Lingbi) Limited, Everbright Environmental Energy (Lingbi) Limited,
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Xiao County) Limited, EB
Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Fengyang) Company Limited,
Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan) Company Limited and
Everbright Environmental Energy (Dangshan) Limited. He currently
serves as a director of a number of subsidiaries and a joint
venture company of the Group. Mr. SUN joined the Group in

January 2016.

Ms. CHOW Wing Man

Ms. CHOW is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is a
fellow member of both HKCGI and The Chartered Governance
Institute. She has over 15 years of experience in the fields of
CHOW holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Laws from the University of London and a

company secretarial and compliance. Ms.
Master’'s degree in Finance (Corporate Finance) from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified Environmental,
Social and Governance Analyst (CESGA®) awarded by The
European Federation of Financial Analysts Societies (EFFAS). Ms.
CHOW joined the Group in July 2017.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which
are to be presented at the AGM to be held at Salon | & I,
Mezzanine Floor, Grand Hyatt Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 23 May 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 42 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Business review of the Group during the year, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the year ended 31 December 2022 (if any), an analysis of
the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are provided from pages 16 to 43 of this annual
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out on pages 44 to 52 of this
annual report. Also, the financial risk management of the Group

can be found in note 40 to the financial statements.

Relationship with key stakeholders

The Group is committed to sustainable operations taking into

account the interests of employees, customers, suppliers,
business partners, government authorities and other community
stakeholders, and has built different channels to strive for better

quality in communication.
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TEXBREFHOEE(E)

EERSOENBR ()

As at 31 December 2022, the Group hired over 3,500 employees in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is committed to building a workplace characterised by inclusivity, unity
and equality, regardless of age, gender, family status, disability, race ethnicity and
nationality. The Group believe that all employees should be respected and given the same
opportunities to showcase their skills and talents. To encourage employees suggestions for
the Group’s development, the Everbright e-Message APP has been set up where all
employees could tell the Group how they feel and what they need and furnish suggestions
at any time.
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The Group regards customers as one of its most important stakeholder groups and is
actively engaged in the development of close and long-term relationships with its customers.
Over the years, the Group has assisted the local governments of various regions to improve
local living environments and create job opportunities, winning the approval of governments
at various levels. In the meantime, we seek customers’ feedback through different channels
in an effort to consistently improve our service quality. During the year, the largest customer
and 5 largest customers in aggregate of the Group accounted for 21% and 45%,
respectively, of the Group’s total turnover.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW FEEBNEKORE(Z)

(Continued)

Relationship with key stakeholders (Continued) HEREOENER(E)

@ Suppliers and business
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@ Government and
regulatory
authorities
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The Group has always conducted itself in a fair and equitable manner in its transactions with
suppliers and business partners in compliance with the most exacting ethical and
professional codes. Currently, the Group is engaged in cooperation with suppliers in cities
where its projects are located. During the year under review, despite the persistence of the
COVID-19 pandemic, relying on our effective supply-chain management, our day-to-day
business operation has not been materially affected. Meanwhile, the Group have also
extended the scope of our suppliers and enhanced communication with them to further
lower our operating costs and manage supply-chain risks. During the vyear, the largest
supplier and 5 largest suppliers in aggregate of the Group accounted for 1% and 4%,
respectively, of the Group’s total purchase amount.
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During the year under review, the Group has a close cooperation with local governments
with timely reports to competent authorities governing relevant sectors on the progress of
project preparation and construction, as well as updating the status of completion of project
investment budget as required. The Group also receives government authorities at various
levels for on-site inspection, understand their views and suggestions for project planning and
the process of construction and operation, while advocating the environmental benefits for
people’s livelihood and positive lessons of the project.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW FTEEBRNEKOE(E)
(Continued)

Relationship with key stakeholders (Continued) SRS ENRER (&)

@ Local communities The Group has been maintaining harmonious relationships with local communities with
(=¥ sincerity and openness. Residents of the community are invited to take part in project
Lo T T T~ investigation and hearing sessions prior to project construction so that we could sufficiently

4 N

’ \ solicit their opinions on project construction. Moreover, in accordance with the working

O

,I HJ \\ requirements set out in China Everbright Group Implementation Opinion on Assisting
'\ ,' Counties Designated for Aid to Reinforce Achievements in Eliminating Poverty and Ongoing
‘\O /’ Advancement of Rural Vitalisation, the Group has been actively fulfilling co-development of
\\ ’,’ the villages and the enterprises in an effort to implement defined assistance programmes
T and measures through business development, giving priority to the creation of job
opportunities for local residents, in order to drive environmental improvements and industrial
upgrades in neighbouring areas. With the commissioning of the project and the
establishment, improvement and expansion of the biomass collection, storage and
transportation regime, we have effectively formulated a strategy underpinned by “extra
income for farmers, development for the enterprise and benefit for all”, directly or indirectly
driving economic growth for the villages and helping local residents to lift themselves from
poverty. In 2022, our integrated biomass utilisation projects directly and/or indirectly
provided over 60,186 job positions, contributing to approximately RMB2,632 million of
additional income for more than 5.45 million farmers.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
(Continued)

Environmental policy and performance

As a professional environmental protection service provider in
China, the Group is committed to delivering greater investment
value to various stakeholders and undertaking greater social
responsibility in fulfilment of its corporate mission of being
“Devoted to Ecology and Environment for a Beautiful China”.
Against this backdrop, the Group is profoundly aware of the
importance of low-carbon green development, and has
established an environmental management department for the
supervision of relevant matters to ensure that the entire life cycle
of project operation has been taken into full consideration in our
internal policies and relevant management plans. At present,
material policies such as Protection of the Ecological Environment
Policy, Waste Management Policy, Water Resource Management
Policy, Energy Management Policy and ESG Policy have been
formulated by the Group to lay down detailed management rules
for different environmental aspects, such as discharge and
emission, energy consumption and climate change. Among them,
the Protection of the Ecological Environment Policy has made
comprehensive and clear regulations on various aspects such as
environmental management organizations and their
responsibilities, environmental protection management of new
construction, reconstruction and expansion projects,
environmental protection management of projects in operation,
waste water and rainwater management, exhaust gas
management, solid waste management, noise management,
environmental information management, environmental risk
management, environmental ledger management and
corresponding inspection and assessment. Such policy is highly
systematic, complete and operable, and plays a decisive role in
improving the environmental management regime and enhancing
the Group’s environmental management level. To ensure effective
implementation of our policies, each project company has
established a safety and environmental management committee
branch, with the general manager of the project as the first
person in charge of safety and environmental management, who
is fully responsible for safety and environmental management
work. Dedicated personnel have been instituted to conduct
regular tests on the environmental indicators of exhaust gas,
wastewater, solid waste and noise, etc. The brief discussion on
the Group’s environmental performance are set out on pages 52
to 53 of this annual report and the details of our environmental
performance will be presented in the sustainability report of this
year. During the year under review, the Group consistently
applied standardised operational models, formulated contingency
plans and conducted inspection over actual implementation in
persistent adherence to its ESHS management regime, making
effective rectifications in respect of issues identified.

TEXBRERBOEE

REBRRERE

ERTREEXRRRBERE  NEENUMBE
ERRE  REXBTEI/EEED BAT
RFMHEEEFNREEBE AEEZNHE
BEE-ERHESRT  ARERESKEERERL

2 URARREENMEEEEHRAS
H - BERASHENAENEETRIRDE R
HEELNBELHEYR - BAT ARECHIE
(ERRFEREETENE) (BEEVEERXR)
OKBEREBRRE) - (EREEBR) RCORE
HeRERtE)EERERGE  HEFBY
MY - BEIRE AR RIRE LS T R RFEEH A
EIRAA - Hep o (ERRRREETEGE)HIR
BERMASKERERSE W2 o2 ERE
BRIRFREEE ELHBRBEREETE - BEX
LFKER BRERE BEREVER REE
2 CRRELEEE RERRERE RRAKE
ERARNGEEEZEZE AL T2EA
RENRE  ZHEEARSNASNKE B
KA EE  BEERFEERR  BALNEH
MIRIREIEKFAEREEENIER - BBREEK
BEMET SEERAHERILEHRTER
ZEeXg NHEBLAKEBIERREZNRRER
F-BEA ZEHAERZERREETIIE A
REBABTEHHERER - BEK - BEAKLER
FRBEGR - ARAKRERERRNBET R
BN AFHmES2EE3E NAMNRRRAFE
BERNFEAFERRBETER - RNOEFE
W AEBEEERCESHSBIREE R 2R - BRI
TTIREERRN  HIEFHRESARL L AEH
TIERETRS  SHHERNEEERT LEA
B EE



PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
(Continued)

Compliance with laws and regulations having a
material impact on the Group

The Group acts in strict accordance with laws and regulations of
the operating locations which may have a material impact on its
operations, conducts its business with integrity and subject itself
to the supervision of government, social groups and the public.
To this end, the Group has formulated the Regulations for the
Administration of Legal Affairs and developed a regime for the
administration of legal affairs which is centrally administered by
the risk management department and consistently implemented
by the subsidiaries.

With reference to laws and regulations relating to the environment
and operations, the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China might have a material impact on the Group’s
business. Such law is aimed at protecting and improving the
environmental, preventing pollution and other public hazards,
safeguarding public health, advancing the building of ecological
civilisation, and facilitating sustainable economic and social
development. Competent environmental authorities could order
enterprises which have committed violations of environmental
regulations, such as exceeding benchmarks and total volumes for
emission, to curb production, suspend production for rectification
or close down the operation. The Group has instituted a number
of internal policies and procedures and ensures prudent
management through regular reviews, training and examination. In

2022, there were no cases of violation of such law.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the companies ordinances in the Cayman Islands, Hong
Kong and the PRC, the Listing Rules and the SFO for, among
other things, the disclosure of information and corporate
governance, and the Group has adopted the Model Code as set

out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
(Continueq)

Compliance with laws and regulations having a
material impact on the Group (Continued)

For the discussion on the Company’s commitment to high
standards of corporate governance and the Board’s responsibility
for compliance with statutory obligations, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 56 to 103 of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 153
and 154 of this annual report respectively.

The Board does not propose the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK4.0 cents).
Together with the interim dividend of HK3.6 cents (2021: HK7.0
cents) in October 2022, the total
distribution of dividend by the Company for the year of 2022 will
be HK3.6 cents (2021: HK11.0 cents) per ordinary share. The
dividend payout ratio in 2022 is 21.9%.

per ordinary share paid

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A financial summary of the Group for the last 5 financial years is
set out on pages 291 and 292. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$2,864,123,000. Details
of distributable reserve of the Company are set out in note 41 to
the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$465,545.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and suppliers
of the Group respectively during this financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the Group’s total
HAREBEBE L EDL

Purchases
FREERR

Turnover
=

The largest customer BEREF 21%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREF A 45%
The largest supplier AR 1%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARBEEEE 4%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

DEBENTURES

Except as detailed in note 26 to the financial statements, the
Group has not issued any other debenture during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
and subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

HUANG Haiging™ (Chairman)
(appointed on 18 June 2022)
WANG Tianyi** (Chairman)
(resigned on 18 June 2022)
QIAN Xiaodong* (Chief Executive Officer)
YANG Zhigiang* (Vice President)
(resigned on 2 December 2022)
LO Kam Fan* (Chief Financial Officer)
ZHU Fugang* (Vice President)
(appointed on 15 December 2022)
GUO Ying**
SONG Jian**
CHOW Siu Lui**
Philip TSAO***
YAN Houmin***

*

Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

>k

*kk

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. HUANG Haiging and Mr. ZHU Fugang shall hold office only
until the forthcoming AGM and shall
themselves for re-election.

be eligible and offer
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN
Houmin will retire from office as Directors by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 106 to 113 of this annual
report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, subsequent to the
date of the 2021 annual report, the changes in information of the
Directors as notified to the Company are set out below:

—  Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, the Independent Non-executive Director,
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
AGTech Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 8279.HK) with effect from
24 January 2022. He resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd.* (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1635.HK) with effect from 27 May
2022.

—  Mr. SONG Jian, the Non-executive Director, resigned as a
director of Everbright Brilliant Greenergy and Lighting
(Shenzhen) Limited (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
CEEGL) with effect from 25 January 2022. He was
appointed as the general manager of operation and safety
and environmental management department of CEEGL with
effect from 16 November 2022 and resigned as the chief
executive officer of Everbright Ecological Resources
(Shenzhen) Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEEGL)
with effect from 22 February 2023.

* For identification purpose only
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES
(Continued)

Mr. WANG Tianyi resigned as the Non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 18 June 2022. The
positions of the Non-executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee
were taken up by Mr. HUANG Haiging on the same date.

Mr. Philip TSAO, the Independent Non-executive Director,
was appointed as the chairman of Bank SinoPac (a
subsidiary of SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited
(@ company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, stock
code 2890.TT)) with effect from 1 July 2022. He also
resigned as chief executive officer of CHANCES Advisory
Group. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Perfect Corp. (@ company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange, stock code: PERF) with effect from 28
October 2022.

Ms. GUO Ying, the Non-executive Director, was appointed
as the general manager of audit department in CEEGL and
resigned as the general manager of risk management
department of CEEGL with effect from 16 November 2022.

Mr. YANG Zhigiang resigned as the Executive Director and
the Vice President with effect from 2 December 2022.

Mr. ZHU Fugang, the vice president of the Company, was
appointed as the Executive Director with effect from
15 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, other changes in directors’ information

in respect of the period as at the publication date of this report,

which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the requirement of

Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out in the section of

“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

RIECEMRBNE13HIBIIEZES
EREE (&)

- BIZEZZHFXATNBE - EFREEXRAE
HARFPTESTHRESTSIRERREERE
BEEE - - RNAER  FNTEERESTTE
ERIEEZZEGFRIBALBAEEEESE
BT -

— BZZ_—F+tA—HEE BMIERNTE
EEAELEERBTAKERTT CKELH
BEEREROERARI(—RREEBFXSM
Emzaa - RERIE : 2890.7T) 2 M B
NAEl)ZEE K o I EF RCHANCES
Advisory Group Z1TH#RHEH -B-_T=—
FHAZ+tN\BER BEZETREBZEHR
BBERAB (—RRAHBLELZ G LT
NaEl WERS : PERF) 2 B Y IEHITE
$ °

— BZE_—F+—A+ X HiE ENTE
EXBERTEZTAERKIRE 2 BB
EIR N BT AR RIRIBERR B IR PARLIE -

- BZE-__Ft+-A-HE HBEakit4L
BTANITESRIEE -

- BAZE-—E+-A+HA#E KAAFE
BHRAERI AL EZTANTES -

B EXFTIREEI  BEARE TIHBAHILAR
BEMRASIBEIB)ERERBZEZTERNLZ
HMEHHENANFREETNIREREAR]—

S



DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The term of service as a Director is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association.

Each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of 2 years and/or around 2 years.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one vyear
other

without payment of compensation, than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections “Connected Transactions”,
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and Related Party
Transactions as set out in note 36 to the financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or any entities connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. HUANG
Haiging and Mr. QIAN Xiaodong are also the executive directors
of CEEGL. CEEGL is a listed intermediate holding company of the
Company and is principally engaged in
business. CEEGL may be
However, the Board is independent of the board of CEEGL and
none of the above Directors can control the Board, the Group is

renewable energy
in competition with the Group.

therefore capable of carrying on its businesses independently of,
and at arm’s length from the businesses of these entities.
Furthermore, the Company implements various corporate
governance measures to ensure the independence between

CEEGL and the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors are considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments are determined
with
performances and the results of the Group. No Director is

reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE SENTETRAERAE R, - 8

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, BkHh LkESERLAR
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Directors and the chief executive of the Company who held RIE(ES MBI EIEM)FEI2EMEBTETFLZ
office as at 31 December 2022 and their respective close ZEZERARAEZBITHA SRS AR ELMET
associates had the following interests and short positions in the ##@ER R-_E-—_F+-A=+—HBHHEE
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its ZEERARRZIBITHAEMFESEEEAZE
holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations HHEARZBAEARRQR ~ HIZERAR - fBEA
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) at that date as AISKEHMAEEAE (TEFI(ELERPEEN)E
recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executive’s XV#F) ZR%{D - BEARMD RESFTHREES 2w
interests and short positions required to be kept under Section K AR SKBIEIZESFRIBME NN G MBI 2
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and #EzRZK&AE I T

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company RELRRGBZHER
Approximate
percentage of
total issued
shares
Number of (note (iii)
shares held  {HE TG
(shares) BE
Name of Capacity Nature of interest  FT#RD 8B BMAB ST
Director 4% BmtE (A%) (B2 (ii))
QIAN Xiaodong 293 Beneficial owner Personal 242,000 0.0117%
EnEEA [EPN
LO Kam Fan k) Interests held jointly with another  Family interest 200,000 0.0096%
person/Interest of spouse (note (i)
BE—-ALXRBFAZER /BB KikEx (i)
2R
SONG Jian R Interest of spouse Family interest 3,000 0.0001%
[P f (note (i)

e as (B (i)

Notes: B EE
0] Mr. LO Kam Fan beneficially owns 150,000 shares of the Company (i) E#ZIHi4+-RELBEREZEBEAL R
together with his spouse and is deemed to be interested in 50,000 150,000 f& 1 & i85 i@ L EC B W AR (EHE B AR A

shares of the Company through his spouse. 50,000 & f& 17 2 #E %5 o
(i) Al those shares are beneficially owned by Mr. SONG Jian’s spouse. (i) FIAEZSERMEARBREEZEEEDRES -

(i) As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares of the Company in  (ii) R-ZZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H ARQRABETE
issue was 2,066,078,000 shares. 818 A&2,066,078,000% °
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE EENTETHAEEAE KRG - 8
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, MO RES#EDZEAE (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)
Long position in shares of CEEGL, a listed REQXTETHRNMERATAXKBRERSD Z
intermediate holding company of the Company L3}
Approximate
percentage of
total issued
shares
Number of (note(vi))
shares held 152 &R M
(shares) S vd
Capacity Nature of interest FTH5 R (n 20 B BABA T
Name of Director EEnA % RmE (&) (B 33 (vi))
LO Kam Fan EiRE Interests held jointly Family interest (note (iv) 6,041 0.0001%
with another R (P aEGv)

person/Interest of

spouse
BE—AXRAHAZ

Ew/ B ER

A
B

SONG Jian Interest of spouse  Family interest (note (v)) 7,851 0.0001%

[P $ e Ktz (M W)

Notes: B 5T

(v)  Mr. LO Kam Fan beneficially owns 281 shares of CEEGL together  (iv) EiRZ)kAEERBHETRES K ARIE28
with his spouse and is deemed to be interested in 5,760 shares of AR A% 1 K2 35 8 E A 48 1R VE #E B Ok KIR 385,760
CEEGL through his spouse. AR 1D 2 #E 2w o

(v)  All those shares are beneficially owned by Mr. SONG Jian’s spouse.  (v) FTBZSERMARBREEZRBERES -

(v As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares of CEEGL in issue  (vi) RZZTZZF+ZA=+—H X ARKBEEET
was 6,142,975,292 shares. &1 B B /36,142,975,292f



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:
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INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE 1RIE(HEALKHEEHYETHRE K

UNDER THE SFO (Continued) RiEm (&)
Long position in shares of the Company AR ZER

Long position in ordinary
shares held and
approximate percentage
of total issued shares

Name of
substantial shareholder

China Everbright Green
Holdings Limited
(“CE Green Holdings”)
(note (1))

CEEGL (note (1))

China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited (“CE
Hong Kong”) (note (2))

Guildford Limited (“Guildford”)
(note (2))

China Everbright Group
(note (2))

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Huijin”)

Ningbo Ningdian Investment
Development Co., Ltd.
(“NB Ningdian”) (note (5))

Ningbo Energy Group Co.,
Ltd. (“NB Energy”)
(note (5))

Ningbo Development &
Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. (“NB Development”)
(note (5))

REK ARG EIERER AR
(TRABBER])
(&)

HARRE (M)

PEAAEEERAA
(MEAREED(MEEQ)

Guildford Limited ([ Guildford])
(&)

PEEAKE (MEEQ)

FREGREBREAAT
(<))

BREERERERRAR
((BR=EE])(HEE)

BEREREERNERAA
(Fzix e )) (M)

ERRERESERRAA
(Fz% k%)) (MEEE)

Capacity
H1p

Beneficial owner

E&BAA

Interest of controlled
corporation
SEHI DA ES

Interest of controlled
corporation

XEHIATMNES

Interest of controlled
corporation
SEHI DA ES

Interest of controlled
corporation

XEHIATMNES

Interest of controlled
corporation
SEHI DA ES

Beneficial owner

E&BAA

Interest of controlled
corporation
TN R ES

Interest of controlled
corporation

REHARNES

Nature of interest
BEnltE

Corporate interest
yNGIE- S

Corporate interest
NGIL: 323

Corporate interest
yNGIE- S

Corporate interest
NGIL: 323

Corporate interest
yNGIE- S

Corporate interest
ARlER

Corporate interest
REER

(note (6))

FERR FRR
HEBITRN B
BOAD N
(HEE(6))

1,440,000,000
69.70%

1,440,000,000
69.70%

1,462,912,986
70.81%

1,461,706,369
70.75%

1,462,912,986
70.81%

1,462,912,986
(note (3)) (FI7E)
70.81%

100,550,000
(note (4) (FiIzE(4))
4.87%

120,994,000
5.86%

141,013,000
6.83%

141,013,000
6.83%




INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO (Continued)

Long position in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) CE Green Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEEGL, which
is in turn controlled 43.08% by CE Hong Kong, through its direct
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Accordingly, CEEGL and CE Hong Kong
are deemed to be interested in the 1,440,000,000 shares held by
CE Green Holdings.

2) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares of CE Hong
Kong. CE Hong Kong holds (1) 100% of the issued shares of
Guildford; and (2) 100% of the issued shares of Everbright
Investment & Management Limited (“EIM”), respectively. Out of the
1,462,912,986 shares, 1,440,000,000 shares are held by CE Green
Holdings and 21,706,369 shares are held by Guildford. The
remaining 1,206,617 shares are held by EIM. Accordingly, China
Everbright Group and CE Hong Kong are deemed to be interested
in those shares held by CE Green Holdings, Guildford and EIM
respectively.

3) Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the PRC
and holds 63.16% equity interests of China Everbright Group. It is
deemed to be interested in the 1,462,912,986 shares indirectly
held by China Everbright Group.

(4) Huijin is also deemed to be interested in 100,550,000 shares held
by its associated companies and a non-wholly owned subsidiary.

5) NB Development holds 50.89% of the issued shares of NB Energy.
NB Energy holds (1) 100% of the issued shares of NB Ningdian;
and (2) 100% of the issued shares of Ningbo BSLS Trade Co., Ltd.
(“NBBSLS”), respectively. Out of the 141,013,000 shares,
120,994,000 shares are held by NB Ningdian and 20,019,000
shares are held by NBBSLS. Accordingly, NB Development and NB
Energy are deemed to be interested in those shares held by NB
Ningdian and NBBSLS respectively.

(6) As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares of the Company in
issue was 2,066,078,000 shares.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company had not been notified of any other interests by
prescribed notices which were required to be recorded in the
register kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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ANEEB316%MKE - EW R ARPE I KER
PRS2 1,462,912,086 I A& 5 R i A a5 ©
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(5) T;&Eﬁ%*%ﬁ?;& ER50.89% B BT D - &
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur
in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Group.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements
include transactions that constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group as defined in the Listing Rules, the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Lease of the premise

On 6 May 2022, China Everbright Greentech Management
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a new agreement with China Everbright International
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEEGL, in relation to
subletting the commercial unit at Unit 3602 of 36th Floor, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a term of
3 years commencing from 18 May 2022 to 17 May 2025 (both
days inclusive) at a monthly rent of HK$194,400 (exclusive of
rates, management fee, water, electricity, gas and other utility
charges payable to independent third parties not connected with
the Company in respect of the use of the premises during the
lease term).

Following the adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 16 Leases issued by the HKICPA with effect from 1
January 2019, the Company recognised this transaction as an
asset representing its right to use the leased asset, regarded as
an acquisition of asset under the definition of transaction set out
in Rule 14.04(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. Since the highest of all
applicable percentage ratios set out in Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, this transaction is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from circular and the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements.

JEERTRE R K

REERMAAT  SLEFHERUSAAE
ERMARATRSET R AR M ES
MESAEELZAABARAE  ARARAERS
SECEEREABERBLEZEERERM
BEERR -
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(EERA(ETMRAN RS ARRREFERDE
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FERS
HEY %
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2EWB AR R B KER AR A TR
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RHEBEPRRBBEE - R EHARANE14.07
FFREZRX S MBERAD LXFNRRER
HOA%EENE%  HEZXBABTHERRE
ME - HERRETERNSIBY BRAEZRE



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Leachate emergency treatment service

On 17 May 2022, Everbright Environmental Remediation (Jiangsu)
Limited (“Everbright Environmental Remediation (Jiangsu)”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
leachate emergency treatment service agreement with Suzhou
Wujiang Everbright Environmental Energy Limited (“Wujiang
Everbright Environmental”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEEGL,
pursuant to which, Wujiang Everbright Environmental will provide
emergency treatment services of household waste leachate
generated by the project of the Group in relation to the
construction and operation of environmental remediation business
in Suzhou City to Everbright Environmental Remediation (Jiangsu)

at a maximum service fee of RMB7,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount payable

to Wouijiang Everbright Environmental under the leachate
emergency treatment service agreement amounted to
approximately RMB2,332,000. The amount did not exceed
RMB7,000,000 which is the maximum service fee payable to
Wujiang Everbright Environmental for the leachate emergency

treatment service.

Since the highest of all applicable percentage ratios set out in
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules is more than 0.1% but less than
5%,
announcement requirements but exempt from circular and the

this transaction is subject to the reporting and

independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.
Details of the leachate emergency treatment service agreement

were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 17 May
2022.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Purchases of equipment

On 15 September 2022,
(Zhongjiang) Limited* (“EB Alternative Energy Zhongjiang”), an

Everbright Alternative Energy

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
equipment purchase and sale agreement with Everbright
Company
Limited* (“EB Environmental Changzhou”), an indirect wholly-

Environmental Technology Equipment (Changzhou)
owned subsidiary of CEEGL, pursuant to which, EB Alternative
Energy Zhongjiang agreed to purchase the equipment and related
technological services from EB Environmental Changzhou at a
consideration of RMB4,740,000.

Since the highest of all applicable percentage ratios set out in
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules is more than 0.1% but less than
5%, to the
announcement requirements but exempt from circular and the

this transaction is subject reporting and

independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.

Details of the equipment purchase and sale agreement were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 15 September 2022.

*

For identification purpose only
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Deposit and loan services

On 6 December 2019, the Company entered into a new deposit

services master agreement and a new loan services master

agreement (collectively, the “New Services Master Agreements”)

with  China Everbright Group. Pursuant to the New Services

Master Agreements, China Everbright Group will, through its

associate, China Everbright Bank Company Limited (“CE Bank”),

provide deposit and loan services to the Group for a term of 3

years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

(@)

Pursuant to the new deposit services master agreement,
China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to provide
deposit services to the Group (including current and fixed
term deposit) in accordance with rules and regulations
prescribed by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) and/or
other relevant rules and regulations within or outside the
PRC. The deposit services to be provided by CE Bank shall
be on normal commercial terms and no less favourable than
the terms available to the Group from independent third
parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s deposits (including
interests accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank amounted to
approximately HK$365,991,000. This amount did not
exceed the annual cap of HK$400,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Deposit and loan services (Continued)

(b)

The new loan services master agreement shall be on a non-
exclusive basis and the Company is at liberty to obtain loan
services from other third parties. Pursuant to the new loan
services master agreement, China Everbright Group shall
procure CE Bank to provide loans to the Group (including
revolving credit facility and fixed term loan) in accordance
with rules and regulations prescribed by the PBOC and/or
other relevant rules and regulations within or outside the
PRC. The loans services to be provided by CE Bank shall
be on normal commercial terms and no less favourable than
the terms available to the Group from independent third
parties.

Since CE Bank and the Group have a long-term relationship
of cooperation, CE Bank has a better understanding of the
operations and development of the Group and is in a better
position to serve the financial arrangements of the Group. It
is also expected that it will be cost-efficient, expedient and
beneficial for the Group to receive deposit and loan services
from CE Bank. In addition, CE Bank is regulated by China
Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission and is
subject to the rules and requirements of such regulatory
authority, thus reducing risks to the Group in receiving
financial services from CE Bank.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s loans (excluding loans
which do not require security over the assets of the Group)
provided by CE Bank amounted to zero. This amount did
not exceed the annual cap of HK$400,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Deposit and loan services (Continued)

The New Services Master Agreements expired on 31 December
2022 and 2022 Deposit Services Master Agreement and 2022
Loan Services Master Agreement (collectively, the “2022 Services
Master Agreements”) were entered into between the Company
and China Everbright Group on 15 December 2022. Pursuant to
the 2022 Services Master Agreements, China Everbright Group
will, through its associate, CE Bank, provide deposit and loan
services to the Group for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2025. The annual cap in respect of the
maximum daily closing balance of the Group’s deposits (including
interest accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank and the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s loans (excluding loans which
do not require security over the assets of the Group) provided by
CE Bank is HK$130,000,000 for each of the three years ending
31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025. Details of the above were
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 15 December
2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continueq)

Purchases of equipment

On 6 December 2019, Everbright Greentech Management
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* (“Everbright Greentech Management
Shenzhen”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a new equipment purchase master agreement with
EB Environmental Changzhou, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of CEEGL,
related services from EB Environmental Changzhou for a term of

in respect of the purchase of the equipment and

3 years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

The new equipment purchase master agreement enables the
Group to procure the equipment and related services from EB
Environmental Changzhou which has been a technologically

competent and reliable supplier of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amounts payable
to EB Environmental Changzhou under the new equipment
purchase master agreement amounted to approximately
RMB36,372,000. The amount did not exceed the annual cap of

RMB124,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The new equipment purchase master agreement expired on 31
2022 and 2022 Equipment Purchase Master
Agreement was entered

December
into between Everbright Greentech
Management Shenzhen and EB Environmental Changzhou on 15
December 2022 in respect of the purchase of the equipment and
related services from EB Environmental Changzhou for a term of
3 years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025. The annual
cap in respect of the aggregate purchases by the Group under
the 2022 Equipment Purchase Master Agreement is
RMB100,000,000 for each of the 3 years ending 31 December
2023, 2024 and 2025. Details of the above were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 December 2022.

*

For identification purpose only
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Purchases of steam

On 6 December 2019, Everbright Biomass Energy (Sugian)
Limited (“Everbright Biomass Energy Sugian”), an indirect wholly-
into a steam

owned subsidiary of the Company, entered

purchase master agreement with EB Environmental Energy
(Sugian) Company Limited* (“EB Environmental Energy Sugian”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CEEGL, in respect of the
purchase of steam from EB Environmental Energy Sugian for a

term of 3 years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Everbright Biomass Energy Sugian is a supplier of steam in
Sugian, Jiangsu, the PRC. Everbright Biomass Energy Sugian
entered into the steam purchase master agreement with EB
Environmental Energy Sugian in order to ensure that in the event
of excess demand, Everbright Biomass Energy Sugian can
operate without interruption and maintain supply of steam to its
customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amounts payable
to EB Environmental Energy Sugian under the steam purchase
master agreement amounted to approximately RMB37,347,000.
The amount did not exceed the annual cap of RMB60,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The steam purchase master agreement expired on 31 December
2022 and 2022 Steam Purchase Master Agreement was entered
into between EB Greentech Cogeneration (Sugian) Limited*, an
and EB
Environmental Energy Sugian on 15 December 2022 in respect of

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,

the purchase of steam from EB Environmental Energy Sugian for
a term of 3 years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.
The annual cap in respect of the aggregate purchase by the
Group under the 2022 Steam Purchase Master Agreement is
RMB60,000,000 for each of the 3 years ending 31 December
2023, 2024 and 2025. Details of the above were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 December 2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continueq)

Employee healthcare protection services

On 22 December 2021,
Shenzhen entered into an employee healthcare protection services

Everbright Greentech Management

agreement with Sun Life Everbright Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (“Sun
Life Everbright”),
Pursuant to the employee healthcare protection services

an associate of China Everbright Group.

agreement, Sun Life Everbright will provide employee healthcare
protection services for the years 2021 and 2022 to Everbright
Greentech Management Shenzhen.

The Company values the health and safety of employees. Apart
from participating in social insurance programs as required, the
Company also takes part in the medical insurance and healthcare
protection scheme, to further improve the sense of belonging of
and healthcare

the employees and to refine the medical

protection system.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amounts payable
to Sun Life Everbright under the employee healthcare protection
services agreement amounted to approximately RMB18,383,000.
The amount did not exceed the annual cap of RMB20,870,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The employee healthcare protection services agreement expired
on 31 December 2022 and 2022 Employee Healthcare Protection
Services Master Agreement was entered into between the
Company and China Everbright Group on 15 December 2022,
pursuant to which, China Everbright Group shall procure its
associates (including but not limited to Sun Life Everbright and its
associates) to provide employee healthcare protection services to
the Group for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025. The annual cap in respect of the aggregate
amount payable by the Group under the 2022 Employee
Healthcare Protection Services Master Agreement is
RMB32,000,000, RMB39,000,000 and RMB44,000,000 for the
years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 accordingly.
Details of the above were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 December 2022.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Underwriting and advisory services

On 15 December 2022, the Company entered into Underwriting
and Advisory Services Master Agreement with China Everbright
Group, pursuant to which, China Everbright Group shall procure
its associates (including but not limited to Everbright Securities
Company Limited (China Everbright Group being its controlling
shareholder, “EB Securities”) and its associates) to provide
underwriting and advisory services to the Group. The annual cap
in respect of the aggregate amount payable by the Group under
the Underwriting and Advisory Services Master Agreement is
RMB9,424,000 for the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024
and 2025. Details of the above were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 December 2022.

China Everbright Group is a controlling shareholder of CEEGL, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore, each of China
Everbright Group and its associates, including CE Bank, CEEGL,
Sun Life Everbright, EB Securities, and their associates, is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. In particular, EB Environmental Changzhou and EB
Environmental Energy Sugian are indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CEEGL. Therefore, each of EB Environmental
Changzhou and EB Environmental Energy Sugian is also a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
each of the New Services Master Agreements, the new
equipment purchase master agreement, the steam purchase
master agreement, the employee healthcare protection services
agreement, the 2022 Services Master Agreements, the 2022
Equipment Purchase Master Agreement, the 2022 Steam
Purchase Master Agreement, the 2022 Employee Healthcare
Protection Services Master Agreement and the Underwriting and
Advisory Services Master Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Details of the New Services Master Agreements, the new
equipment purchase master agreement and the steam purchase
master agreement were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 6 December 2019. The details of the employee healthcare
protection services agreement were set out in the Company’s
The details of the
the 2022 Loan

the 2022 Equipment Purchase

announcement dated 22 December 2021.
2022 Deposit Services Master Agreement,
Services Master Agreement,
Master Agreement, the 2022 Steam Purchase Master Agreement,
the 2022 Employee Healthcare Protection Services Master
Agreement and the Underwriting and Advisory Services Master
Agreement were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
15 December 2022.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed these
continuing connected transactions in respect of deposit and loan
services, purchase of equipment, purchase of steam and
employee healthcare protection services (collectively, the “2022
Continuing Connected Transactions”) and confirmed that 2022

Continuing Connected Transactions were:

° entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;
° conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are

not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they

are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

° in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group’s 2022 Continuing Connected Transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the HKICPA. Ernst & Young has issued an unmodified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
2022 Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the 2022 Continuing Connected Transactions.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Company operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the Group’s MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’

relevant income, respectively.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the

retirement schemes operated by the local authorities.

required contributions under the schemes. The Group’s total
contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to HK$65,811,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”

contained in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Board confirms
that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required by the Listing Rules during the year under review.

AUDITOR

KPMG retired as the auditor of the Company upon the expiration
of its term of office with effect from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 19 May 2020.

Ernst & Young was appointed as auditor of the Company
following the retirement of KPMG. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been audited by Ernst & Young,
offer themselves for

who will retire and, being eligible, will

re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

By order of the Board

China Everbright Greentech Limited
HUANG Haiqing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA
EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

979 King’s Road,

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Everbright Greentech Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 153 to 290, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022,
consolidated statement of comprehensive

the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial

significant accounting policies.

statements, including a summary of

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

27/F, One Taikoo Place

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

B M BT

RAREFTENETSET Tel EEE: +852 2846 9883
EBIEE Fax {2 +852 2868 4432
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audiitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed

Key audit matter the key audit matter
BEREXEE BARERPNMUEEEHABREXSE

Recognition of construction revenue from service concession arrangements

XK EIRFEHF AR S 1 T 2 B W i TR AR

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has Our audit procedures, included, amongst others,
recognised revenue arising from construction services under the IR EZEFEIE (Eh ) -

terms of service concession agreements of approximately

HK$1,297 million, which is measured based on the Group’s () evaluating the objectivity, competence and

estimation of the fair value of construction services and the independence of the independent valuer and
progress of construction work completed during the year for surveyors;
each project. SHEB S L ER B SR E EEM - B

BHE-_Z-__F+_A=+—HILFE E5EIBRBERES KBS

FEAR SR 1 B IR E SR R S AR A B AR s K B 12,978 T

WEBRE ESBEHSEEFANBERBARLERDTKE (i) involving our internal valuation specialists to

ETREENHBETMETE - assess the bases and key assumptions used
in the valuation of construction services with

Significant judgement and estimation are required to determine reference to observable market data and

() the fair value of construction services which involves comparable companies;

estimation of the total construction costs and the gross profit FREMOADHEERSETBRRN MG

margin of each project and (i) the completion status of BERAE LR AR I EEERSHERFERD

construction work for the year. EENERKRHR:

EENSREFSEEABRENAREMNENRERBAAEBER

() AR E TR TR NI FIEL EARHE XA - (i) checking the underlying data used in the
construction progress reports to construction

The Group engaged an independent valuer and independent agreements and invoices; and

surveyors to assess the fair value of construction services and mEREEERSPAMESEEEZERR

the progress of construction work up to the year-end date, NELE I

respectively.

EEBZE LB GEMEBILASMD AT HEZF4H (v) understanding management’s process in

IR ERBN AR BERREIRENEE - estimating budgeted costs and costs to
completion for incomplete projects.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 5 to the TREFTTEEMNARARTIEE T INAK

financial statements. BIEMIE ©

MR BRSNS IRR M35
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Key audit matter

RREEZSEE

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter
EPREZRPNNEEERBEREREE

Provision for expected credit losses on contract assets and debtors

BRIEE R EWAR ) TE RS B R 1R A9

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of contract
assets and debtors amounted to approximately HK$9,791
million and HK$6,172 million, respectively, net of provision for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of approximately HK$117
million.

MRZEZ—_F+_A=+—H &HNEAEREVWERNEREE
DR REBEITNRTREEI 2B R FEHREEER
(ITEEEEEBE] BHENBE1A7ET

Management performed impairment assessment of debtors and
contract assets without significant financing component under
the simplified approach whereas contract assets with significant
financing component under the general approach.
EREREMEENZHBEEAMERSNEREREEL
BEETRENG MBE-—REEHZHAEEARENS
&R EEETRERME -

Significant management judgements and estimations are
involved in the assessment of ECLs after considering historical
settlement pattern, ageing profiles, credit rating of debtors, and
forecast economic conditions. The Group has engaged an
independent valuer to assist in the calculation of ECLs.
RERBEGERR - RRIBEN - BEEANERFRLARLE
MAiE - REEEBERMETERNEREEHE Mt E5E
ERE—RBIGEMBAERRAEEERE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 21 and 22 to the
financial statements.

AR BN SRR ES 21 %22 ¢

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
BPHMEZEFSE(HPBE) -

() obtaining an understanding of management’s
basis in determining ECLs;
THREREETAREERENEE

(i) evaluating management’s basis of estimation
of loss rates by checking ageing profiles and
historical settlement patterns on sample basis;
FRmEREREBALBEAERR G
EIRENERRMENEE

(i

=

assessing the competence, objectivity and
independence of the external valuer; and
SN ERM B ERE S REERE Y
MR

(iv

=

involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us to evaluate the methodology of ECLs
calculation and the key parameters used with
reference to external available data sources.
B RBANAEEEER B R AT EESRE
BEEFEN T EAR2Z N B EE KRR
CRANERE2E -




OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

included in the Annual

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
throughout the audit. We also:

scepticism

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, intentional

forgery, omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

in order to design audit procedures that are

internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fok Lai Ching.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—ES-F T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
REVENUE U = 5 8,048,171 8,446,999
Direct costs and operating expenses BEEKAREEEA (6,364,723) (6,101,028)
Gross profit EF 1,683,448 2,345,971
Other revenue H bz 6 335,566 313,890
Other gains/(losses), net Hib sk (E518) F58 6 (139,486) 1,082
Administrative expenses 1THRER (617,325) (628,561)
Finance costs M%ER 7 (740,997) (741,858)
Share of profits of associates BT B 2 R 5 2 A 7,475 82,390
Share of losses of joint ventures Frih& & EEE (18,523) (24,312)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R 1 AT 2 F 8 510,158 1,348,602
Income tax FriS %t 11 (165,158) (228,571)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEEREF 345,000 1,120,031
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: EEHs
Equity shareholders of the Company A E) s IR R 340,201 1,110,385
Holders of perpetual medium-term notes KEFRHEERRB A 30 15,952 —
Non-controlling interests FE 2 IR B 2 (11,153) 9,646
345,000 1,120,031
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AT m=RREMN
TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE SRER
COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR EE BL) 16.47 53.74
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FmEEZHW=ERE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+__A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E_— - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFERF 345,000 1,120,031
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hir2mEUWB A (EiE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be REBHARAIEENHEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BazHMmE2EBA
periods: (E18) :
Changes in fair value of debtors at fair value BRAREFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income/(loss), WA (E18) 7 eIk
net of nil tax RRO AR EES
MR THIA 66,345 (131,727)
Exchange differences on translation of financial RERBRINERBUB
statements of entities outside Hong Kong, WMREEZERZE
net of nil tax BB TRIE
— Subsidiaries — WELF (1,629,271) 549,700
— Associates — BT (24,190) 6,608
— Joint ventures — BRI (2,189) 1,492
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR REEHMEERA
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B18) - MERTIE (1,589,305) 426,073
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR AEEZ2EKRA
THE YEAR (B18) B8 (1,244,305) 1,546,104
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: GRS :
Equity shareholders of the Company A E) IR (1,219,378) 1,526,163
Holders of perpetual medium-term notes XERHEREEA 15,952 —
Non-controlling interests FET IR B 2 (40,879) 19,941
(1,244,305) 1,546,104
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

At 31 December 2022 A—ZE - —&#+—-A=+—H

2022 2021
—==-= T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T ook i a
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE k& 14 5,044,489 5,367,020
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(a) 619,354 700,217
Goodwill GES 16 134,207 162,638
Intangible assets EmAE 17 13,355,885 14,365,263
Interests in joint ventures BB ERER 18 33,424 24,761
Interests in associates i RN s 19 239,883 254,413
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWHRIE Rek
prepayments TET5RIR 22 506,297 781,099
Contract assets BHEE 21 6,698,920 6,900,257
Deferred tax assets BT IRE & 27 80,855 82,450
Total non-current assets ERBNE EMLRE 26,713,314 28,638,118
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 377,993 327,694
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEURBR B« Eo4th JE WK
prepayments 1H -~ e RENFHIAE 22 6,964,425 6,311,107
Contract assets GHEE 21 3,092,300 2,610,620
Tax recoverable AT Uy Bl 718 5,051 7,932
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITFER 23 75,043 160,542
Deposits with banks RITER 23 23,465 —
Cash and cash equivalents HekReSEEY 23 1,904,785 2,483,568
Total current assets MENEERT 12,443,062 11,901,463
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Creditors, other payables and accrued FEATBR IR - E b FE AT 3K
expenses BRETER 24 3,207,250 4,114,988
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & BE1T R HEMEE 25 5,809,395 4,493,433
Lease liabilities HESE 15(b) 3,049 854
Tax payables JE 1~ 75 18 42,078 45,684
Total current liabilities mEN B EERE 9,061,772 8,654,959
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %= & Bt #& ik % &

At 31 December 2022 R=ZZE—_—F+=-A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 3,381,290 3,246,504
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 30,094,604 31,884,622
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBAE
Other payables H fib B S 3R 24 181,923 222,062
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & BiE1T R EMEE 25 14,927,130 16,057,663
Lease liabilities HEARE 15(b) 16,513 14,782
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 27 1,434,753 1,444,748
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEERE 16,560,319 17,739,255
NET ASSETS EEFRHE 13,534,285 14,145,367
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity shareholders RQ AR R
of the Company FE(G =
Share capital & A 28 1,608,029 1,608,029
Reserves ] 29 10,776,766 12,153,166
12,384,795 13,761,195
Perpetual medium-term notes XEFHZERE 30 806,982 —
Non-controlling interests JEE RS 342,508 384,172
TOTAL EQUITY AR 13,534,285 14,145,367
QIAN Xiaodong LO Kam Fan
EER ERE
Director Director
EX E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mRERR®ER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERRER

Perpetual

Non-

Share Share Exchange Fair value Other  Reserve Retained medium-  controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve fund profits Total term notes interests equity
DM AR OEBR
RE RAEE EXfE E HtRE BES REEF fE THER B ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BETr B¥Tr BMTr BMTr AT AT B%Tin BT BTr  BETn B%Txo
At 1 January 2022 i St 2 B = 1,608,029 3,694,131*  808,754* (131,727)*  (8,615)* 443,598* 7,347,025* 13,761,195 - 384,172 14,145,367
Profit/foss) for the year REERF/(B#B) - - - - - - 340201 340201 15952  (11,153) 345,000
Other comprehensive income/(oss) for ~ AFEEMEERA/
the year: (B#):
Changes in fair value of debtors at RAR B AL
fair value through other 2ERAREYRER
comprehensive income, G R
net of nil tax ABEHE - - - 66345 - - - 66345 - - 66,345
Exchange differences on translation BEEBRNERY
of financial statements of entities BRRELZER
outside Hong Kong, net of il tax A8 HREHE
— Subsidiaries - HEBAR - - (1,599,545) - - - = (1,599,545) - (29,726) (1,629,271)
— Assoclates - BEQR - - (4,190 - - - - (241190) - - (4,190
— Joint ventures - hERE - - (2189 - - - - (2189 - - (2189
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for ~ AEE2ERA/(EHR)
the year T - - (162502 66345 - - 30201 (1219378 15952  (40,879) (1,244,305)
Capital contributions received by FREMBAAR
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from FERER YR
non-controling interests iz HEH - - - - - - - - - 8,051 8,051
Issuance of perpetual medium-term BKETHER
notes 30 - - - - - - - - 806,982 - 806,982
Distrioution to holders of perpetual AkEPERERE AL
medium-term notes HZ Ak 30 - - - - - - - - (15952 - (15959
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAR 2 - - - - - - - - - (6413  (6413)
2021 final dividend TRo-FERERE 12 - (82,643) - - - - - (8264 - - (62643
2022 interim dividend ToCFERERE 12 - (14379 - - - - - (14379 - - (14379
Transfer to reserve fund BEEHES - - - - - 50746 (59,746) - - 2423)  (2,429)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—F
+=B=t-B 1608029 3537100 (317,170 (65382 (8615} 503344* 7627,480% 12384795 806982 342508 13,534,285
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERERREN T ZF+=A=+—RH2

HK$10,776,766,000 as at

position.

31

December

2022

(2021:
HK$12,153,166,000) in the consolidated statement of financial

AR R ZRA FEHE10,776,766,000
TT(ZZF=—4F : #%12,153,166,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #&EFZEEH X

Non-
Share Share  Exchange  Fair value Reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve fund profits Total interests equity
B ffs HiR REe RERA FERER B
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT T AETT BETT BETT S R T
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—-%#-f—-H 1,608,029 3983381 261,249 = (8,615) 355,601 6,324,637 12,524,282 342,559 12,866,841
Profit for the year TEERF = = = = = - 1,110,385 1,110,385 9,646 1,120,031
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEEEMZAMN/
for the year: (B#):
Changes in fair value of debtors BRAREFAER
at fair value through other 2ERARER
comprehensive income, ERNARERE
et of nil ax NBTHE - = - et = = - (31,720) - et
Exchange differences on RERAZNEENBR
translation of financial REECZERER
statements of entities outside NBREHE
Hong Kong, net of nil tax
— Subsidiaries - HEBAR - — 539,405 - - = — 539,405 10,295 549,700
— Associates - BEAT = = 6,608 = = = = 6,608 = 6,608
— Joint ventures - RERE = = 1,492 = = = = 1,492 = 1,492
Total comprehensive incomey/(loss) REEREUA/(BR)
for the year o) - — 547505 (131,727 - - 1,110,385 1,526,163 19,941 1,546,104
Capital contributions received by FRERBRAR
non-wholly owned subsidiaries FEREZ IR
from non-controlling interests g LER = = = = = = = - 24020 24,020
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B AR 31 - - - - - - - - 10 10
2020 final dividend ZTCTRERERE 12 - (144,625 = = = = - (144625 - (144,625)
2021 interim dividend R -ERRERS 12 - (144,625) = = = = — (144,62 - (144,625)
Dividend paid to non-controlling B2 EMBRR
interests of non-wholly owned FEREERTZRE
subsidiaries = = = = = = = = (2,358) (2,358)
Transfer to reserve fund EEEYA-E = = = = - 87997 (87,997) - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZZ=—-§
+-A=1+-H 1,608,029 3,694,131* 808,754 (131,727  (8,615)" 443,598* 7,347,025" 13,761,195 384,172 14,145,367
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

2022
—E-_—F
Notes HK$’000
B 5 BET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFBASRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 50 B &2 A 510,158 1,348,602
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEME&E
equipment e 8 297,327 198,997
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 8 19,341 18,093
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 8 608,121 530,392
Impairment losses/(write-back of AHBEREEE/
impairment) of contract assets (FEIE#E) 8 1,476 (1,094)
Impairment losses of goodwill B FEIEEE 8 14,474 -
Impairment losses of items of property, Y BERRE
plant and equipment JH B BB 8 15,526 -
Reversal of provision for other Hh fE MR R IB B
receivables £ 5] 8 (146) -
Impairment losses of debtors at REHK AT EJE
amortised cost I BR R FE1E B 18 8 11,468 2,134
Impairment losses of debtors at fair BAREF AHA
value through other comprehensive 2 E A B FE U
income IR A FEEER 8 96,302 -
Finance costs B 15 & A 7 740,997 741,858
Interest income F B U A 6 (21,916) (23,103)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME  BEK
property, plant and equipment HEEE 2
Ee (W) 2,623 (1,468)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBARZ
Wz 6 (476) —
Gain on disposal of partial interests in HER— S QA
an associate o i 2 W ek 6 (20,918) —
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary EE—HMEBARZ
g 6 19,157 =
Share of losses of joint ventures Fiaa&t¥Eia 18,523 24,312
Share of profit of associates Fr & B &8 X 7] & A (7,475) (82,390)
Effect of foreign exchange rates HNPEDE R B E) v B
changes, net R 2,406 (59,060)
2,306,968 2,697,273
Increase in inventories FEEM (82,219) (100,606)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, JE U AR SR~ L R U R
deposits and prepayments I - e RIENFKIE
b=yl (1,149,247) (8,255,403)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHBEERD, (1) (1,403,641) 907,782
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, other FERTERER - EAb R 3R
payables and accrued expenses BRETEREN
2 (64,722) 289,527
Cash generated from/(used in) wE B, (FTA)
operations 2R (392,861) 538,573
Interest received B U F B 21,916 23,103
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) income Bt #E A K LA
tax paid ([HE)FTiEHR (48,838) (134,983)

activities

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating E& EBFTE (FrA)

ZEEREFHE

(419,783)

426,693
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows AR ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+__A=+—HIFE

2022
—_E-_—F

HK$’000
BET R

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

REFHFERERE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEWE - HE&EE (591,603) (1,270,346)
Acquisition of a subsidiary I fE — kB A A 31 - 261
Principal portion of lease payments HEMNRZAEHD - (62,210)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEME - BERHK
property, plant and equipment 18 B 1S %R - 2,386
Additions to intangible assets RERFEEE (962,632) (1,484,939)
Capital contribution to an associate AE —REEE QT (36,968) —
Capital contribution to joint ventures EEAEDE (29,375) (3,694)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use HEFHEEEY
assets P13 K18 15(a) - 15,474
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRBARZ
Fr 1S 5018 4,345 =
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—EEE N2
PR 1§ 58 55,702 =
Increase/(decrease) in deposits with banks 817 F &, CRi4) (24,601) 1,689
Net cash flows used in investing REZEBMAZ
activities HEeEREFHE (1,585,132) (2,801,379)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METEMEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FTILIRITE K 8,712,431 6,714,770
Proceeds from issue of medium-term notes, 277 HAZ B TS RUAE
net of related expenses paid (BHKREHEEE
) 1,476,262 1,201,501
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual BT KEPEBEIE M
medium-term notes 155K 806,982 —
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (7,297,622) (4,737,843)
Repayment of loans from an intermediate EE—HPHEERA A
holding company B (1,288,650) —
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B R 177 FOR D 75,193 64,829
Decrease in amounts due from fellow G EE N EMAGIE S
subsidiaries VoA 20,593 7,453
Capital contributions received by non-wholly — 3E% & i B & 714 3E 22
owned subsidiaries from non-controlling & = U EER 1§ 2
interests &R 8,051 24,020
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling & < JE 1% % 25
interests SRIE R 747 —
Increase in amounts due from joint UG & (b S FRIRIE I
ventures (17,140) (14,475)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the & [ AN &4 25 I 2R
Company RS 2 B B (157,022) (289,250)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 3E2 & W B A A
of non-wholly owned subsidiaries FE 2 AR 4 2 AR B - (2,358)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZ R (2,199) (2,324)
Interest portion of lease payments HENFZ A EEFBD (706) 610)
Interest paid EAIFE (715,346) (691,780)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows HRABREHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_A=+—HIFE

2022
—E:=-=

Notes HK$’000
B o BT T

Net cash flows from financing activities @& EE 15

REREFH 1,621,574 2,273,933

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREZEEY

EQUIVALENTS WD FE (383,341) (100,753)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHZHERREZE

of year EBY 2,483,568 2,505,975
Effect of foreign exchange rates NEEZEFH 2 FE

changes, net ) (195,442) 78,346
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAERAE

AT END OF YEAR £EY 1,904,785 2,483,568
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HeRBEBSEEYES

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ki
Cash and bank balances He NMIRITH R 23 1,849,094 2,304,603
Non-pledged bank deposits with original REVS R EI 83 A

maturity of less than three months when DR =18 Az EEA

acquired HRITIF R 55,691 178,965

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BRE&REBRFRZ
the statement of cash flows HEeRBELEEY 1,904,785 2,483,568
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Everbright Greentech Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
construction, integrated biomass utilisation project operation
(biomass direct combustion power generation projects,
biomass heat supply project, biomass electricity and heat
cogeneration projects, waste-to-energy projects and
integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects),
hazardous and solid waste treatment project operation
landfill projects,

incineration projects, general industrial solid waste electricity

(hazardous waste hazardous waste
and heat cogeneration projects and physicochemical and

resources recycling projects), environmental remediation
project operation and solar energy and wind power project

operation (solar energy projects and wind power projects).

The immediate holding company of the Company is China
liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. In the
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding entity of the
Company is China Investment Corporation,
established in the PRC.

Everbright Green Holdings Limited, a limited

an entity

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued

statements have been prepared in

include all

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
debtors which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

1.

2.1
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for

reporting period as the Company,
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries

the same using
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
() the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (ii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises () the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual

HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment:
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018~
2020

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16 Leases, and HKAS 41

The Group has assessed that the adoption of the above
revised standards has had no significant effect on these
financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendment to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts'’

Insurance Contracts’: ®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)? *

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as
a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before
1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating
to the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall
apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application, but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant
impact on its financial performance and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties

relevant

sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 BERSFTHBEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued) AREFTE ()

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or FIERVBHRERPAEXIHEEAAENE

disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within ERBE DERUBEBANBHEMEE

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the %jﬁﬁ’]ﬂ‘ﬁﬂ'ﬁ&%ﬂ\%ﬁﬁ* BTlERAR

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value BEE&RSE

measurement as a whole:

Level 1  — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—H — ERNAREBEESREBERGR
markets for identical assets or liabilities M52 ME (REAE)

Level 2  — based on valuation techniques for which the FH — ERAERMN - HEHAERZ
lowest level input that is significant to the fair HARBREMSBERZ
value measurement is observable, either HEELRE AR D AERE
directly or indirectly BARER iR

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the F=H  — ERHERMNHEAERZ
lowest level input that is significant to the fair HARBREMSBERZ
value measurement is unobservable =K E R ABIE AT

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial MR BEREAREEEEERROEE

statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines LBEMS ASBERSMEHRIREE

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the BAnBEHEmMsBEANRERANGEA

hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the BEFNEIE NEEERAAZSERZ

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value MeEHREE -

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’'s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, from 20 to 50 years after the
date of completion.

— Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

— Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the
remaining term of the
lease, if shorter

— Other properties leased for 3 to 22 years
own use carried at cost
— Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles, electronic 3 to 12 years
equipment and others

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the vyear the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

The following intangible assets are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are
as follows:

Integrated biomass utilisation project
operating rights

30 to 50 years

Hazardous and solid waste treatment
project operating rights

6 to 30 years

Licences 6 to 10 years
Technologies 8 years
Backlog contracts 2 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
intangible asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains
a lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease
component(s) and to account for the lease component and
the associated non-lease component(s) (e.g., property
management services for leases of properties) as a single
lease component.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-use
asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 10 to 50 years
Buildings 20 to 30 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of debtors that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Debtors that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

24 BEREAHREBME (&)

HE (&)

AEEUEEIRRBERHEE (BB
M AHEAERA T @A IMA
T YETEEBEEREENHEE)
FEREMH SRR - HITKEE
BEEEMEERHLERANERRE
BEMORARENLEBEAEKEE -

RHEREBEEEHEZHER
RRERENTEHRAER SR -

RERHMEREE

| =

G TR R 5T 2

TREENVIAERRDE  HRIREH
AR A AR EFFARMEEEAGE -

ERMEENNEBERR ZDBBURNE
EREEZARNBASRERBRASEE
BEHeRMEECRBEA -KRTYEE
ABERD ZBREREAAEEHD HHE
RATRERETETERERBEXND

FEFELRHBEZ BRI AEEH
FRARE ME(WBLIFEARETA
BuZeREE) RHGRAHESHEE
VESABMEKD ZEYEREIAEED
HHERITREREFEZZEBKERE
RIS FER ] TEBR R BT B M
BHREEANEGRECZRHERAE -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debtors at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income
is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that there

without undue cost or effort,

has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

In certain cases, the Group may consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due from the end of
the credit term. However, in certain cases, the Group has
rebutted this presumption of default based on reasonable
and supportable information, including the Group’s credit
risk control practices and the historical recovery rate of
financial assets over 90 days past due. However, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Contract assets that contain a significant financing
component and financial assets other than debtors are
subject to impairment under the general approach and they
are classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component and debtors which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to

12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For debtors and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses, lease liabilities, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries and a non-controlling interest, and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise biomass fuel, spare parts and
consumables used in the repairs and maintenance and are
stated at cost less provision for obsolete. Cost is
When
inventories are consumed, the carrying amount of these

determined on the weighted average basis.

inventories is recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

24 EREFTHRME (&)

FRiGHi (&)

EXEHAEEREEN ARG THE
R (WENR) REEEER LHAEE
AEMBAEEMARRARGEZTERER
RREEHRAEEERREEN AR EERR M
BERRAR— BRI EMHIARZ ERB
By (BRERRE —[EERHEENRER
BEBEZECHARELEE - MatEl
WEBREEFEARHAABREE @ &
REREENBERE) BRZAENA
7 e

ogiSE Y

LA ERE MR WRBT/HEIE - B
B S EREBFAET  E@RAAERE
RBHEIE - B EFAXIEE B -
B&H R G B 18 2 AN Z ST B
FER BN -

W&k —REE  ERXAERTA
EREWmRE - YR AR EEMTE AL
AFEHNEBFSRERAERERKBEE
FREERR - WIRHRITER X T B

EE#EK-C



Annual Report 2022 193
R _FFR

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #§ & 3 Kt 5t

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 BREFTBEME (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group satisfied a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs.

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced.

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternate use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable

right to payment for performance

completed to date.
If none of the above conditions are met, the Group
recognises in time when the

performance obligation is satisfied.

revenue at the point

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
the point in time when the customer obtains control of the

asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the surveyors’ assessment of
work performed and the costs incurred up to the end of the
reporting period as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the Group provides more than one service in a
service concession arrangement, the transaction price will be

allocated to each performance obligation by reference to

their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone

selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated

based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market

assessment approach, depending on the availability of

observable information.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the

promised amount of consideration for the effect of a

financing component if it is significant.

(a)

Construction service revenue

The Group’s performance in respect of construction
services creates or enhances an asset or work in
progress that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over
time, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the surveyors’
assessment of work performed and the costs incurred
up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue from construction services under a service
concession agreement is estimated on a cost-plus
basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of
gross margin at the date of the agreement applicable
to similar construction services rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 BEREAHREBME (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(b) Operation revenue

The Group recognised revenue from integrated
biomass utilisation project operation services,
hazardous and solid waste treatment operation
services, environmental remediation project operation
services and solar energy and wind power project
operation services when the related services are
rendered.

Revenue from other sources and other income

Finance and interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are
subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for “impairment of
financial assets”.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Group transfers the related goods or
services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Retirerment schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are

proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as part
of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,

expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying

judgements,

disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
in the financial

effect on the amounts recognised

statements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) and
Build-Operate-Own (“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its
projects.

The Group concluded that all the BOT arrangements and
certain BOO arrangements are service concession
arrangements under HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 12, because
the local government controls and regulates the services
that the Group must provide with the infrastructure at a
pre-determined service charge. In respect of BOT
arrangements, upon expiry of concession right agreements,
the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local
government at nil consideration.

arrangements

Infrastructure for BOO
is used in the service concession

arrangements for its entire or substantial useful life.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Construction contracts

As explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2.4
to the financial statements for “Revenue recognition” and
“Contract assets”, revenue and profit recognition on an
incomplete project is dependent on estimating the final
outcome of the construction contract, as well as the work
done to date. Based on the Group’s recent experience and
the nature of the construction activity undertaken by the
Group, the Group makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced such that the
costs to complete and revenue can be reliably estimated.
until  this point is the
concession assets” as disclosed in note 21 will not include

As a result, reached, “Service
profit which the Group may eventually realise from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of
revenue or costs may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of the reporting period, which would affect the
recognised

adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

revenue and profit in future years as an

Construction revenue arising from construction services is
recognised based on the estimation of the fair value of
construction services and the proportion of construction
work completed to date for each project. The fair value of
construction services is determined on a cost plus mark up
basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross
margin applicable to similar construction services rendered.

Provision for ECLs for debtors and contract assets

The Group uses a ECL model to calculate ECLs for debtors
and contract assets. The model takes into account of
supportable and
historical settlement pattern, ageing profiles, credit loss

reasonable information such as the
experience, published credit ratings and forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

rates are updated and changes in

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECLs for debtors and contract assets
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss

in circumstances and forecast

experience,
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future.

published credit ratings and forecast of

The carrying amounts of debtors and contract assets at
31 December 2022 were HK$6,172,447,000 (2021:
HK$5,524,382,000) and HK$9,791,220,000 (2021:
HK$9,510,877,000), respectively. The information about the
ECLs on the Group’s debtors and contract assets is
22 and 40 to the financial

disclosed in notes 21,

statements.

Impairment losses of goodwill

As explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2.4 to
the financial statements for “Business combinations and
goodwill”, goodwill is allocated to a cash-generating unit or
to a group of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination for the
purpose of impairment assessment, which requires
significant judgement. The Group determined that the group
of cash-generating units to which goodwill was allocated
reflected the lowest level at which goodwill was monitored
for internal reporting and was not larger than an operating
segment in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of

Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment losses of gooadwill (Continued)

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This involves an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at
31 December 2022 was HK$134,207,000 (2021:
HK$162,638,000). Further details are given in note 16 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of

impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets have
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Determining whether such assets are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of each CGU to which
the assets have been allocated, which is the higher of its

fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The calculations of the fair value less costs of disposal or
value in use involves significant estimations about future
business performance with key assumptions including
forecasted revenue and discount rates used. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
is a

amount that reasonable approximation of the

recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
revenue, operating costs and discount rates. Further details

are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax laws, regulations, relevant
interpretation and practices, and other related policies.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022
was HK$80,855,000 (2021: HK$82,450,000). Further details

are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by segments, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is

reported internally to the

Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following four

reportable segments.

(i) Integrated biomass utilisation project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the construction
and operation of biomass direct combustion power

biomass heat supply project,

biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects,

generation projects,

waste-to-energy projects and integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy projects to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation services
as well as finance income.
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HEIEE c WIREEBEE RAEME R
WREE—BIIEE MEEZER
Hia - BE RS RN o



206

China Everbright Greentech Limited
FENRKGZERRER AT

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt % & 3 i 5

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(it

)

Hazardous and solid waste treatment project
construction and operation: this segment engages in
the construction and operation of hazardous waste
landfill projects, hazardous waste incineration projects,
general industrial solid waste electricity and heat
cogeneration projects and physicochemical and
resources recycling projects to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation services
as well as finance income.

Environmental remediation project operation: this
segment engages in the operation of environmental
remediation projects covering restoration of industrial
contaminated sites, contaminated farmland, mines and
landfills, treatment of industrial gas emission,
integrated treatment of oil sludge, treatment of river/
lake sediments and industrial sludge, construction and
operation of wetland parks, environmental stewardship
services and anti-seepage at landfill sites to generate

revenue from operation services.

Solar energy and wind power project operation: this
segment engages in the operation of solar energy
projects and wind power projects to generate revenue
from operation services.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and

allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most

senior executive management monitors the results, assets

and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

S AR N 37
S0

(i) EE;EEREERBRZENMES X
DEN FRE LB EBREHIEIAR

fEEREEE - —RIXEERER
$HORE R REREFAEE - M
EERERG as  E MR s
MBI

(i) FREEABEEL XA HULEFRIR
EEEAES aﬁél%ﬁ RIGHAE
' 5RREEBE  BWURRESE

F’wﬂéfffg - THEBERRE  HRGAE
SIURER R IES AR B
.L SMEE  RRERRBKRE

BERE2IR UELEEZLRBK

o

BX

(iv) 7‘E1X§§$
=E i‘ﬁﬁﬁéﬁlﬁﬁ ;kRE
ELEELRBEWE -

BIHAESR E paR:iiis
BH A

AP BRBAE RS BE2ERDEME
AEBzESRERERTIELEERE
BEATHRED AR 2HE  EERAE:



OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets, goodwill, interests in associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets and current assets with the exception of
intercompany receivables and other corporate assets which
are managed on a group basis. Segment liabilities include
tax payables, deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses attributable to the activities
of the individual segments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings managed directly by the segments, with
the exception of intercompany payables and other corporate
liabilities which are managed on a group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reportable segment profit is “adjusted
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation” (“adjusted EBITDA”). To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further excluded for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditor’s remuneration and other head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest expense from borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation and
amortisation and additions to non-current segment assets
used by the segments in their operations.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEDWER (F
(Continued)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities ) 2PWBXBE -EEREE
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments AEERAFEERDE KD EERE
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive FEmRAAEERRERERK A
management for the purposes of resource allocation FTHREDTEREIN AT

and assessment of segment performance for the year
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HLEE

Integrated biomass  Hazardous and solid
utilisation project ~ waste treatment project Environmental

construction and construction and remediation project  Solar energy and wind
operation operation operation power project operation Total
ENESAANAER REREEREER EREER
BEREE REREE BRBERAEE RERAEE it
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
—B-CE ot St F _B-CE F “B-CE —& “B-"F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 { HK$000  HK$'000
BETR AETT BETR T BETn E¥Tr BMTR EETn  #%Tn  BETx
Segment revenue (note 5): 2 8 (KisEs) «
Revenue from exteral customers and RENREFHRER
reportable segment revenue BFREZHTRE 6,036,741 6,264,735 1,673,766 1,658,459 148,205 318,320 189,459 205485 8,048,171 8,446,999
Segment results: ABEE:
Reportable segment proft (adjusted EBITDA) BTREZHBEF
(AR EBITDA) 1,650,143 2,060,530 488,557 686,664 10,831 42,182 171,450 189,181 2,320,981 2,978,557
Finance costs HBER (740,997)  (741,858)
Depreciation and amortisation, including REREH (BEAPESS)
unallocated portion (924,789)  (747,482)
Unallocated head office and corporate KARBRARGERA
income 30,573 29,272
Unallocated head office and corporate FARBAARGERR
expenses (175,610)  (169,887)
Consolidated profit before tax GARHARFN 510,158 1,348,602
Other segment information: HipHHER
Finance costs HHER 330,248 383,670 94,559 48,120 8,023 10,707 15,206 19,031 448,036 461,528
Unallocated finance costs KARUBER 292,961 280,330
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 474496 478280 360,834 180,518 13,175 13,217 71,7116 71,00 920,221 743,124
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation KARNME R 4,568 4,358
Impairment losses/(write-back of impairment) EREFRANEEREEE/
of debtors and contract assets (FRER) 99,806 (881) 6,810 1,821 50 100 2,490 ~- 109,246 1,040
Bad debt recovered FRIE - = - = (146) (654) - = (146) (654)
Share of losses/profis) of joint ventures, net Fisa80EEE/(BR) 58 - - 18818 24560 - = (295) (48) 18523 24312
Share of losses/(profit) of associates, net MEBENRBE/ (BF) 38 (9,575) (82,390 2,100 - - - - - (7475)  (82,390)
Additions to property, plant and equipment, EEVE BRERRE RAE
right-of-use assets, intangible assets, RE BREE BER
goodwill and non-current portion of BRREZ NS S
prepayments 381,593 367,482 878,555 2,470,537 46,994 49,308 65,290 51,993 1,372,432 2,939,320

Additions to non-current portion of contract REANEE FNBHS
assets 819,793 940,619 6,079 7,086 - - - - 825,872 947,705
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., EBEEDEER (F
(Continued)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities i) PPXE -EEREE(E
(Continued)

Integrated biomass  Hazardous and solid
utilisation project ~ waste treatment project Environmental

construction and construction and remediation project  Solar energy and wind
operation operation operation power project operation Total
ENEGREARER REREREEER EREER
BEREE BEREE BRBERAEE EEEREE @it
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
“E-C-F C F ZB-CEF —BC-CF —EC-CF —B-CE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 ¢ HK$'000
BETR A%TL BETn BEETT  E¥Tn BETR B%TL  B%TR
Reportable segment assets ATREZADEE 26,543,477 28,328,011 8,759,043 9223772 669,924 759,083 1,321,490 1,388,933 37,293,934 39,699,799
Unallocated head office and corporate FARBRARCEEE
assets 1,862,442 839,782
Consolidated total assets GREERE 39,156,376 40,539,581
Reportable segment liabilities ATRE2ABAR 10,636,659 11,398,281 4,447,199 4,701,744 452,068 572,879 378,697 447,935 15,914,623 17,120,839
Unallocated head office and corporate KARBAARGESRE
liabilties 9,707,468 9,273,375

Consolidated total liabiliies GFRAERE 25,622,001 26,394,214
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of () the Group’s revenue from
external customers, (i) the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
and (i) the Group’s non-current portion of other
deposits and prepayments and
The
geographical location of customers is based on the

receivables,
non-current portion of contract assets.

location at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the assets is based on the
physical location of the asset in the case of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, whereas
the location of the operation to which they are
allocated in the case of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments, intangible assets and contract
assets.

4.

BeEpHER (&)
i) HWEER

Revenue from external

customers

TREINEBOTEEBREBINAETP
ZWa  (VASEBEZWE - BE R&
- EREESEREREAE - R(i)K
SE 2 Eth IR - e RIERRK
187 FEBNERER D LA R A MO A B 2 3ERD
M 2 it Bk - BFFTE
[ R AR AS TR B &) D - BEFTE
WEIZREEERATELE (SRmE -
MERSEBEARERAEEENS) -
i3 & 2 275 2 B AE b 2h (5t B 4b FE
WRTE - R RTENRIE - BREE
REHEEMS)E S -

Non-current portion of other
Property, plant and equipment, receivables, deposits and
right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

prepayments and contract
assets

AfpkTE BER

0% BERRE BRRERENEEL
RENREF 2z EREEERENEE FHHH
2022 2022 2021 2022 2021
—g-Cf = —EC-CE :*:*i —g--f C—E-_-%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BETT BETT
PRC FE 8036634 8439087 18,946,607 20373524  7,205217 7,681,356
Hong Kong i 5,709 2,294 46,972 27,693 - -
Germany =8 5,828 5618 26,149 31,283 - =
Total st 8,048,171 8446999 19,019,728 20432500 7205217 7,681,356

Information about a major customer

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has transactions with one (2021:
government authority in the PRC from which the

one) local
revenue individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s
total revenue. The aggregate revenue from this
customer during the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$1,970,194,000 (2021:

HK$2,148,756,000).

(i) TEEFEHR
BE_Z-_—_#F#+-_A=+—BHLFE"
AEEEP R —EE B AFRE (= —

F

—(E)ETRS  BEERZELENRE

Bt A SR 2 0% DA | - B =
TooAt-AST-RULSE REX

PR

S 42 %8 /576 1,970,194,0007C

(= ——4F : B¥2148,756,0007T) °
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5. REVENUE 5. &
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Waa T

Revenue from integrated biomass utilisation

EMEHRAMAEE

2022

—E_-_F

HK$’000
BET T

2021
—E-—4F
HK$’'000
BT

project construction services BERBS M= 763,527 859,786
Revenue from hazardous and solid waste EREREEREIER

treatment project construction services EERB K E 533,724 876,831
Revenue from integrated biomass utilisation EYBEira N AER

project operation services B RS W s 4,912,706 5,052,601
Revenue from hazardous and solid waste EEREEREIERERE

treatment project operation services B R = 1,133,963 774,542
Revenue from environmental remediation project IRIBEEIE B B S R

operation services g 148,205 318,320
Revenue from solar energy and wind power HREFEERRAEIEHE

project operation services B RS W s 189,459 205,485
Revenue from contracts with customers BEA KN E 7,681,584 8,087,565
Finance income from service concession RS RERLE 2

arrangements B 75 W A 366,587 359,434
Total revenue U542 %8 8,048,171 8,446,999

BE-_TE-__F+-_A=1t—B1LFE-
R E B E M I R ) i AR A A
BEERBEB R BBALERBE
6,329,165,000L (ZF = — F : B
6,945,368,0007T) © 4R 8 7% ¥ 35 Y 3£ 4 F7 4
B ZESWE AR S ES -

The aggregated revenue from construction services, revenue
from operation services and finance income derived from
the local government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$6,329,165,000 (2021: HK$6,945,368,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The revenues are included in
four segments as disclosed in note 4 to the financial
statements.
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5 s (&
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWE
(a)  Disaggregated revenue information (@ ADHrWa EHR

Integrated biomass ~ Hazardous and solid
utilisation project ~ waste treatment project Environmental

construction and construction and remediation project  Solar energy and wind
operation operation operation power project operation Total
ENEGREARAER REREBEEER KREER
BEREE BEREE BRBERAEE EEREEE @it
2022 2021 2022 2022 2022 2021 2022
ot St - —& ZB-CF —B-C% F -ZB-CF —& ZB-CF
HK$'000 K$000  HK$'000 $ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 i HK$'000
-1 I 1.5 w R T E¥Tn BETL EETn AT A%TR
(i) Types of goods and services ) ENREHBEE
Construction services BERE 763527 869,786 533,724 876,831 - = - - 1,297,251 1,736,617
Operation services EERE 4,912,706 5,052,601 1,133,963 774,542 148,205 318,320 189,459 205485 6,384,333 6,350,948
Total revenue from contracts with RERMRERE
customers 5,676,233 5912,387 1,667,687 1,651,373 148,205 318,320 189,459 205485 7,681,584 8,087,565
(ii) Geographical markets* (i) BEFE*
Hong Kong il - - - - - - 5,709 2,294 5,709 2,294
PRC RE 5,676,233 5912,387 1,667,687 1,651,373 148,205 318320 177,922 197,573 7,670,047 8,079,653
Germany [z - = - = - = 5,828 5618 5,828 5618
Total revenue from contracts with REAHRHEE
customers 5,676,233 5912,387 1,667,687 1,651,373 148,205 318,320 189,459 205485 7,681,584 8,087,565
* The geographical location of customers is based on * BTN RIZAR IR IR S o

the location at which the services were provided.

Timing of revenue recognition ez 1 SR AT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Services transferred over time BE BT B RS 2 AR TS 7,519,253 7,967,798
Goods transferred at a point in time RE—BHER 2EY 162,331 119,767

7,681,584 8,087,565




REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)  Performance obligations

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
(unsatisfied or
December are as

remaining performance obligations
partially unsatisfied) as at 31
follows:

Expected to be recognised within one
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5. Wa (&)
BEFEaHWE ()

b) EXEIE
R+ZA=+t—HRESREHRTEN
BEE(CREBETHE D REEIT) 2%
ZEBTEET

2022
—E-_F

2021
—E-—fF
HK$’'000
BT T

HK$’000
BET T

BN —FRNER

year 7,912,196 10,190,090
Expected to be recognised after one year FBEi#S A —FEHER 143,843,616 177,318,474
151,755,812 187,508,564

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
construction services and operation services in
connection with the Group’s environmental protection
projects, of which the performance obligations are to
be satisfied within 50 years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.

The Group has applied the practical expedient under
HKFRS 15 and does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfied the remaining performance obligations for
contracts with an original expected duration of one
year or less.

ENRESRTREOBEFELFAERN —F
BER /NG 2 X HERETS MK
SERREENARATFRETE
ERBRELRBEZENEE -CN
RERTENETZMEEMRIZE
REBAHBN —FRBER /R -
EXFREEZ 2B BEZREIH
AERE-

AEBERATEEMBHELRES
BT ZATRERENEREEGRE
AEBENREFEHRRER A —FHIA
NZEHNZBTRAOEERTKER
RESZNm 2 ER -
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6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), 6. H bz REM WS (E8)

NET FER
An analysis of other revenue and other gains/(losses), net is Hib e zs R E ezt (F518) F5E 2 D
as follows: wm
2022 2021
—E2-_F -
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Other revenue H {2
Interest income B U A 21,916 23,103
Government grants* IRk 135,605 162,552
Value-added tax refunds** AR 122,215 76,430
Others Hh 55,830 51,805
335,566 313,890
* Government grants of HK$119,434,000 (2021: * HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIFE"

>k

HK$158,444,000) were granted during the year ended
31 December 2022 to subsidise certain integrated biomass
utilisation and hazardous and solid waste treatment projects
of the Group in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts
of those grants. There is no assurance that the Group will
continue to receive such grants in the future. Government
grants received for which related expenditure has not yet
been undertaken are included in deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group was entitled to PRC value-added tax refunds of
HK$122,215,000 (2021: HK$76,430,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2022. There were no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts
of such tax refunds. There is no assurance that the Group
will continue to receive such tax refunds in the future.

*k

7R 58 B R B BT 4 BY 8 5 119,434,000
TT(ZZ = —4F : B ¥158,444,0007T)
NEPAEERPENE FTEYELGREF
AREELEFEEEER - WRZS/H
SEREXIGEREMBIREE - BT
REAEBEBBBIEBEESZEHY
& o BEMARAREREAZ 2 EWBTHE
SREBFBARR KT ABETEA -

BE-_E-_—F+-A=+—RHItFE "
AREBAHEESTHREERER BE
122,215,000 0 (Z & = — F : B ¥
76,430,0007T) © U B 3% 55 R B A 4 R =
FR A R B b S AR TE - BE MR EBAEE
AEBrEEESZESER -
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6. Hiblam MHE M (EE)
HER ()

2022 2021
—E_— - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Other gains/(losses), net His (B5i8) B4
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of items of property, HEWE « HE K& E
plant and equipment HE 2 FRES
(E18) (2,623) 1,468
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary EHE B AR
2R (19,157) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEHBARZ
Wz 476 =
Gain on disposal of partial interests in o E R — R E QA
an associate EB ik 7 Wz 20,918 —
Impairment losses of items of property, W% BEREHEEER
plant and equipment B EE (15,526) -
Impairment losses of goodwill BB EE (14,474) —
Write-back of impairment/(impairment losses) of & )& EFEEE @~
contract assets (FEEE) (1,476) 1,094
Impairment losses of debtors at R K ANFTE 2
amortised cost FE W BR R AR B 18 (11,468) (2,134)
Impairment losses of debtors at fair value BEARBEFAHEMEZE
through other comprehensive income LAY FE U BR S FE 1B
&8 (96,302) =
Bad debt recovered R U [l 146 654
(139,486) 1,082
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MBER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEERSITHET
2022 2021
—==-= - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ook e e
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEZFE 661,658 648,344
Interest on medium-term notes RHEIZE IR 2 FI B 117,629 62,247
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGBZHE 706 610
Asset-backed notes arrangement fee BEIRE
ENERE — 94,730
Finance costs incurred ELZBBER 779,993 805,931
Less: interest capitalised* W B 2 F B (38,996) (64,073)
740,997 741,858
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate ranging * BE-_Z-_—H+-A=+—HBIEE
from 3.89% to 4.75% (2021: 3.89% to 4.75%) per annum BERATZEN F3.89%%£4.75% (= F
during the year ended 31 December 2022. Z—%F :3.80%F4.75%) WEFE T LLE

A -



8.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

Annual Report 2022
R _FFR

217

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #§ & & Kf &

8. EREiAI&F

AEEBRBARFIE NG GEA)

(crediting):
2022 2021
—E_-—fF —EF-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Cost of inventories consumed BEFEATFEZKA 3,148,906 2,943,017
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment*  #% « lE MR EFTE* 297,327 198,997
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 19,341 18,093
Amortisation of intangible assets* | & E 608,121 530,392
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEBEFEZ
measurement of lease liabilities HE K 14,467 15,682
Auditor’s remuneration % 25 R % B
— audit services — EBZR 3,000 2,900
— other services — Hin 7% 2,448 1,000
5,448 3,900
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ (B E®AIF X (T8
remuneration (note 9))* E=Me (M:E9))*
Wages and salaries TERE® 628,145 707,743
Pension scheme contributions RIKREE B 65,811 66,514
693,956 774,257
Impairment losses/(write-back of impairment) of & #&EFEIEEIR (B
contract assets EREEE) 1,476 (1,094)
Impairment losses of goodwill HEEEER 14,474 —
Impairment losses of property, plant and Y - WE REEREE
equipment B8 15,526 —
Impairment losses of debtors at R R AT EZ
amortised cost FEUBR SR FEB B 18 11,468 2,134
Impairment losses of debtors at fair value BARBE AR MEE
through other comprehensive income A B FE W BR SR AR AR
&8 96,302 —
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary At — F'ﬁ MEBARZ
19,157 —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ﬁ%—F‘Eﬁ MEBARZ
L& (476) —
Gain on disposal of partial interests in & 75’\ B WNG
an associate DiEmZ HSZ (20,918) -
Foreign exchange differences, net E%i‘%‘%%ﬁ 42,149 10,677

*k

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment of

HK$262,757,000 (2021:

HK$163,026,000) was included in

“Direct costs and operating expenses” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The amortisation of intangible assets of HK$589,680,000

(2021:
operating expenses”
statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022,

HK$512,008,000) was included in “Direct costs and
on the face of the consolidated

the Group had no forfeited

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension schemes in future years (2021: Nil).

* Y2 - BB KRR 3T & B 262,757,000
T(ZZ = —4F : B¥163,026,0007T) 5+
ANGEBERIEERARCEER]A -

> ﬂﬁéﬁé%&iﬁ%#}%%seooom ZF
B #512,008,0007T) 5T A LR A 18
mﬁ(ﬁ?‘;ﬂ%&%«%ﬁﬁﬁj A o

* R-T-_—F+—_A=+—H0 AKEX
UG TR E] R AR AR SR R OR 2
ZRAREBAHEER(ZZEZ—F: 8) -
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EEFENMFBITHBAEMS
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIBCEM AR - FE 2 51651 5£383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), @- o ckMERAR (FEEEFNERE
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and FBROIE2RBEECFRNEERETETHR
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about ABMEOT :

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Group
&
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Fees e 990 990
Other emoluments: Eie -
Salaries, allowances and e EAR
benefits in kind BEYH = 5,871 4,952
Discretionary bonuses )15 15 4T 5,126 5,183
Pension scheme contributions ERRRERT B 1,259 972
12,256 11,107

13,246 12,097
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. BEENFETHAEME (&
REMUNERATION (Continued)
2022 gz

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme
in kind bonuses contributions Total

e BER RINMRE
we ENAE BisEA B e act
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETR BETT BETT

Executive directors BiTEE

QIAN Xiaodong BEF - 2,042 1,21 53 3,316

YANG Zhigiang BER - 1,460 1,600 602 3,662

LO Kam Fan ERE - 1,460 1,280 459 3,199

ZHU Fugang KER - 909 1,025 145 2,079

- 5,871 5,126 1,259 12,256

Non-executive directors FHTES

HUANG Haiging 585 -~ - - _ _

WANG Tianyi TRE - - - - -

GUO Ying P - - - - -

SONG Jian PN - - - - -

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

CHOW Siu Lui Bz 330 - - - 330

Philip TSAO - 330 - - - 330

YAN Houmin BER 330 - - - 330
990 - - - 990

990 5,871 5,126 1,259 13,246
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. EENFETHAEMNE (&
REMUNERATION (Continued)
2021 —E-—F

Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses comributions Total

X RINRE ﬁﬁ
Hne BiEREA R st
HK$'000 HK$ OOO HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  BETR  BETR  BETR  BETR

Executive directors HTES
QIAN Xiaodong BER - 2,036 2,098 47 4,181
YANG Zhigiang B = 1,458 1,485 466 3,409
LO Kam Fan ERE = 1,458 1,600 459 3,517
- 4,952 5,183 972 11,107
Non-executive directors FHTES
WANG Tianyi TRE = = = = =
GUO Ying P - - - - -
SONG Jian PN = = = = =
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
CHOW Siu Lui B 330 - - - 330
Philp TSAO EAR 330 — = — 330
YAN Houmin BER 330 - - - 330
990 - - - 990
990 4,952 5,183 972 12,097
There was no arrangement under which a director or the AARWEITIFRESTKEEZTHRAE
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration AERFRNRENREREE MM LEHE -

during the year.
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. &&= FMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRAAEESTHEERENEES(=ZE
four directors (2021: three directors), details of whose IFZREER)  BEZFHEBIR
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the EXHFI - FABT —R(ZE=Z—5F:
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2021: two) MB) WHFARFEEHEETHRABZR
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief BEMEENFMEBNT ¢

executive of the Company are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT 5T BT
Salaries and other emoluments HEREMME 820 1,790
Discretionary bonuses B TEAL 917 3,074
Pension scheme contributions RONREFT B HE5R 136 481
1,873 5,345

The number of the highest paid non-director and non-chief FHNTUTHE 2 IEERIIEEETR

executive employees whose remuneration fell within the AEBESFHHEEMNAZKZDT :

following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EBE AR

2022

—F=-=

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7B #81,500,001 TR
75 2,000,0007T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 B #2,500,001 L&
75 % 3,000,0007T - 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FAAEELERARRFEFRAEAIL
the directors of the Company or any of the highest paid IERRREE 2 &m 5 E 8 S B
employees who are not a director of the Company as an & ERMAREEIRMAREE R Z
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as RSB E -

compensation for loss of office.
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11. INCOME TAX 1. FiSH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as ARAEEREE S -_—F+=-A=+—
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in AL FETE B EBIT A ERRAF
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: MU EAEHEEMNEHEE® (T —
Nil). Fom)o
Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory rate BT 2 BIARIE R B ER ROER -
of 25% of the assessable profits under tax rules and RERMBFILUEERR25%FTE - FR
regulations in the PRC. During the year, certain PRC RIBEBANEERRIER & THBENE
subsidiaries are subject to tax concessions under the NEIZAHIEES -

relevant tax rules and regulations.

2022 2021
—==-= T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Current tax — Elsewhere NEARETE — Hhin s
Charge for the year REERXL 43,870 136,106
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR/
(EBFEHHE) 7,703 (7,113)
Deferred tax (note 27) EIERIE (T 5E27) 113,585 99,578

Total tax expenses for the year AEREHIERL BT 165,158 228,571
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FRS L ()
BEARADARAAHS HBATME
BN AEER 2 AR E S ERBEAA
Rz BB I B B R B R 5 E 2 PR
2 SRR

INCOME TAX (Continued) 11.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries or
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit before tax B 752 i &2 A 510,158 1,348,602
Tax at the statutory tax rate HAEMEFTE ZHIE 135,469 329,308
Difference in tax rates enacted by local 5 E BBz
authorities MERER (34,132) (85,907)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable FEHREARNEE
and distributed profits of the Group’s PRC A B B B A R AT 4
subsidiaries DR KRB 9 IKE
2 1,099 (14,715)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAEFERETIR
(FBFRRE) 7,703 (7,113)
Income not subject to tax AR A (8,395) (11,891)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A X 30,853 18,889
Tax losses not recognised AERHIAEE 32,561 —
Tax expense at the Group’s effective rate BREEERMEAE
ZHIAX H 165,158 228,571
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12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends attributable to the year:

12.

RERRE

R

2022
—E2-_F

2021
== —=%E
HK$’000
BT T

HK$°000
BET T

Interim — HK3.6 cents FH - gREBR
(2021: HK7.0 cents) per ordinary share 3.6 M (=T =—
& 7.081) 74,379 144,625
Final — HK nil cents RE — SRTBER
(2021: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share THW(ZE=—
F 4.05810) - 82,643
74,379 227,268

The final dividend for the year is proposed after the end of
the reporting period and is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$340,201,000 (2021:
HK$1,110,385,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,066,078,000 (2021: 2,066,078,000) in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive
ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

13.

AERZRAKRBEHN S HRRE DR M
ABARABRREERERRAFAE L4t
R AEE -

AR eIESBRENBREN

BRERNBFSEHIRAR A =R RE
16 A F E A F 7 #340,201,0000L (= &
——%F : %%1,110,385,0007T) A M FRAE
B 17 % AR h0#E F 15 £12,066,078,000 %
(ZZT——4F :2,066,078,000/%) 5+ & -

Rt EERESRBTE - WERHME5E
EECERFT—FT+A=1+—
HEFEZ2SREAAT CEELAE
THREE=Z == T —F+=
A=+t RALFETEABETEIYE Y
Timhk o
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BB Kk

Motor
Leasehold vehicles,
improvements, electronic
Plant and  furniture and equipment and  Construction
Buildings machinery fixtures others in progress Total
HENERE . "E -BIRE
2 B R #eE BAUREE REM ERIR k)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BRI BETT BRI BETT BRI
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2022 RZZEZZF
—A—H 1,672,500 2,644,459 104,241 281,331 1,630,290 6,332,821
Additions ®E 1,338 110,013 25,574 13,131 279,484 429,540
Disposals and write-off & R (101) (194) (675) (8,317) - (9,287)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—AREAA
(note 32) (FizE32) - - (25) (114) - (139)
Transfers B 864,791 516,452 8,302 - (1,389,545) -
Exchange realignment A% (201,256) (263,359) (11,090) (23,672) (42,258) (541,635)
At 31 December 2022 i St -2
+-A=+—H 2,337,272 3,007,371 126,327 262,359 477,971 6,211,300
Accumulated depreciation and SHMERFEEER
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2022 NZZE-_—F
—A—H 134,689 646,299 59,160 125,653 - 965,801
Charge for the year AEERY 102,388 136,187 34,720 24,032 - 297,327
Impairment losses HEER - 1,714 - - 13,812 15,526
Disposals and write-off & R (12 (180) (466) (7,158) - (7,816)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR
(note 32) (Fizx32) - - ) (20) - (29)
Exchange realignment R AR (19,989) (64,343) (7,826) (11,840) - (103,998)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZ=F
+-A=+-H 217,076 719,677 85,579 130,667 13,812 1,166,811
Net carrying amount: BREEE :
At 31 December 2022 i St -2
+=A=1+—-H 2,120,196 2,287,694 40,748 131,692 464,159 5,044,489
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A NG B =
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14, M - WBE NMERE(E
(Continued)
Motor
Leasehold vehicles,
improvements, electronic
Plant and furniture and  equipment and Construction
Buildings machinery fixtures others in progress
BF HRREE R At ERIR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T YT BETT BETT
Cost: BROA -
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=—F
—R—H 850,789 2,024,733 70,727 256,847 1,378,578 4,581,674
Additions ®E 248,664 432,074 29,676 16,210 784,292 1,510,916
Disposals and write-off & R 877) (124) (134) (2,802) - (3,937)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—REHE AR
(note 31) (GEXID = 11,805 = = = 11,805
Transfers 283 509,853 81,640 = = (6591,493) =
Exchange realignment B H A 64,071 94,331 3,072 11,076 58,913 232,363
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—F
+=ZA=+-A 1,672,500 2,644,459 104,241 281,331 1,630,290 6,332,821
Accumulated depreciation: 2EHE:
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=—F
—R—H 97,330 510,060 27,986 98,178 = 733,554
Charge for the year AEERY 32,699 111,806 29,063 25,429 - 198,997
Disposals and write-off & R (485) (48) ([127) (2,358) - 3,018)
Exchange realignment X A% 5,145 24,481 2,238 4,404 = 36,268
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZ=-—F
+=ZA=+—-AH 134,689 646,299 59,160 125,653 - 965,801
Net carrying amount: AR ME
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—%F
+=A=+-A 1,537,811 1,998,160 45,081 155,678 1,630,290 5,367,020
During the year ended 31 December 2022, an impairment HE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE"
loss of HK$15,626,000 (2021: Nil) represented the B BB AE 115,626,000 (ZF=—4 :
write-down of the carrying amounts of certain items of E)RBRRABEMRNE TYE - BE KR
property, plant and equipment to their recoverable amounts HEENEREHEMRETKESHE - 5
of Zhangjiagang Gelin. Further details of impairment are set FENE—TFERR Y B mEM L6 -

out in note 16 to the financial statements.



15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease terms of 10 to 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
between 20 and 30 vyears. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets

outside the Group.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
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15.

HE
FEBEEREBEA

AEBEAB S REHEFTERNETIA
BEZEBEMNEEAN - AREEEL
—IRERTES R A ARBES S T
FERTFNEELH  MBBEZSF L
MEZGF - BRIELFEENR - BFHE
EHH-—RA-TFE=tF -EX L
AEBNSAAREEUIIATEERSE
FHHEEERE -

@ EHEEE
AEEFEREEEC REAEREFA

assets and the movements during the year are as FBNT -
follows:
Prepaid land
lease
Buildings payments Total
AL
BF HENRE wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 January 2021 RZEB_—%
—A—8 8,231 640,378 648,609
Additions HE 1,733 62,210 63,943
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y28 — M B A 7]

(note 31) (FF3E31) 6,176 = 6,176
Disposal HeE - (15,474) (15,474)
Depreciation provided FRNEFTRITE

during the year (2,528) (15,565) (18,093)
Exchange realignment b 5 A 233 14,823 15,056
As at 31 December 2021 HRZ-T=—

and 1 January 2022 +=—RA=+—8H

k=—FT-—

—H—H 13,845 686,372 700,217
Additions BE 6,817 = 6,817
Depreciation provided FRNEFHRITE

during the year (2,641) (16,700) (19,341)
Exchange realignment R S (645) (67,694) (68,339)
As at 31 December 2022 WH_ZET_—4F

+=—A=+—8H 17,376 601,978 619,354
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15. LEASES (Continued) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBIEREBEA (F)
(b)  Lease liabilities b) MHEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the HEAGBECEOREREFREHN
movements during the year are as follows: o
2022 2021
—E- & —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEEE 15,636 8,836
New leases MEIHE 6,817 1,733
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Uy B8 — R BT B A )
(BFsE31) - 7,145
Accretion of interest recognised during FANERERF L
the year 706 610
Payments (S (2,905) (2,934)
Exchange realignment bE 0 = (692) 246
Carrying amount as at 31 December W+=—A=+—8z
FREE 19,562 15,636
Analysed into: AT
Current portion BN EREE 5 3,049 854
Non-current portion JERNER B> 16,513 14,782
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEBGBZIHBER TR BIRE

note 40 to the financial statements. PIFE40 EE -
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15. LEASES (Continued) 16. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREABAE)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) b) HEEBEEE)
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to RERFPRACEERESENT

leases are as follows:

2022 2021

—E-= T —4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBGBZAE 706 610

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets fF BEEERES 19,341 18,093

Expense relating to short-term leases not B EEHAEMNFH L

included in the measurement of lease Rt AHEAEH=E

liabilities 14,467 15,682

Total amount recognised in profit or loss R IE#EEFERZ

e nt-c] 34,514 34,385
The total cash outflow for leases and future cash MEZHReRHRBERM ARG A
outflows relating to leases that have not yet EZHEBRRBEERE DRI MR
commenced are disclosed in notes 33(c) and 40 to K KT 5E33(c) K401 55 ©
the financial statements, respectively.
16. GOODWILL 16. &
2022 2021
—E-= B —4F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZRAER
AREHE 162,638 157,609
Impairment losses EIEEE (14,474) -
Exchange realignment b 5, 58 2 (13,957) 5,029

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December W+—-A=+—HZ
BAME K AR EFE 134,207 162,638
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16. GOODWILL (Continued) 16. BE (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill BEZERA
The carrying amounts of goodwill acquired through business BRI AR RETHRBARBRESS MM
combinations have been allocated to the relevant WEESEZEESReELEUL((REE
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) of the individual companies EBND) 2B ZEEERMRENT

for impairment testing, which are summarised as follows:

2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Environmental remediation segment: RIFEEDEL
Suntime Environmental Remediation CO., Ltd FHIRREERR
(“Suntime Environmental”) (note i) AR ([ EHEIRED
(B =Ei) 68,565 75,002
Hazardous and solid waste treatment segment: £ M ERER B 9 &6 ¢
EB Greentech Technology (Wuxi) Limited HRE EIRIREHE
(“Wuxi Technology”)* (note i) (#E85) BRAR]
([R5 ])
(B3 &Ei) 65,642 71,804
Zhangjiagang Gelin Environmental Engineering R BB MIRIE LA
Company Limited (“Zhangjiagang Gelin”)* BRAA
(note ii) (TRFBIEI])
iEaD) — 15,832
134,207 162,638
* For identification only * EEEHF
Notes: P 5T
()  The recoverable amounts of the respective CGUs are (i) ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ?%iﬁ@ZFjﬂ&@ %5523*%%@5
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These ﬁﬁ{%{ﬁﬁ\;;ﬁﬁém ° Ex%ﬁﬁé?ﬂkﬁﬁﬁ
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial E;EEETZ/EZEI'ii/HﬁFHEJEM%?E%zﬁﬁﬁ
budgets approved by management covering a five-year ERA - AR HEREEZRATRER R
period. The pre-tax discount rates ranging from 9.7% to 2%:7??9.7%;510.\6% :i;ﬁ:*ﬁﬂo\ﬁ‘;/?
10.6% (2021: 10.6% to 10.8%) have been used for the £10.8%) MEBBAFHHzRNSRE
value-in-use calculations, and cash flows beyond the JIASERF29% (ZF = —5F : 2% 23%)
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% H-EEan IERAENEAEENS
(2021: 2% to 3%). In the opinion of the directors, no WREERRAEEERE -
impairment loss was recognised for goodwill based on the
value-in-use calculation.
Bases on management assessment, no impairment is REEEENGE R_F__F+_A=+—

considered necessary at 31 December 2022 (2021: Ni). B UEREREABUE (ZT - —F &)



16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, an impairment
loss of HK$14,747,000 (2021: Nil) in respect of the goodwill
of Zhangjiagang Gelin was recognised in consideration of its
operating performance and market conditions.

The impairment loss was determined based on the value-in-
use and amounts estimated by management covering a
period of five years. The pre-tax discount rate used in the
value-in-use calculation is 9.1% (2021: 10.9%).

Management determined the budgets based on service
agreements governing the relevant operations.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation of the
relevant CGU include revenue, operating costs, terminal
growth rate and discount rates. Revenue is projected with a
processing volume at growth rates per annum with
reference to historial performance and management
expectation of business development over the projection
periods. Operating expenses are expected to increase at the
long term inflation rate. Cash flow beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%. The
discount rate used is the pre-tax rate that reflect the
current market assessments of the time value of money and

the specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.
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16.

V=

El V=1
Vﬁﬂ ”é\utf/

mEZEBEISA(F)

BysE - (&)

iy HEZZZ=ZF+ZA=+—HILFE"
SRR SIS B FEIB 1B 5 814,747,000

T(ZEZ—F B ERARHEKLERAR
M5B R MER

FEBEREEEEBGHIORERFHN
FRAEERSEET  FHEETEMA
MBATANIR R A9 1% (T =~ — & :
10.9%) °

EEEREREAREB IR HE &
EHMEE o

HERSEESEUNERAEBEAER AR
AN EIERREEFEKT  EEXEK -
KA RE R K - BB HAfE W R R R
BENFHRELBFELREREREEE
BEREHEN S EERRHEERES
BIREER - AFHNENE 2 REKB2%
MIEREETHEE MERANBERERR
BRE AT 5 B S R EE R AT G & EAE
BA3R o B 4 B A B VR E AR 9 A Al A
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BILEE

Integrated Hazardous and

biomass  solid waste
utilisation treatment
project project Total
operating operating Backlog Computer intangible
rights rights Licences  Technologies contracts software assets
ENEGENA RERERRE
HEREEE  HEEER HR L 3 EMRNG EVEELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gt = ¥ - - 3 -
j T
31 December 2022 ZB-ZE+ZBZ1-8
Cost; A
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—%-HA—-H 12,631,118 3,460,919 143,240 15,026 3,244 16,012 16,269,559
Additions #E 304,241 533,724 - - - 4,546 842,511
Exchange realignment ER A% (1,101,359) (321,670) (12,20) (1,289) (1) (1,584)  (1,438,472)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-=f+=-A=1-H 11,834,000 3,672,973 130,947 13,737 2,967 18,974 15,673,598
Accumulated amortisation and 2 BERER:
impairment:
At 1 January 2022 WZE--%-H-A 1,583,991 264,476 43,296 5,635 3,244 3,654 1,904,296
Charge for the year AEERX 412,918 175,791 14,454 1,800 - 3,158 608,121
Exchange realignment A% (157,012) (30,817) (5,525) (566) (217) (507) (194,704)
At 31 December 2022 RZF-—_#+-A=+-H 1,839,897 409,450 52,225 6,869 2,967 6,305 2,317,113
Net carrying amount: REFE -
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZ#+-A=t-H 9,994,103 3,263,523 78,722 6,868 - 12,669 13,355,885
31 December 2021 ZBZ-f+ZBZ+-H
Cost; KA
At 1 January 2021 W=E2=-%f-A-H 11,972,035 2,491,367 138,810 14,561 3,143 11,858 14,631,774
Additions #E 271,455 876,830 - - - 3,716 1,162,001
Exchange realignment ERA% 387,628 92,722 4,430 465 101 438 485,784
At 31 December 2021 RZZ=-%+-A=1-H 12,631,118 3,460,919 143,240 15,026 3,244 16,012 16,269,559
Accumulated amortisation and R BERFER:
impairment:
At 1 January 2021 WZE=-%-f—-H 1,122,753 162,355 27,432 3,640 3,143 1,348 1,320,671
Charge for the year AEERY 417,538 94,644 14,142 1,848 = 2,220 530,392
Exchange realignment B A% 43,700 7417 1,722 147 101 86 53,233
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-§+-A=1-H 1,683,991 264,476 43,296 5,635 3,244 3,654 1,904,296
Net carrying amount: FEFE:
At 31 December 2021 WZEZ-F+-A=t-H 11,047,127 3,196,443 99,944 9,391 - 12,358 14,365,263




17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2022, there were certain projects that
had not commenced operation, the amount of the project
operating rights of these projects was HK$1,342,776,000
(2021: HK$1,712,057,000).

Intangible assets which are identified with indicators of
impairment or certain intangible assets that had not
commenced operation as at the end of reporting period are
reviewed for impairment based on individual cash-generating
units (“CGUS”) level. These assets have been allocated to
individual CGUs in the integrated biomass utilisation, and
solar energy and wind power segments. The recoverable
amount of each CGU to which these assets were allocated
was determined based on fair value less cost of disposal
(“FVLCD”) calculations using the discounted cash flow
method.

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated based on projection of a series of cash flows from
the perspective of market participants covering projection
periods of the remaining service concession periods which
are stipulated in the respective service concession
agreements. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flows in order to establish the present value
of the cash flows.

Key assumptions used in FVLCD calculations of the relevant
CGUs include revenue, operating costs and discount rates.
Revenue is projected with historical growth rates of
comparable projects and operating expenses are expected
to increase at the long term inflation rate. The pre-tax
discount rates applied to the cash flow projections range
from 8.7% to 16.2% (2021: 12.4% to 17.9%). Assumptions
used are made with reference to historical data of existing
projects, observable market data of comparable companies
and industry reports, management’s expectation for the
market development and their business plans. The discount
rates used are the pre-tax rates that reflect the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs.

A significant increase (decrease) in the revenue growth rate
in isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease) in
the fair value of the relevant CGUs. A significant increase
(decrease) in the discount rate and inflation rate in isolation
would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair
value of the relevant CGUs. The fair value measurement was
categorised under Level 3 with significant unobservable
inputs.

Based on the management assessment, no impairment
losses on intangible assets was considered as necessary as
at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
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17.
GhE

(@)

Rz

ISNES

R-EZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H8 £THEH
MAMBEE  ZETHEENEAEKEER
B #1,342,776,000C (ZF = —F : B
1,712,057,0007T) °

HRSAREFSRNETLEEXBERE
HRM ARG ABENETEZEED
REBERNREEEEM ((REEEEM])
KPETREERSE RFEECEIER
EWMEZETE  HRBEERRAED AH
BERREELSEMN - ZEEEMDENS
BEREELSMNATRESEIRERIA
BERHERA (TFVLCD]) 5t E 75 A AL
RATREELETE °

RIBMERRSREE  ARERE—FT
ReREMAAEMSE2EENAERG
BOREERBEIEERGERENT
ERARTS R R AR 2 IR RO TRORI HAR - 4R
MISPTEMRRERRDRE - UL
REeRmEHRE -

HARSEABEMNHFVLCDFTE HARA
MEZBEREIEWE - EERA MBS
Ko WKIBETEAILLIBE NE SRR E—
BoEEBRENSERBBRERIRERM
- EARESREEANFH AR E
HENFET%E162% (T — —4F:
12.4%%E17.9%) » FTEANEBRRIIZRIE
EHEBWMELER JEEBAFNAE
RAIGHERITERE  BREEHMISH
RETEH R EMEBEEL o FTER
FBIR R ARME IS S EERER
WA E R EAEREESEMNEHMNET
2B 0 B AT I R o

Yo gs 8 = A MR B IRIE A0 OBl ) 5 BUR
R EEEMN QR EAREEMOR
D) o BRI & RSB E R AR RO 18 B IR 48
Ofd) BERHERBESELBUNIRE
AMERA () - AREAENRRE=
& BERTABRE ABUE -

BREEEENTGH ERAEFN =%
T+ ZRAR=F+—HERZZE=—F+=
A=t+—BYEEEETIRFEEES -
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. &2t #Em
2022 2021
—E2-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Share of net assets IR EE TR 33,424 24,761
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: AEFBGEREZFBEOT -

Place of Group’s
incorporation Particulars of effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of joint ventures and business paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
BARE  mMEAR
BRRBRARE f #A 5 TEXH
EBG Veolia Environmental Services (Changzhou) ~ PRC RMB110,000,000 50% - 50% Design, construction, operation and maintenance
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as EBG SUEZ of hazardous waste incineration project
Environmental Services (Changzhou) Co.,
Limited)
ERALERERS (BN ERAR il ARE110,000,0007 50% = 50% it Bl BERERRENAER
(AIBRREF TRERE (M) ERAA)
EBG K. Wah Solid Waste Treatment Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 51% - 51% Investment holding
Limited
KEEEREERERAT Bk #%10,0007C 51% = 51% RERK
Xiao County Guangmin Energy Limited* PRC RMBS6, 160,000 49% - 49%  Design, construction, operation and maintenance
of heat generation project
BEKREBERAR hE AR%6,160,0007 49% = 49% Fif Bl EERAEHMER
Kellon Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 30% - 50% Photovoltaic energy
EREZERAR A 7110,0007C 30% = 50% EREE
Xuzhou Xinguang Greentech Renewable PRC RMB62,500,000 40% - 40%  Design, construction, operation and maintenance
Resource Limited* of scrap tires projects
BN EERBELERERAR HE AR 62,500,007 40% = 40% Rit BE EERAEEESRER
* For identification purpose only * EH3 5
All the joint ventures are unlisted corporate entities whose FrEEEREARIFELMEAER &

quoted market prices are not available. TMIGHE
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18. & &R (&)

/|
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TEREMTIEBENEANAEEREG E D
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not EMBREYKER:

individually material:

2022

—=-_ —ET - —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEEF T
Share of losses of joint ventures FriEa &t EEE (18,523) (24,312)

Share of total comprehensive losses of joint Fiihe&a X2 EER
ventures M (20,712) (22,820)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBREEREL
interests in joint ventures HEmAREE 33,424 24,761
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. Bt QRIS

2022 2021
—E:-= — T —F

=

HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Share of net assets FEIhEEF5 239,883 254,413
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 10. Bt& N Ak (&
Particulars of the associates are as follows: B AR ZFBOT

Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective Held by the Held by a
Name of associates and business paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
A ER AR
B
Anging Jinghuan Green Environment Solid PRC RMB202,000,000 34% - 34%  Design, construction, operation and maintenance of
Waste Comprehensive Disposal Co., Ltd. hazardous and solid waste treatment project
(‘Anging Solid Waste”) (note i)
RERRRERRERGAREBRAR Ll AR #202,000,0007C 34% = 34% Rt RE BERARCEREREERA
(E3:-4:3):9)) (Fﬁﬁu)
Nanjing Liuhe Jasmine Green Energy Company ~ PRC RMB160,000,000 44.1% = 44.1%  Financing, construction, operation maintenance and
Limited* (“Nanjing Liuhe”) management in urban household waste

business services and power generation
transmission and supply (note i)

RAARHKERRERAR il AR %160,000,0007C 44.1% = 441% BHEFIREERBEREE  GERHEEBH
) BE R EE  BEAEE (W)

* For identification purpose only * E 535

Notes: HiEE

() AKBESEIFORFEHRAA (UHZRQF
A %xﬁ%)EAEP@BZI?E@E%'M
MELEMHNERENEZRELD -

(i) Anging Solid Waste was established by the Group with Beijing
Environment Limited in the PRC, the other investor to this
associate, to enhance the harmless disposal ability of
hazardous waste of Anging City.

ZEEBERIELTEAER  LEMSR
=

REE-E-_—F+-_A=+—HIHF
B AEER—BBLE=ALERTE
BEEMI5%KRE ReREBEAARE
49,850,0007T (48 % 1A 4978 # 55,702,000
L) RREEAERER AR L E —HgE
Nz W 4B #20,918,0007T °

Anging Solid Waste is an unlisted corporate entity whose
quoted market price is not available.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
disposed of its 15% equity interests in Anging Solid Waste
to an independent third party for a cash consideration of
RMB49,850,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$55,702,000), and a gain on disposal of an associate of
approximately HK$20,918,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. Bt QAR (F)

Notes: (Continued) M« (&)

(i)~ Nanjing Liuhe was established by the Group with Nanjing (i) AEEHEERAEGRBEARAR (LS
Liuhe Environment Company Limited* in the PRC, the other RAZE—HEH)RPEKZE RS
investor to this associate, to improve the environmental A UREREEE  RAREARRE
quality, enhance efficiency in the construction and operation B EBENME  EREHRERTAERE
of environmental facilities, and to effectively alleviate the RN IR AR (Bh) & -« RET 2
investment (financing), design, construction, operation, ®BE - BENBRIE-
maintenance and delivery work relating to household waste
treatment in Liuhe District, Nanjing.

Nanjing Liuhe is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted MRANERAIELMEAETR  WEMIS®R
market price is not available. B -

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TREMIIEBERENHRNEBHZ D

information of the Group’s associates that are not AR B E R

individually material:

2022 2021
—=E=-= — T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok S ab
Share of profit of associates BT Bt &= R =) & 7 7,475 82,390
Share of total comprehensive (loss)/income of FrhEtE ARz 2m|
associates (BB WAL (16,715) 88,998
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBRBER A2
interests in associates mABRTEE 239,883 254,413
* For identification purpose only “ EHEE
20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
2022 2021
—=E_-— —E - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Raw materials and operating supplies RAEREE R @ 325,119 320,147
Finished goods BIK oh 52,874 7,547

377,993 327,694
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CONTRACT ASSETS

21.

2022
—E=-=

HK$°000
BET T

Notes

B E

HK$’000
BT T

Service concession assets PRI AT &R B = () 7,100,699 7,471,736
Unbilled renewable energy tariff RAZEZEABERER (b)
subsidy BEEME 2,321,068 1,630,338
Environmental remediation contract RBEBEAGHNEE (©)
assets 377,322 415,871
9,799,089 9,517,945
Impairment 18 (7,869) (7,068)
9,791,220 9,510,877
Less: Non-current portion A - FERNHARE
— Service concession assets — BRGRET LR
BE (6,540,112) (6,900,257)
— Environmental remediation — RBEEED
contract assets BE (158,808) —
(6,698,920) (6,900,257)
Current portion BV HAER > 3,092,300 2,610,620
Contract assets arising from BT AR S R AS
performance under construction ZHRBEHNEEED
contracts in connection with EENENEE -
service concession arrangements, Bt AEBREE]
which are included in “Intangible (M5E17)
assets” (note 17) 1,342,776 1,712,057

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
contract assets are as follows:

EHEERBEEBENESERNT

2022 2021

—E—-= T —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

At beginning of year F4) 7,068 7,927
Impairment losses/(write-back of impairment), FEEEE(FEiERE)

net (note 8) R (FI5E8) 1,476 (1,094)

Exchange realignment B 58 2 (675) 235

At end of year FR 7,869 7,068

No material changes was noted in the loss allowance for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

REBEEZZE-_—_FR_FE-_—F+=A
—t+—BLEFE UEITSIEERES
FREKRE]L -



21.

(@)

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

Service concession assets arose from the Group’s revenue
from construction services under certain BOT and BOO
arrangements and bear interest at rates ranging from 4.90%
to 6.60% (2021: 4.90% to 6.60%) per annum as at
31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, HK$6,646,337,000 (2021:
HK$7,465,935,000) relates to certain BOT and BOO
arrangements with operations commenced.

Pursuant to the BOT and BOO arrangements, the Group
receives no payment from the local governments in Mainland
China (the “Grantors”) during the construction period and
instead receives service fees for the Group’s operation
services when relevant services are rendered during the
operating periods.

The service concession assets are not yet due for payment
and will be settled by the service fees to be received during
the operating periods of the arrangements. Details of the
service concession arrangements are disclosed in note 42 to
the financial statements.

All of the current portion of service concession assets is
expected to be recovered within one year.

The balance represents government on-grid renewable energy
tariff subsidy receivables for certain integrated biomass
utilisation projects which newly commenced operations and
arose from the Group’s revenue from operations. The
amounts will be billed and settled upon the completion of
government administrative procedures pursuant to “Notice on
Relevant Review Work on the Project List of Renewable
Energy Power Generation Subsidies” (Caibanjian [2020] No.
6) (FANRARERABARREEHUIBRFEEREBIIENR
Al) issued by the M|n|stry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China.

The balance arose from performance under environmental
remediation contracts. Such contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the service
periods once milestones are reached.
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21.

R FEEREEESY S AEBMRES
FBOTKBOOZHEE & M RIS ek
RZB-Z—_F+-_A=+—B®N T
4.90%E6.60%MFFEFB(ZFT = —
1 4.90%%E6.60%) °

R-TE-_—F+-_A=+—H  HEHRE
BEANETBOTRBOOLEFEE Y KB A
75 #6,646,337,000C (=T = —F : B
7,465,935,0007T) °

RIFEBOT BOOZH » AEEREZEHRA
T EPBEAEEWBA ([Z5EA D KE
HIA - RE S R AR RS
FARENE L REUERBE

RIS ET LB E M AR EN - W H
BRZELTHMELBHRARDANREEE
T o R ERLHFBERIBRE
M sE42H 55 -

IR R T E B B E 2 B RN D T8 AT
i iWW@

BB THRANEENEMLEGRETA
BEHZEWRBEF LB BERREER
B MEL G RSB - FIRES
FEAREME G BECHAOCERBARER
BEEREEHMBEBEEREHIE
mLﬂM%%@pwmwﬂm&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FE®% ZHESTREBZERKE -

BHRABETRREEGVMESL - Z2Fa
%@%ﬁm%%%%ﬁiﬂ ST EREE
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21.

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using the probability of default approach to measure

expected credit losses. rates for the
measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract

assets are with reference to the credit ratings assigned on

The provision

the respective provinces where the counterparties belong to
and the forward-looking factors to reflect the effect of the
external economic environment. The provision rates of
contract assets are based on geographical regions of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and
information that is available at the reporting date about past

events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic

reasonable and supportable

conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk

exposure on the Group’s contract assets:

21.

BREE(E)

RESTREREAREAROMRE
T ERMEERR AHNEENEN
FEERMENBBXRIIZ2EXSHTHM
BEMHNERFRNARRBRINDEERE
TENMEERRETE -ANEENRRE
ERBEZEABUBREANTF D
WA BFTE o At ERBRBER A
TERBERBEEARRBESZMN AT
IR R AR AR S ) TROR 2 IR e B A
AESNAENIFLEER -

TXEIEMAREAHEE EHAR
ZEH

Expected credit loss rate TEHEER AL = 0.08% 0.07%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) REREE (BB T 1) 9,799,089 9,517,945
Expected credit losses (HK$’000) FEEEEEE

(B¥TT) 7,869 7,068

The Group’s credit policy with contract assets is disclosed
in notes 2.4 and 40 to the financial statements.

As at 1 January 2021, the balances of contract assets
amounted to HK$10,263,703,000. The increase (2021:
decrease) in contract assets in 2022 was the result of more
(2021: less) unbilled amount at the end of the year and the
(2021: decrease)
concession arrangements under construction stage.

decrease in the ongoing service

AEEFBEHNEENEERERYBR
KM 5F2.4 R A0 EE o

RZTZ—F—A—H8 ANEELEHE
#10,263,703,0007L ° — T - —F AN E
ERN(ZTEZ—F B) ERKHAR
ZEBEM(ZT=—F @D RERE
ERBOREFTCERZHRD (ZF
Z—F R WK
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22. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22, BN - HMEWKIE - &

AND PREPAYMENTS K FEAS FRIE
2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
M T 5T BT T
Debtors FE MR K 6,189,303 5,530,856
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — E{h JEULFIE « 54 KM TE
IR 1,218,833 1,507,503
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JiE U [R) 2 B /B A B FRIE 4,384 1,316
Amount due from an associate & U — Bt 2 R B) 508 4,088 550
Loan to a non-controlling interest JEIE RS EK 25,971 27,115
Amounts due from joint ventures R A & EFIE 44,999 31,340
7,487,578 7,098,680
Impairment 8 (16,856) (6,474)
7,470,722 7,092,206
Less: Non-current portion L IEENEREL o
— Other receivables, deposits and — Hib W FIE
prepayments e RBMNRIEAE (490,653) (753,984)
— Amounts due from joint ventures — BRAEETENE (15,644) —
— Loan to a non-controlling interest — FEERERZE R - (27,115)
(506,297) (781,099)
Current portion B EAEE 5 6,964,425 6,311,107




242 China Everbright Greentech Limited
FENRKGZERRER AT

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % & & K &

22. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22, BRI - EMEWNKIE - Z®

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) KMIERFRIR (48)

An ageing analysis of the debtors, based on the date of REZAM(IWEERBHUREER
invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) and net of ) EW MR BEREE  BUERZKA R
loss allowance as at the end of the reporting period is as LHIR ZBREEDITIOT ¢

follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Within 1 month TR —@EA 464,921 1,493,474
More than 1 month but within 2 months wiR—EAERZR
i 1& A 195,349 201,076
More than 2 months but within 4 months HBAmE A BN ZR
o1& A 329,770 554,635
More than 4 months but within 7 months A PNE A B Z R
@A 555,128 1,766,581
More than 7 months but within 13 months WA EAERZR
+=1@A 829,619 1,184,447
More than 13 months BaE+=[EA4 3,797,660 324,169

6,172,447 5,624,382




22. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Debtors are mainly due immediately within 90 days from the
date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
and concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are
set out in notes 2.4 and 40.

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and the prepayments are expected to be
recognised as expenses within one year.

Included in the amounts due from joint ventures are loans
to joint ventures of RMB23,990,000 (equivalent to
HK$26,806,000) (2021: RMB9,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,612,000)), which are unsecured, interest-bearing at
Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) in the PRC to 125% of the LPR in
the PRC and recoverable in 2023 to 2024. The remaining
balance is unsecured, interest-free and recoverable within
one year.

The loan to a non-controlling interest is secured by its
equity interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
interest-bearing at 110% of the rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China and recoverable by December
2023.

All of the current portion of the above balances were
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within
one year.
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22.

FEUT RSN ~ H ith IR IE ~ 2%
K IEFRIR (4F)

EURERTBHEZHAREFNATHAL
B2 - ARAKREEERRAEFPEL
MEERRETNE - PHBHENME2.4
K40 °

MR RMBARRAREER 28R
ZIATAN RIS —F AR R

A& E P ERBENERARK23990,000
7 (#8155 72 78 #26,806,00070) (— & = —
F: AR®9,500,0007T (FHEREK
11,612,00070) ) 5T A EU & & 1B F 5RIE °
ZEEFRERR RPEERMERERN
Z ([LPR]) Z2LPRMI125%:T B AR =&
Z=FE T NFE o HREE AR -
B RAR—FRYE -

FEERERERE —HIE2ENERT
ZREEER - RPBARBITHAM A
KON ERAIRZE_=F+ = AH
W o

EESOPAB MO BERER —F R
WE K FER R
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22.

DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount (net of loss
allowance) of debtors at amortised cost and at fair value
through other comprehensive income
HK$1,954,041,000 (2021: HK$2,224,849,000) and
HK$4,218,406,000 (2021: HK$3,299,533,000), respectively.

are

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using the probability of default approach to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are referenced
to the credit ratings of comparables with published credit
ratings. As at 31 December 2022, the probability default
rates and loss given default rates for debtors at amortised
costs and at fair value through other comprehensive income
were estimated to be ranged from 0.05% to 2.60% (2021:
0.05% to 0.73%) and 53.10% to 64.90% (2021: 53.09% to
64.87 %),
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at

respectively. The calculation reflects the

the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Debtors are written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

22.

JEUWER K - B B IGRIE ~ 2
MBS FRIE (2)
RZE-—F+-A=+—8  H#EHEK
R RIE D R BEFT A AL 2 AR FE YR
FHOEEmEIREBERB) DR ABK
1,954,041,000(Z = —F : B K
2,224,849,0007T) K 7 # 4,218,406,0007C
T~ —4F : $#3,299,533,0007T) °

REERSEREBHFERREHOBMRESE
TFEEDI - LErEBHEERBE - BEX
2EBRHERAFENITELRARK
EAMAEE R ZF+ZA=*+—
B RBHERARERARBFAEMER
AR FEW AR A B OBER KB NIBAEK
D BIfE N F0.05%E2.60% (= F = —
F 1 0.05%%20.73%) K% 53.10% £ 64.90%
TE - —4F :53.09%E64.87%) 2B A
B ERMEARNELER S BEHEE
BEERREAHAGZEABEENH B
AIBRARRREEBRENZEEBBK
BZER - BIRRZE A EERR AT E
ERBTUAME (AL - iBRA
BRASERETESALEEESRAR
BFELEZRAEZNRSREEERETHEZ S
L
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22. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22, BN - HMEWKIE - &

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) K IEA 5B (2)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of RN 2 C EYRREIE M BB
debtors measured at amortised cost are as follows: HBEHMOT
2022 2021
—s-= — = —%E
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At beginning of year F4 6,474 4,172
Impairment losses, net (note 8) FEiEEEFE (MEs) 11,468 2,134
Exchange realignment fE i & (1,086) 168
At end of year FR 16,856 6,474
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of BAREAEMEERAGE 2 EIWEE
debtors measured at fair value through other comprehensive FEENEBEEREZSOT :

income are as follows:

2022 2021

—E=-— = = —=%E

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT I

At beginning of year F 4 - =

Impairment losses, net (note 8) FEEEFE (i) 96,302 =

Exchange realignment PEE 5, 38 28 (4,447) —

At end of year FR 91,855 =
The increase in loss allowance of debtors at amortised cost T ER B —FREEKARIZ
and at fair value through other comprehensive income in AREFAHMEEKRAGE 2 BKER
2022 and 2021 are mainly attributable to increase in the MEERHEEZMNDEZEHREBAEHD
ageing profile of debtors’ balances, increase in credit risk of ARERIZ HN - BR &S 8 HA 45 6 00 15 AR LR 385 0
aged overdue balances and increase in the gross carrying MAEEREENMNEWRGRIAEZ REAE

amount after the settlement and origination of new SEINFTEL ©

receivables.
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23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

23. B& KIR

THEY R EREFR

2022 2021

—E_-C—F - —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT IT

Cash and bank balances R MIRTTE 8% 1,849,094 2,304,603
Time deposits and pledged bank EHGERREERRT

deposits 3 154,199 339,507

2,003,293 2,644,110

Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEEARITER (@) (75,043) (160,542)
Time deposits with maturity TFR AR B = (8 A

period over three months ZEHTFR (23,465) —

Cash and cash equivalents RehkBEEEY (o) 1,904,785 2,483,568

Notes: B 5T -

(@) Pledged bank deposits are mainly pledged to secure certain
bank loans of the Group (note 25) and are pledged to banks
for the issuance of guarantees by the banks to the Grantors
in respect of the specific performance of the duties by the
Group under certain service concession agreements.

(b) Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” are deposits of
HK$106,677,000 (31 December 2021: HK$317,697,000)
placed with a bank, which is a fellow subsidiary of the
Group, as at 31 December 2022.

Pledged bank deposits and deposits with banks earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates and are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$1,956,261,000 (2021: HK$2,461,388,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

@ EEFRTEREISCEEALAERSE
FIRITER (M3E25) 23 - ARER
BETRITMAEBES TR FFEEE
Wi T2 ST O E T mm B AR E
R MBEETFEBIRT -

) [BLRBLZEWIEER-_ZT==
+ZA=+—AGFHRR—RERT(AELE

E-—HRAERMNBAR)ZTERBE

106,677,000 (ZE-—F+-_A=+—

H : ##317,697,0007T) °

-
=

EEMIRITFRRIRITFIRAAREE BT
REERIFE  AFERREERFAE
HAAP M08 KO R0 ER 2 ERTT o

REER NEBUARE(TARE])
HEZESRERRTER BEE
1,956,261,000c (=& = —F : B
2,461,388,0007T) ° ARBE T BB RN
HAb B o A - RIEP B REECHNEE 12
GO RCERE - EERNETERTE) - &
EEAERERELEINEER ZRITH
ARBEHBKEMEY -
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PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

23.

Be MRS FEMMEEFFR

(&)

ROTRSWFHEERBANE  MFBHE
RRBEROTFAEBASREE - RFA
SEZAEREHRME  BHERFR
ZEFANF—RE=EALF » LA
B HE M B R REA B - IRITA 8
REMERTIFHNEER S BT &

BRI ZIRIT

e AR AR~ Eo B 5RIR S AT
2H

2022 2021
—E-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT
Creditors AL
— third parties - E=F (i 1,835,729 2,403,924
— fellow subsidiaries — BRMERA (i) 21,307 15,919
Other payables and accrued i AN Y5
expenses st &R (vi) 1,297,263 1,753,335
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries XNIEES NG (ii) 30,970 16,578
Amount due to a non-controlling JE 1 JE 4 AR A 2 5K TB
interest (iii) 1,201 1,314
Loans from non-controlling interests KA TR R E K (iv) 8,300 8,300
Deferred income — FEEWA —
government grants BT B2 (v) 194,403 137,680
3,389,173 4,337,050
Less: Non-current portion B FERNEAER
— Deferred income — — BERA —
government grants BT & (84,770) (65,841)
— Other payables and accrued — HhE[FRIE
expenses REGER (97,153) (156,221)
(181,923) (222,062)
Current portion BN EAEE 5 3,207,250 4,114,988
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24. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES (Continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

)

)

Included in “Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses”
are creditors with the following ageing analysis based on the
date of invoice as at the end of the reporting period:

24, FEfTERIK - EMbFE 5RIB K FEET
BH(E)
B 5
[0} [EMER  HiENREREFER 8
%EFEHEE BB E AR ENRE S
RZBERWROWHMT

2022
—E=-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 6 months NEA R 1,374,528 2,174,891
More than 6 months ~E A A E 482,508 244,952
1,857,036 2,419,843
Creditors totalling HK$1,015,546,000 (2021: RZEZZF+ZA=+—H  EHER

HK$1,653,411,000) as at 31 December 2022 represent
construction payables for the Group’s BOT and certain BOO
arrangements.

Creditors due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable in accordance with the contract
terms.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount due to a non-controlling interest is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Deferred income represents government grants received to
subsidise the construction of property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022, of
which an amount of HK$16,171,000 (2021: HK$4,108,000)
was credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
There were no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies
attached to the receipts of those grants.

(i)

)

)

& ###1,015,546,0007T (— B = —4F -
7 11,653,411,0007T) A A EEBOT K&
FBOOZ HEH FE 32 3EFE »

AN R SR T8 & R JE A AR SR AR AR -
RERAEANIGTIEE -
BN R RMEARFAREER 28K
RIMBERERE -

JEASS SE 2 i 2 7K
R—FREE -

RIAREER - RENA

P=ESEe:F )
//\}izg*fﬁ & o

RREER 28R

BEWAERNEBRREEZE T -_—F+=
A=+ BLEFEARBRNES ZH#HB
& REMAEBEEZME BWE KK
H Ei AEEK16,171,000t (= F
:_¢ /§m41080007ﬁ)au+kﬂ'\m%§\
ik o WHZERP S W ENTRERIK
ek E ek R EE -
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24. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. FERTBREFR ~ b ET N IB K EET

ACCRUED EXPENSES (Continued) B/ (&)
Notes: (Continued) MsE - (48)
(vi)  Included in other payables and accrued expenses are contract (vi)  EMENRIEREEASERIRERE

liabilities of the advances received for provision of services WRWBRFIB2ERAE - FHEOT -

with details as follows:
31 December 31 December
2022

—E—=

1 January
2021

—T -4
—A—8
HK$’'000
BETT

+t=A=+-8
HK$’000
BETT

Advances received from customers &P )78 Uk 5118 49,893 53,512 56,291

RZBZZFR-IZT-_—F aRAER
LEERARRZEFENREEEERE
LA A )8 18 B R TERCE F B RO

Decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 and 2021 were mainly
due to the decrease in advances received from customers in
relation to the provision of solid waste treatment and heat

supply of biomass projects during the years. Ao

* - =]
25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. FTERITEEMEE
BORROWINGS
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
“E--%+=-A=t-H S
Maturity HK$'000 Maturity HK$'000
) BETT ) BETT
Current b
Bank and other loans — secured RAREMER — FER 2023 or on demand 1,150,236 2021 or on demand 1,180,411
—EC=EHFER “E-FHREX
Bank loans — unsecured FITER — EHE 2023 or on demand 3,541,965 2021 or on demand 1,968,492
“ECCZERREX B —FHREX
Loans from an intermediate holding —EHREERARER - 2022 1,344,530
company — unsecured — BEA —Z-=F
Medium-term notes — unsecured THEE — BER (HE6) 2023 1,117,194 -
(note 26) —B-=
5,809,395 4,493,433
Non-current FEH
Bank and other loans — secured RAREMER — FER 2024-2039 7,504,056 2022-2037 8,539,920
CECMEE-F-AE e 3
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — EHM 2024-2037 4,966,875 2022-2034 5,075,265
“E-MEE-B=4E ZZC-FRE-T-NEF
Medium-term notes — unsecured FERE — &R (M HE26) 2024-2025 2,456,199 2023-2024 2,442,478
(note 26) “E_MEE-E-ERF ZE=FE-TME
14,927,130 16,057,663
20,736,525 20,551,006
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SHRRTREMBEE (&)

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25.
BORROWINGS (Continued)

2022 2021
—E-—F T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Analysed into: DA
Bank and other loans repayable: AR THIEREER 2
RITREMERK
Within one year or on demand —FREIEER 4,692,201 4,493,433
In the second year E_fF 1,901,891 4,028,144
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEFERFE(BE
BEEMF) 7,107,442 5,288,355
Beyond five years AFE 3,461,598 4,298,686
17,163,132 18,108,618
Medium-term notes repayable: AR THIHREERE
PEIEIR ¢
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFEEK 1,117,194 —
In the second year £ 1,116,657 1,220,945
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=FEFhF (B
EEGED, 1,339,542 1,221,533

Certain banking facilities and other loans of the Group are
secured by certain revenue rights, contract assets, intangible
assets and receivables in connection with the Group’s service
concession arrangements, bank deposits, property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and equity interest of a
subsidiary of the Group. Such banking facilities amounting
to HK$11,062,638,000 (2021: HK$12,289,886,000) as
at 31 December 2022 were utilised to the extent of
HK$8,288,239,000 (2021: HK$9,382,976,000).

The unsecured banking facilities of HK$14,280,095,000
(2021: HK$12,044,312,000) as at 31 December 2022
were utilised to the extent of HK$8,508,840,000 (2021:
HK$7,043,757,000).

AEEBETRITHEREMERUNEEAR
SERSHICERLHE A TWERE -
EHEE EBREERBWRFIE ~5H
ZROTGER -WE - - BEREE - FHE
EER—TWBARZREERE - R
T+ -_A=+—H  LHlETHE
% %8 575 111,062,638,00070 (=& = —
& B#12,289,886,0007T) * Hh D E A
75 #£8,288,239,000 L (=T = —F : B
9,382,976,0007T) °

R-ZT-_—F+_A=+—8 EE{HE
1TRVE £ 58 575 114,280,095,0007T (=&
——4F : B#12,044,312,0007T) * HFE
&) /8 18,508,840,0007T (Z T = — 4 : &
#7,043,757,0007T) °



25.

20.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

All of the non-current bank loans are carried at amortised
cost. None of the non-current bank loans is expected to be
settled within one year.

At 31 December 2021, shareholder’s loans of
RMB400,000,000 and RMB700,000,000, were unsecured,
interest-bearing at 85% of the rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China and LPR in the PRC minus 0.45%,
respectively. The in 2022. The
balance was fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2022.

loans were repayable

MEDIUM-TERM NOTES
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25.

206.

BRI RIS E ()

FREJEENEIRITE IR B A AT ER - 1
EIFRHRITERARAR —FREN -

RZE-_—F+_A=+—H KENE
FARM400,000,000T K AR
700,000,0007C & EEIF - HElEPEAR
SRITAME AR H85% 5T B KIZH H PRI
0.45%:t B - ZEEHRANR T -__FE
B oRNEBE ST —Ft+-A=+—
HIFFEREEE -

IR

2022 2021
—_EFE_-__ —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current BN A

Medium-term notes — unsecured FHIE IR — I 1,117,194 —

Non-current JE BN EA
Medium-term notes — unsecured FHEE — EER 2,456,199 2,442 478
3,573,393 2,442,478

On 1 April 2020, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with the relevant financial institutions in relation
to the proposed issue of RMB-denominated medium-term
notes with an aggregate principal amount of not exceeding
RMB3.5 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$4.3 billion)
to the qualified investors in the PRC.

RZEZZTFMOA—H AAGHEEHES
BEERBERTIREERREERTEAS
BEBTBIBARMESSEIL (WHEER B 43
Br) BAARKENPHER L0 H

3 -
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On 12 June 2020 (the “First Issue Date”), the Group issued
the first tranche of the medium-term notes with a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,184,500,000) before related expenses of
RMB1,330,000, with a maturity period of five years from the
First Issue Date. The first tranche of the medium-term notes
bears interest at a rate of 3.68% per annum and the
interest will be repayable by the Group annually from the
First Issue Date and up to the maturity date.

On 27 July 2021 (the “Second Issue Date”), the Group
issued the second tranche of medium-term notes with a
principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,222,300,000), before related expenses of
RMB1,330,000, with a maturity period of five years from the
Second Issue Date. The second tranche of the
medium-term notes bears interest at a rate of 3.5% per
annum and the interest will be repayable by the Group
annually from the Second Issue Date and up to the maturity
date.

On 7 April 2022 (the “Third Issue Date”), the Group issued
the third tranche of medium-term notes, namely the “2022
Green Medium-term Notes (Series 1) (Bond Connect)”, with
a principal amount of RMB1,200,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,340,880,000), before related expenses of
RMB1,596,000, with a maturity period of five years from the
Third Issue Date. The third tranche of the medium-term
notes bears interest at a rate of 3.27% per annum and the
interest will be repayable by the Group annually from the
Third Issue Date and up to the maturity date.

According to the terms of the first, second and third
tranche of medium-term notes (collectively, the
“Medium-term Notes”), the Group is entitled to adjust the
interest rate of the Medium-term Notes for the remaining 2
years before the maturity date after three years from the
respective issue date of each tranche. The Group will
announce the adjustment of interest rate, if any, ten
working days prior to the payment of interest for the third
year. The bondholders have an option to sell the
Medium-term Notes back to the Group at a nominal price
and the exercisable period of this option is within five
working days after the issuance of the Group’s
announcement related to the adjustment of interest rate.

R-E-_ZFXA+-_B((HXETH
B AEEBETFE-BRYHEE &
%8 & A R #1,000,000,0007T (H8 % 7 i #
1,184,500,00070) (N BB E A AR
1,330,000 C A1) * BAIR A B B X E1THH
BESF - F—HHAHAEBENFFRA
3.68%  FEBKHAASEAENEITHER
ZHHASFFUEE -

R-oE-—FE+A++RA([E KT
BHERD) AEBEBTHE _HHPRHEE X
+ %8 A A R #1,000,000,0007T (FHE R E
#1,222,300,0007T) (0B & A AR
1,330,0007C A1) - iR A B E = X E1TH
HEASF - FE WP HEENFER R A
3.5% FIBEBEBmAEBBE S ZKETH
HERNHBESFETFUEE-

R —FmWALR(TE=ZRETH
H]) o REMETE ZHBRBHEE (A=
T _FEFHBEETHER) (EF
B)] o A& %A ARK1,200,000,0007T
(FAZHB11,340,880,0007T ) (FIE HERE &
B AR®1,596,0007THT) » IR ABF =
REITAERESE - FHIRHZENE
FEA327%  RFEBAAEEAE =X
BITRAHEINHAEFE T IAEE -

REF B F_HMEE=HPHRE (K
BIZETPHRE] WER AREBER
BEHR B RITAREFRIFR - AERE
HIBRB TMEZSETHEBRNF X - K
SESRE=FHNENKAOBEIERR
HHEBMNE(E) EHRFHEATEEN
HAEEREZSTHREERRETASEHA
BEREBNTERARAEEEHHAENE
MAETEESETIERA -
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. RIERIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the FEFREAE(BE)RFRAZEFHMT

year are as follows:

Temporary
differences on
assets Temporary
recognised differences Fair value
under arising from adjustments
HK(IFRIC)  impairment of arising from  Undistributed

Interpretation intangible  acquisition of profits of
12 assets subsidiaries subsidiaries Others
RE(EE (BB
BHRERE
ZE8)-
RE)E125 I s Bt B 2
BAZEEZ BFEEHE ELEZARE il PN
ORER ELECERER AR A KBTI Hity ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2021 W=B=—%-F-H 1,193,658 (57,082) 52,293 52,320 (19,104) 1,222,085
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss EBaMe/(GEA) 119,048 = (4,832) (14,715) 77 99,578
Exchange realignment ERIECE 40,017 (1,822 1,591 1,457 (608) 40,635
At 31 December 2021 and R-B-—%+-A
1 January 2022 =t+-Ak
—E-—F
-B—H 1,362,723 (58,904) 49,052 39,062 (19,635) 1,362,208
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss EBENG/GEA) 117,264 = (4,700) 1,099 (69) 113,585
Exchange realignment AR (121,343) 5,055 (3,992) (3,393) 1,688 (121,985)
At 31 December 2022 R-Z-—%#+-R
=t-A 1,348,644 (53,849) 40,351 36,768 (18,016) 1,353,898
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and BTE2REN  ETEEHEEERAE
liabilittes have been offset in the statement of financial ERMBARRAKRFIEE - TRARI KR
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax WEMMEARNEBRELEHIALRIEL 29
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: o
2022 2021
—==-=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RirE MR R IER
consolidated statement of financial position ZIEETRIAEE 80,855 82,450
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RirE M BARR R ER
consolidated statement of financial position ZIEERIBEE (1,434,753) (1,444,748)

(1,353,898) (1,362,298)
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27.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December

requirement is effective from
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
approximately HK$130,244,000 (2021: approximately nil) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they are not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised was approximately HK$392,076,000 (2021:
HK$358,537,000). In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

27.

BT TR

RIBRBEDEMEHRZE KRR BRI
ZHONERERRIIBEREESTRKREE &
B10% 2 R EHREMH - ZRER-F
ENF-A-—HEER WERAR-FZT
TEFT AT —BZBEEZEN -
ERBEAREEEHINEIREEMERARE
BRI ARERG R RIREAEEZE
IR - REBE 2 BERRERE% ° HLt
AEBERPEARNERZZMEARBE =
TEENFE-F—HBELEZABMNANDIKZ
P S TR -

N 52 [ IR R AP B K B E AR R B S 1R B A
130,244,000 (Z T = —4F : HT) B\ —
ERFANAREERRERBEF -

WERZEEEERRCHAEE  FiE
ERAEERRBR/ TR GEEELERN
BN AR E R B A 2 AR -

R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H #@EER
B K BE BT B A R AR B A0 1) R FE sR IR RE Y
BFEBEBNEBNUHUZERBENABE
392,076,000 (ZE = —F : B K
358,537,0007T) s EFR A NA] B i
K ZENB AR AAEDIRZEFE -

AN ) 1) R B R B B 830 7 B 45 4 fa] B
BRHBE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &7
2022 2021
—E-—fF T —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Authorised: ERE
5,000,000,000 (2021: 5,000,000,000) ordinary 5,000,000,000 %
shares of US$0.10 each —E-—F:
5,000,000,000 /%)
SRMEEC.10%E T
2 E AR 3,891,500 3,891,500
Issued and fully paid: ERTEEEHR :
2,066,078,000 2,066,078,000 %
(2021: 2,066,078,000) ordinary shares —E-—F:
2,066,078,000%)
LR 1,608,029 1,608,029
29. RESERVES 29. B
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements TEBRAFERBEFTEZHESER
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the HEHFBRUBEREPEISTEIS8EZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 157 MEEREHRED -

to 158 of the financial statements.

(i) Share premium (i) BORE
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman REBEGISBEERAEYUEETA) » &
Islands, the fund in the share premium account of the RERMEEREANES DR TR
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the NAEIRE - R EBEEZ S IRRE B
Company provided that immediately following the date B - ARRIBBRENEERATEED
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, BRRTEIERETE -

the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(i) Exchange reserve (i) EXEGEE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EHFELERETSRINEE Y
differences arising from the translation of the financial MR FTEE ZFTBINERE H Z5 o

statements of entities outside Hong Kong.
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29. RESERVES (Continueqd)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Other reserve

Other reserve comprises the difference between the
paid
non-controlling interests and the carrying amount of

consideration for the acquisition of
non-controlling interests at the transaction date, less
the foreign exchange movements on translation of
those subsidiaries attributable to the non-controlling

interests.

Reserve fund

Statutory reserve — wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises

Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which are
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, follow the
accounting principles and relevant financial regulations
of the PRC applicable to wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises (“PRC GAAP — WFOE”) in the preparation
of their accounting records and financial statements.
Pursuant to the accounting regulations for business
enterprises (1t % & & %l Z 81 & (2000)25%%]), the
subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of the
profit arrived at in accordance with PRC GAAP-WFOE
for each year to a statutory reserve. The profit arrived
at must be used initially to set off against any
accumulated losses. The appropriations to statutory
reserve, after offsetting against any accumulated
losses, must be made before the distribution of
dividends to equity owners. The appropriation is
required until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. This statutory reserve is not
distributable in the form of cash dividends but may be
used to set off losses or be converted into paid-in

capital.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of debtors at fair value
through other comprehensive income held at the end
of the reporting period and
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2.4.

is dealt with in

29. fi#fm (4

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HAit &

Ho b ok 48 B2 40 AR FR PR AR R 2 P 5 Y
REEFFZEREZNR S AHNER
BEZHEMER  BIREIFERERE
HEZENB AR ZINEE L ZH -

REBUNRPRZHBRR (Z2HINE
E)RBEANINEEEDE ZF
BHertRARBBEMBEER(FEA
RETRA — 2HIERE] - FRE
SRRV B®RE BRB(RES
=T B [BF &€ (2000)2558]) - HB A 7
BAESFERBRPRARSRLY — 2
SNEEFTEMRB ZRFEP10%E
BEETERE - BFWNMEEKAK
HERMRTEE RETSERF
(BEMBREMRETEERE) EETERE
‘AR M REEE A RS o M8
ARIEA—HIBBANEEAEHRE B
EETEREEEFMERSON AL °
WA ERETATUNREREFLA D
K AT AR ERERAER
BRAR o

DRERE

AR R EIERE AR A S B
Nty 2 ERN A0 BRI E 2 Jo B
) BT B BF M - LR R M EE2.4H0
BRI -

N,
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30. KEFHIZE

Principal Distribution Total

£ 7k #Et

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETIT BETIT BETIT

As at 1 January 2022 RZE-——F—H—H
Issuance of perpetual medium-term G REEITKEF HEE

notes during the year 806,982 — 806,982
Profit attributable to holders of KEBEFHZERREEA

perpetual medium-term notes e &R = 15,952 15,952
Distribution to holders of perpetual MoKERBHERRERE A

medium-term notes 2K = (15,952) (15,952)
As at 31 December 2022 i ——-

+=-—A=+—8 806,982 - 806,982

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
issued perpetual medium-term notes with a principal
amount of RMB700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$809,410,000). Net proceeds after deducting the
issuance expenses amounted to HK$806,982,000. The
distribution rate for the perpetual medium-term notes is
3.35% per annum in the first 3 years from the date of
issuance, and subsequently the distribution rate will be reset
in every 3 calendar years. The distribution of perpetual
medium-term notes is accrued in accordance with the
distribution rate as set out in the offering memorandum,
and the distribution is payable on 27 May annually. The
perpetual medium-term notes have no maturity date and the
instruments can only be redeemed at the option of the
Company. The payments of distribution can be deferred into
perpetuity at the discretion of the Company, except for
compulsory distribution payment events, including
declaration or payment of any discretionary dividends to
ordinary shareholders has occurred over the past 12
months before the payment date of each distribution.

HE-T-_—_F+-_A=1+—HIEFE"
RNFEIT RS 58 A AR 700,000,0007T
(Z{E#)5%8809,410,0007T) KK & h Hi =
B o SR EBEITRIE  KETRREB 2T
183X 5 58 58 #806,982,0007T - A E %
THHBEST  KEFPHEENDIRE
REF3.35%  HEKREIEEFEE—
R KBERFHEBRN S RDIZBREITHES
HAEH N D IREEITREF BZEDIRE
REBEFRA-+EAXINMN—K - XEPH
ERYENR  ZETAEETAART
BREED - AAF A WIERTE K2 IKFIE
BEAXKEFS  BRIFNEDIRZMHH
ABT12@ABERSDIRNRES B
FRAEBRET RO ERMBERE -



258

China Everbright Greentech Limited
FENRKGZERRER AT

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % & & K &

31.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of Everbright Kellon Green Energy
Limited (“Kellon Green Energy”)

On 1 April 2021, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in
Kellon Green Energy (formerly known as “Kellon Green
Energy Limited”), which is principally engaged in solar
energy projects, at a cash consideration of HK$15,000 from
certain independent third parties. The acquisition was
completed on 1 April 2021 and Kellon Green Energy has
become a subsidiary of the Company since then.

The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy
to expand its market share in solar energy business.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Kellon Green Energy as at the date of acquisition were as

31.

E
WEBEXREZRBERERAE (&
RF@EER])

RZZE-_—FMA—B AEEUEREK
BERB15,0007C M A THE =77 WHE
EREERIR(ATHE ((ELRekERARA
A1) 60% R HE - ZABEBRENREE
B -WEER-_T=-—FMNA—HBEKX
REZEREGEIRE LK SRR EH—RHH
NI

W ERAREERRECREEXHD
SRR — By MAETT

RBEBEH EREERRZAHKIIEE
kBBEZAAREWT :

follows:

2021
—E-—%F
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
IR R 2
ARME
HK$’000
7o BT
Property, plant and equipment W - WEKkEE 11,805
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 6,176
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEYBRSR - B EUGRIA - He &k
prepayments TEfT 3R 3,216
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 276
Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses FEATBR SR - B < 5RIB R FE AT
&R (3,008)
Loans from the shareholders REE R (11,300)
Lease liabilities HEBE (7,145)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EEAFEGRARE) 25
Non-controlling interests FEE AR M 2 (10)
Total consideration RE®LE 15
Satisfied by: BATAFAZA
Cash consideration ReRE 15




31.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Acquisition of Everbright Kellon Green Energy
Limited (“Kellon Green Energy”) (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition
of a subsidiary is as follows:
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31. ¥BE0(E&)

WX R EZZEBREREFEARAAE ([E
m\i@ b/ﬁj) (/IE

BERAWBNBARZRSREDTET :

2021

—E-—F

HK$’000

BT

Total cash consideration REeREBE (15)

Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B FTNER e RIS EEY 276

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in R4 RIREZEEBYR A FE (GTA

cash flows from investing activities KREFMEHEESRE) 261
Add: Transaction costs for the acquisition included il : WM KA (GEALLED

in cash flows from operating activities BRERE) (373)

(112)

Since the acquisition, Kellon Green Energy contributed BURER - FRECHEEREE_S = —

HK$2,294,000 to the Group’s revenue and a profit of
HK$915,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Had the acquisition taken place on 1 January 2021, the
consolidated revenue and profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 of the Group would have been
HK$8,447,785,000 and HK$1,118,711,000, respectively.

F+-_A=+—HIEFEALAEBEE K
B2 294,0007T © W AGEEBFERE
|75 #915,0007T ©

HEBWRER -—ZE-—F—F— BT
REEZZT_—F+_A=+—HIEFE "
AEBZEERZERANBED R ABE
8,447,785,0007T & &% 1,118,711,0007T °
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 32. HE—HEWEB AR
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group HE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE"
disposed of its entire interest in a subsidiary (in hazardous AEBR—BBELE=HHEER—HMH
and solid waste treatment project segment) to an BAR(EEKEEEREEEBRE) 220
independent third party, for a cash consideration of @ RERE N A ARMS00,0007T
approximately RMB3,900,000 (equivalent to approximately (ZE#)E%4,376,0007T) °

HK$4,376,000).

2022
—E——
HK$’000
BT T
Net assets disposed of: FrHEZEEFE :
Property, plant and equipment Y - BREME&E 110
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments FEUREBRF - Efth R UL FRIA -
Re RERNFKIE 10,391
Cash and cash equivalents RehBE2EEYD 31
Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses FERTBRER - EAb BT FRIA K
EETEA (396)
Non-controlling interests PR (6,413)
3,723
Exchange reserve b H 177
3,900
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR 2 WK 476
4,376
Total consideration RIEHERR 4,376
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FRLE—MHNBARMNRSRREGEE
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: VIR A FESITWT
2022
—E=—=
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration ReRE 4,376
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FHERERFESEEY (31)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of ERALE—HNBATNRES R
the disposal of a subsidiary ReFEMRANFE 4,345




33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

0)

(i

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
interest expenses on medium-term notes of
HK$35,907,000 (2021: HK$19,025,000) are not
yet settled by the Group, and are recorded in
payables and accrued
in the consolidated statement of

“Creditors, other
expenses”

financial position as at 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$6,817,000
(2021: HK$1,733,000) and HK$6,817,000 (2021:
HK$1,733,000), respectively, in respect of lease

arrangements for buildings.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities:

Bank loans

BAEX
HK$'000
BB

Other loans Notes
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(@ EEFREXRS
) MEzz—_ZT=-—=—F+=AH
=+—BIEFE AEEHK
NEFHEEMNBERAZBE
35,907,0007T (- E = —4F :
#19,025,0007T) * BEFIEL
ARZZE_—F+=ZA=+—H
A MBI R AR
HitvfENRIBREFERIA -

i)y ME=E—_T=_=—_F+=AH
=+t—BLFE AEEHAEHE
FHREFoHERHE 2 EAE
EERTHEAEIRELED
Bl &% ¥6,817,000c (= F
= — 4 : 7 ¥1,733,0007T) K&
7 #6,817,000T (Z T = —
4 #1,733,0007T) °

(b) BMEZTHELENEGB2ET :

Medium- term
Notes interest
payables
FEff s
REFAE
HK$'000
BB

Medium-term
Lease liabilities Total

RbER
HK$'000
ERTT

RHER
HK$'000
BB

HEAR @it
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT ERTT

At 1 January 2021 R=F=-%-f-H 14,447,192 1,302,950 1,183,231 24216 8,836 16,966,425
Changes from financing cash flows RERLRE
28 1,391,583 (63,214) 1,201,501 (43,222) (2,934) 2,483,714
New leases MAHE = = = = 1,733 1733
Finance costs, including capitalised interest ~ B1 % & (R IEE EA{LH &
expenses %) 585,038 63,306 = 62,247 610 711,201
Increase arising from acquisition of a WE-RKEAREEHEMN
subsidiary - = - = 7,145 7,145
Exchange realignment EXBE 340,275 41,488 57,746 49 246 439,804
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE-—-FF+ZA=1+-8
k=Z--%-Hf-H 16,764,088 1,344,530 2,442,478 43,290 15,636 20,610,022
Changes from financing cash flows RERLRE
28 1,399,317 (1,311,456) 1,476,262 (81,722 (2,905) 1,479,496
New leases HMiHE = = = = 6,817 6,817
Finance costs, including capitalised interest K& (BEE EALFIE
expenses H%) 15,492 21,252 = 117,629 706 155,079
Exchange realignment Ei#ZE (1,015,765) (54,326) (345,347) (284) (692) (1,416,414)
As at 31 December 2022 W=Z-ZF+-A=+-H 17,163,132 - 3,573,393 78,913 19,562 20,835,000
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  38.

34.

35.

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

statement of cash flows is as follows:

meaBReRERMEE)

(c) HEZHRERHARE
RenE@RMBEEZRESREAER

With operating activities K E
With investing activities REEE
With financing activities B &5 &

N
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETF T
14,467 15,682
— 62,210
2,905 2,934

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s
banking facilities and other loans are included in note 25 to
the financial statements. The aggregate net book value of
assets pledged amounted to HK$19,430,554,000 (2021:
HK$21,584,176,000) as at 31 December 2022.

COMMITMENTS

(@ At 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding
purchase commitments in connection with the
Group’s construction contracts not provided for in the
financial statements of HK$295,360,000 (2021:
HK$620,324,000).

(b) At 31 December 2022, the Group had no outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to an associate not provided for in the financial
statements (2021: HK$36,535,000).

(c) At 31 December 2022, the Group had an outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to a joint venture not provided for in the financial
statements of HK$27,935,000 (2021: Nil).

34.

35.

B E R

RAEERTREREMERME TIET
ZAEEEE ZFIEH N B R &M
2B - R_TE-__F+-_A=+—H BEE
REE 2 R 4238 /75 %19,430,554,000
L (ZZT=——4 : B¥21,584,176,0007T) °

HHE

@ MRZTE_—_F+ZA=t+—H K&
B REFBREFTREBE LR EERE
BEHNZARBOTRBAELYK
295,360,0007C (=T = —F : B
620,324,0007T) 1ER&E 5

by RZZEZ_—_F+=—A=+—H0 ' F&&%
W ARENBEREM BB R —REGE
DENEFBEZBEAAEELBE (ZF
——14F : }#36,535,0007T) °

) RZEZZF+ZA=+—8H &*&%
EEVACHBERERBEERN—RE
EETBEZERNEKERBK
27,935,0007C (=& = —F « ) {E#
{% °



36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(a)

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Rental expenses HeMx

Hazardous and solid waste EEREEEREERA
processing income

Underwriting fee BHEMR

Interest income** FE A

Interest expenses** B H

Purchase of machineries* B8 EE R

Design fees REER

Purchase of steam** ETEREE

Medical insurance fee** BEERRE
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36. BEtALT RS

SRR EME O RE 2 X5 RAERIN
AEETIATEREBALRS ¢

(a) EHRRZAMBARZRS

2022 2021
—_ =22

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt = BT T BEFT
(vi) 2,130 2,494
(Vi) 3,151 596
(vi) 1,457 4,032
() 1,122 1,082
(ii) 2,481 8,152
(il 45,656 26,037
(Vi) 1,443 2,015
(iv) 43,752 59,877
v) 18,591 17,878

Notes:

U

(i)

)

Interest income was derived from deposit services
provided by China Everbright Bank Company Limited
(“CE Bank”). The deposit services provided by CE
Bank was based on normal commercial terms and no
less favourable than the terms available to the Group
from independent third parties. Interest income was
charged based on normal terms and agreed through
arm’s-length negotiations between the parties.

Interest expenses was incurred on a loan from CE
Bank. The loan services provided by CE Bank was
based on normal commercial terms and no less
favourable than the terms available to the Group from
independent third parties. Interest expenses was
charged based on normal terms and agreed through
arm’s-length negotiations between the parties.

Purchase of machineries from a fellow subsidiary,
Everbright Environmental Technology Equipment
(Changzhou) Company Limited*, was charged in
accordance with the terms of the agreement entered
into between the Group and the fellow subsidiary.

B aE -

() FBHNIR B B RIRTTAMD B
RAR (ERRITD R Z FHR
o RARRITREZ TR R
—RAEEGTIRE - BERBGRT
BRARBERBILE=ESZIK
o MBUR AR — M AGFUE R B
BETHT 2B R TVERBHE -

(i  MEZHTIBERRITERESE -
HRRITREZ EFRE TR — K
AR BRI H - BARGKTER
REBBBIE=ES 2GR -
B R — RGO ER S B B RT
5 2B A FEBIBHE

(i) AR RMEB A G ARRIEIEE
(BM) AR AR R RERIE T
RIR AL E R R E AR R
9 IR URER ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv) Purchase of steam from a fellow subsidiary, EB
Environmental Energy (Sugian) Company Limited*, was
charged in accordance with the terms of the
agreement entered into between the Group and the
fellow subsidiary.

(v) Medical insurance fee was paid to Sun Life Everbright
Life Insurance Co., Limited*. The fee was charged in
accordance with the terms of the agreement entered
into between the parties.

(vi) These transactions were conducted in accordance with
the terms mutually agreed with the relevant parties.

* For identification purpose only

> These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Transactions with an intermediate holding
company

The Group incurred interest expenses of
HK$21,252,000 (2021: HK$48,723,000) on an amount
due to an intermediate holding company which is
interest-bearing at 85% of the rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China LPR in the PRC minus 0.45%
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2021.

Transactions with a joint venture

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
received management service income of HK$738,000
from a joint venture and interest income derived from
a loan to a joint venture of HK$259,000.

36. BALTZRS (&)
(a) HEZEMEBATZRS (&

it - ()

(v) 1@ R ZH R A E Y RIR R BEIR (78
B)BRABARBETHRIAIR
IRANEE R (R R B AR R LA
AR ©

V) FAARKAASRBRERAF(
BERRE - ZBAREITON
2 [ERT S 1h 3 1 SR ©

V) ZEXSTHREEBES KRR
TE BV EFRETT o

* EHZRS

> REBBALRZITEK(ETR
BIVFE1IAZ T REZ FFEHER
5 °

(b) BE—EFEEZERAAZRS

REBRBE_T_—_FR_FT_—
FH+ZA=t+—BLEFEREMN—H
BRI A R RIEE £ B B
21,252,000 (=T = —4F : B
48,723,0007T) © EiEHE A RIEIT
N EF E85% Rk i HLPRE
0.45%%T & °

(c) BEE—REELEZRS
HE_ T - —F+-_A=+—HIHF
B AEEE—REELERMER
FIR 75 W A 78 #5 738,000 7T J2 2R B 1A —
REEREERZMBWA BB
259,0007T °



36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d)

The Group paid key management personnel
compensation as follows:
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AL 25 (&)

(d) AEERXNZIBEREASHE
mF -

2022 2021
—s-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Salaries and other short-term employee FekEMBEHES
benefits & 7 53,864 61,441
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI R 6,390 7,799
60,254 69,240

Total remuneration is included in “Employee benefit
expense” (see note 8).
37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2022

Financial assets

@ A TR BIERIB % (R
it8) -

RENEI Dz BT A

e HK  FARI SR A Y EEEN

37.

- %

— — —

—_———

EMEE

Financial assets

at

through other
comprehensive

fair value
Financial assets
at amortised

income cost
BALESA
H2EmkA REBEXAIGEZ
ZEREE SRMEE 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BET T
Debtors & W BR R 4,218,406 1,954,041 6,172,447
Financial assets included in &t AE fth fE UL ZUE
other receivables, e RENHIE
deposits and ZEBMEE
prepayments - 379,005 379,005
Pledged bank deposits EHEMEEITER - 75,043 75,043
Deposits with banks RITIFHK - 23,465 23,465
Cash and cash equivalents B4 NELZED - 1,904,785 1,904,785
4,218,406 4,336,339 8,554,745
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. ERNE Dz I A (&)
(Continued)

2022 (Continued) —E_F(4F)
Financial liabilities TEEE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BB ER A

ArE &R
8E
HK$’000
BET T

Financial liabilities included in creditors, other FT AR BRSR - HAth fE S FIE KB ET

payables and accrued expenses ERZERAR 3,144,877
Lease liabilities HEAE 19,562
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AERITREMBEE 20,736,525

23,900,964
2021 B —fF
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

at fair value

through other
comprehensive Financial assets at
income amortised cost

BARERA
HEma2mik A IREERAE
ZomEE 2B E et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT ok BT T
Debtors JrE Uk BR X 3,299,533 2,224,849 5,524,382
Financial assets included in &t A E fih fE Ig 5018 -
other receivables, e MENFEZ
deposits and EREE
prepayments — 288,173 288,173
Pledged bank deposits BEARITFR = 160,542 160,542
Cash and cash equivalents ¥4 MIR&HEY = 2,483,568 2,483,568

3,299,533 5,157,132 8,456,665




37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

2021 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in creditors, other

207
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37. REFEI D ZEWMIA(E)

—E--F(#)

ETAEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

12 SH PR

AAEZ TR

Al

HK$’'000
BT

T AR BRSR « E At & 5R0R K e AT

payables and accrued expenses ERCZERARE 4,111,096
Lease liabilities HEBE 15,636
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings BRI REMEE 20,551,096

04,677,828

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, deposits with
banks, assets included in
debtors,

current portion of financial
other receivables, deposits and prepayments,
creditors, other payables and accrued expenses, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
immediate or the short term maturities of these

instruments.

38. RITEZRAREBEAAREBEER

d30

EREEEHEREMNACEEY BER
RITER - |RITEX - RERRASREE
ENEAER 7 - E b W FRIR - & RIEM K
B EAERR - HEMNREREER
HERBLRERTREMEEZAAE
HHEREERE  T2HRZFTANE
BIHIS R AR B H
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s finance department is
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting

responsible for

date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit and risk
management committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of financial assets
included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments,
other payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and certain debtors have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk, annualised yield and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing borrowings as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was assessed to be
insignificant. The carrying amounts of these balances
approximate to their fair values.

38.

% Rl N NAERER

AEENMBEHFABREEEERTAAR
EFfBNBRIERF - REMEEH - U5
MASTHERTANBEEPIREEHE
FRERE 28 AR - BRAMGERMB
RERMLILE BEZREAREEZES
BFEMAF wEERZFRER  UEED
THIREREMBRE

TRHEEMBENAABUZTARERE
R CRAJFRBHERINEMRS T
ZARZGEEAR - U THERBRAR
BEtanE

STAHMEKRIE - HeRBENREBEZS
BEEZIENBARY - HMEARIE  HE
BE FERTEREMEERE TREKE
FE AR EERREAREFELUER
EERR  FRaXRkFAKIHANT
BERMFEURERARRREREFE - R
TR FERIE—F+ZHA=1+—H"
AEEBEFFEEENRBORR TG AK
W ZEEBIEEEREAREBEEE -



38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

RERT S
ZRE
(B—%)
HK$’000
BETR

R-Z-_—F
+-A=1+—~8

As at 31 December 2022

BRARERAEMGEE
WAZEREE

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
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TMITRAZARERAABERER
(%)

DAEER
TREAFEESHMTAZ AR
L

BAREFEZEE

38.

B EE

Fair value measurement using
AREFEEAUTEE

Significant

observable

inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
EXFARE
BABE
(=)
HK$°000
BETT

EATEE
BARE
€ =)
HK$’000
BT T

#act
HK$’000
BETT

4,218,406 4,218,406

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

RGBT %S

Fair value measurement using
BExtEERANTHA

A

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

HK$ OOO

HK$ OOO
BT BT T
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=A
=+—H
Financial assets at fair value QA EFAEMEZE
through other comprehensive WA Z & B EE
income = 3,299,533 - 3,299,533
The Group did not have financial liabilities measured at fair RZBEZ—FR-ZTF-_—F+_A=+—
value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. B AEEYEEBEZAAEFENTH
BE-
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no BHE-_T-_—_HF#+_A=+—HItFE "
transfers of fair value measurements between level 1 and MEMEEMS  F—HANE_LNDR

level 2 and no transfers into or at level 3 for financial
assets (2021: nil).

BEfECHAYVEEBRYEE AL =HK
BE=AEH (ZF=_—F 8)-
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39.

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into agreements with certain financial institutions
whereby the Group sells certain trade receivable of
renewable energy tariff subsidies to a trust company, which
in turn issues asset-backed notes in the National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors. The
asset-backed notes are backed by the receivables of
renewable energy tariff subsidy.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
transferred an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$938,449,800 (equivalent to RMB782,041,500) of trade
receivables of renewable energy tariff subsidies to the trust
company and received proceeds of HK$843,719,800, net of
the arrangement fee of HK$94,730,000. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards relating to the transferred receivables,
and the Group’s exposure to the variability in the amounts
of the transferred assets was not significant after the
transaction. Accordingly, the full carrying amount of the
transferred receivables has been derecognised. The Group
has provided liquidity support to the asset-backed notes.
The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s continuing
involvement in the derecognised receivables is equal to their
the

in the derecognised

carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors,

Group’s continuing involvement

receivables was not significant.

39.

BEIREE
EXHRAULBRANCHEESREE

7;
b1l

BHE_Z_—S+_A=1+—HILEE"
REERETEREBEET I H® - Bt
AEER—REARAIEEE T HLER
REERMBMOERERENR  MZELARE
¢ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%§%ﬁ%@%“ﬁ&iﬁ
B ZEEXREBDAITBERRE
18 74 B 0 FE LU BR R SZ 555 o

HE-_Z-—+-_A=+—RIL=EE"
AEEMZELTARNEZRAEAEBELER
938,449,8007T (15 AR # 782,041,500
7T) B9 F] FB AR AR IR B (B A A A JE LKCRR BRI U
BY AT 18 3 I 78 843,719,800 7T (30 K #E 7
43 BB H94,730,0007T) c EERE 0 K
SEOSEBEMEZEERREREBANE
Ao R ERER  BERAEERRZER
DEREESTEEZDHTEERILTERX -
l%vﬁﬁa%%ﬂ¢%=5@%EW%

FOEEE AEECREEIREER
Vm@ﬁiﬁ% c REBRE Y KM K
LE T 52 A FE LS BR 3R P T B ) i KBS 1R RV R
EREFESE -EFRE  AEEEEK
IR EKRERFREY RS EIL T
BK-
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. R EIE B E R BE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing borrowings, cash and short-term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, other
receivables, deposits, and creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks,
bank and other borrowings and medium-term notes.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not use
financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

AEBZIZ2RTABEAREE &
EREHER - HFERTAZIEZEN
ERRAEBZEZBERRTEES - A%
EREAHMEREERAE  EREBUE
K B EWGRIR - R AMENERR - B
RN FRBEREFER  DEZBHER
EE -

AEEeRTAELA 2T ERBRBEN X
Rk~ SNE R - FEERREREE TR
R-EEgRIMMBEEERRABAR
ZHE - RABRBERBMEN T X

A = E b

AEEEHZNERAREIEREAEEZ
R MREFEY - |RITEFHR - RITREM
fEERPHRE - T BH R K EE M =X
HHZEESAEEDHIAZEEREN
KRR MR ENERER - AN 5B EF
REITET AR M ERRE - AEE
ZMEFRBEEEESR  FHRIANTX
i) °
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate profile

40.

M=RER (A
0 FIEEX

B 15 B IR B AR MR (F)

TREIAEERRERARZEEF
B EERBBERERITERNA
RRERREFEY) 2 FERHER -

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings (being interest-bearing
financial liabilities less deposits with banks and cash

and cash equivalents) at the end of the reporting

period.
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Effective Effective interest
interest rate Amount Amount
BERFI= *8 T8
% HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Net fixed rate borrowings/ EEEE/
(deposits): (FR) 38
Medium-term notes HHER 3.35%-3.68% 3,573,393 3.50%-3.68% 2,442,478
Lease liabilities (note 15(0)) BEAE(ME150)  1.42%-4.90% 19,562  3.50%-4.90% 15,636
Less: Deposits with banks B BITER 1.55% (23,465) - -
Cash and cash RekAeE
equivalents B4 1.53% (55,691)  0.41%-1.70% (178,965)
3,513,799 2,279,149
Net variable rate borrowings/ S EEE/(F%)
(deposits): BE
Bank and other loans BITREMER 3.20%-5.91% 17,163,132 1.25%-4.95% 16,764,088
Loans from an intermediate —RFEERARER
holding company - - 3.35%-4.04% 1,344,530
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : He&RBLZEY  0.08%-3.00% (1,849,094)  3.40%-2.20% (2,304,603)
Pledged bank deposits EHEABRITER 0.3%-2.75% (75,043)  0.30%-0.35% (160,542)
Loan to a non-controling EREE En-E
interest 5.23% (25,971) 5.23% (27,115)
15,213,024 15,616,358
Total net borrowings BEEFE 18,726,823 17,895,507




40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of one percent in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit before taxation
by approximately HK$152,130,000 (2021
HK$156,164,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit before
taxation that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit before taxation is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2021.
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40. B EREE B ENMEEK (&)

A RE b2 (F)

RZEZZF+ZA=+—H X
SEGR - WAIRBEEA TR
1 Elk ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@m%¢%$
""""" AEEZBRBARFEERD S
%m%%%wzmqmmﬂ_s_—
F 1 7 ¥5156,164,0007T) °

FIBRE DI E A B 2 RBAT

BFAREELEZAINES - HED

MEBREFRESH O RIRERRELE

WERAREFNFTEAEEMBAELR
HEPREAEEEREAARBRNER
B eI A W BEAEBR®RE
HARFTFA BRI R IECTE T AR
EEZRERFERR  HHEAKAEER
BREIAT AR 2 HERENFIEEB) M
EEZR2EFE iﬂjﬁﬂﬂv\%%f’ﬁﬁ
e AR S —FR—
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

()

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group
primarily from bank loans, cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables that are denominated in a

is exposed to foreign currency risk

foreign currency, i.e.,
functional currency of the operations to which they

relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are

a currency other than the

primarily Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States
dollars and Euros. The Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where

necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to foreign currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the
spot rate at the reporting date. Differences resulting
from the translation of the consolidated financial

statements of foreign operations into the Group’s

presentation currency are excluded.

40.

B 15 B IR B AR MR (F)

S L B
() FEERIZIMNERBR

AEEEERNINEEREEIRE A
% (BN 75 ARRE O DD BE B HE LA SMY
E¥EZRTER R kR
EEY  BYGERENRIE - ELE
ZEBNEEIZRER AR

ERET - EBN B ERIARE

KEEINEARE R FHBER
AEEEREE N RRFRERFER

BREKFE -

TERAVNAEERSRER RO R
REEXAB(AERERZYESR
WAINZ BEFHE) TEEZINER
%o SLEFNEMME  BREENE
BN WIRmE R RREE KK
B - AN R RAR B M B ¥R R
BERASENZIEEMELNER

FEE ASMERR -

2022 2021
—E-C —T-—F
United United
States States
Renminbi dollars Euros Renminbi dollars Euros
AR EYm B AR X BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
Cash and cash equivalents E& REE&ZEY 430,576 403 186 16,160 2,496 195
Amounts due from/(to) fellow FEUL,/ (1) I 2 B
subsidiaries (net) RRIFEFE 4,204,833 - - 2513083 - -
Other receivables H i YRR 11,187 - - 1,136 - -
Bank loans RITER (3,631,550) - —  (2,444,600) - -
Other payables H it 508 (154,258) - - (120,610) - -
860,788 403 186 (34,831) 2,496 195




40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continuea)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit before taxation that would arise
if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement in

variables remained constant. In this respect,

value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. The impact of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations with respect to the assets and liabilities
denominated in United States dollars is insignificant as
Hong Kong dollars is pegged to the United States

dollars.
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40.

B B IR B AR MR (F)

S B (AR
(i) SRR

2022
S

—5——

Increase/
(decrease) in

foreign

exchange rates
NEERLR/
(TR)

Renminbi AR
United States dollars S0
Euros Bl

10%
(10%)

10%
(10%)

10%
(10%)

TREIIBRRNERE RRAE B @ L
EXEBOIEERNEHLHRE
B MABEMESHREIE K
7% 55 18] & B 75 B 28 N AR BN B B2
Eopitms - MRBEHLETME
BEXTERXTEELEMERH
EAZSMIANERTE - ANEE
BT - EIAXTTAHENEE M
BEAMZINEEXRFENFEL T
BEXe

Increase/

(decrease) in
Effect on profit foreign Effect on profit
before tax exchange rates before tax
HRHBMBAN HNEEXEH/  HRBEARFN
2 (FF&) T2
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
86,079 10% (3,483)
(86,079) (10%) 3,483
40 10% 250
(40) (10%) (250)
19 10% 20
(19) (10%) (20)

Results of the analysis presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit before taxation
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for

presentation purposes.

ERENZOMERBE T AEEE

&R &) AFERE L)

N

Re &

BB 2B

AN RS  ARZENRS
HRZEXRFER/EEZR -
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
intercompany payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2021.

Credit risk

The Group assesses the credit quality of the customers and
other counterparties, taking into account their background,
financial position, past experience and other factors. The
Group has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Debtors are
usually due immediately within 90 days from the date of
billing.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash and cash equivalents, debtors, other receivables and
contract assets.

AR EERRRBEE)

ShEE LB (4F)
(/N
BRRE DT RRER SN BE R /) & B 2 FA
REFFTEREHRAEEMBFER
ﬁﬁﬁlﬁkﬁﬁl\ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ%%%%ﬂl
CBIENERARBRANIEE
T%L/W\\EI’J?T’#%E%@E’J%IWAEJF@E
REFRIE R FEMCGRIE o 5299 AT R 0
B3 75 0 B s TR R 4R F%K%@iﬂ
f"iﬁﬁﬁ?iﬁ’]#%ﬁﬁi TR =
Z—FF— HETT ©

< (AR =V,

FERR

AEBEEREPREMXZHUFHNES
AR BEER R EMAZRKTEE
EEEEX - ARBERE-EFERE @ IF
BERFHENEERR BURETAS
MEEBRHR A THARRIE -

EERRERZIUFRETHAOELEM
BYUANEBELAVHERANRER NEE

MEERBREIEXRERS MRS EEY -
FEUERTK - RtbBUGRIERANEE °



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
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The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other

information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the

financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2022

40.

B B IR B AR MR (F)

FERRE (&)

R 5 /B8 R F K 7 B R 0 2R
TERBAKENEERR  JIREEmM
EREaREERR BREABAKARS
HERESEMEMI  TREZNAH
BRERTZA=+T—HZFROEED
BAERE-

I EHERERMEERSRERGNEER
R\ R AR BREIE ©

R=Z=-=f+=HA=+-—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 B A H
EEER BEECEANAEREESRE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EF-BE H-EKB F=ER | LR(473 &5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT B¥Tx BETx BTz BETxn
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEM 1,904,785 - - — 1,904,785
Deposits with banks with maturity period FHRHBEB=@AZ
over three months RITER 23,465 - - - 23,465
Pledged bank deposits BEBRITER 75,043 - - - 75,043
Debtors* e AR 30 - - - 6,189,303 6,189,303
Financial assets included in other FAE A YRR -
receivables, deposits and prepayments B& REMNKIED
TRMEE 299,563 - - - 299,563
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries S =N
A 4,384 - - - 4,384
Amounts due from joint ventures A & EIE 44,999 - - - 44,999
Amount due from an associate FE Uy — R B & A A
A 4,088 - - - 4,088
Loan to a non-controlling interest FIEREEER 25,971 - - - 25,971
Contract assets EREE
— with significant financing component — AREAREEK
il 7,100,699 - - - 7,100,699
— without significant financing component” — REBAEARE
MR ED - - — 2,698,390 2,698,390
9,482,997 - - 8,887,693 18,370,690
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BIEMRETE BIZ MR (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) FERB (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continueqd) R 55 B B [ F K 7 B R 57 4 (AE)

As at 31 December 2021

12-month

ECLs

121IHTEHH

HK$000
BETT

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

BEFEDNREEEHR

Silgglelliile!

Stage 2
BB E=ER

Stage 3 approach

KAz
HK$'000
BET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

Total
At

HK$’000
BETT

Cash and cash equivalents RBekReEED 2,483,568 = = — 2,483,568
Pledged bank deposits BEIFRITER 160,542 - — - 160,542
Debtors* P AR 50 - - — 5,530,856 5,530,856
Financial assets included in other FHAE A YRR -
receivables, deposits and prepayments e RFEMNFER
STREE 288,173 = = = 288,173
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries A GELE=ING
TR 1,316 = = = 1,316
Amounts due from joint venture G & X IR 31,340 = = = 31,340
Amount due from an associate e — PR & R R RRIE 550 = = = 550
Loan to a non-controlling interest FEE Hx%ﬁﬁgﬁi 27,115 = = = 27,115
Contract assets EREE
— with significant financing component — BEBERBEMAR
155 7,471,736 = = — 7,471,736
— without significant financing component* — REEZA@E
MR BB = = — 2,046,209 2,046,209
10,464,340 — — 7,577,065 18,041,405

- MARERABEOEERBENTAEE
REVE R0 B & # B B I R R T
5 OEBEAMRENMBREME24

For contract assets without a significant financing component
and debtors to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information is disclosed in notes

2.4, 21 and 22 to the financial statements. 2122 °
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure ERREBENEEREWRAIMEED
to credit risk arising from contract assets and debtors are EERBMONE—FEEHIES BN

KM T 21 224 FE ©

disclosed in note 21 and 22 to the financial statements,
respectively.



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and

creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
counterparty and by geographical region. At 31 December
2022, *“Debtors, deposits and
prepayments” and “Contract assets” of the Group amounted
to HK$17,261,942,000 (2021: HK$16,603,083,000), of which
HK$3,823,725,000 (2021: HK$3,348,437,000) was due
from the largest customer and HK$6,597,369,000 (2021:
HK$5,689,040,000) was due from the five largest customers

in aggregate of the Group, respectively. The maximum

other receivables,

exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset and contract asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its

liquidity requirements and its

compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.
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40.

AR EERFERBER(E)

EEER (&)

HRAEEEERAREEEECZE=A
EITEE  MUAREZREHERR - £H1EF
ERBRELXSHFRIDEETER - R =
T ZF+ZA=+—H AKEZ[EK
R EMEYGIE - e RFENFKIEI R
[GHEE | BBA17,261,942,0007T (= F
——4 : 5%16,603,083,0007T) * EFE
#3,823,725,000c (ZE = — F : B K
3,348,437,0007T) BEW AR EE H KT
IR N 5 #6,597,369,000 T (—Z T = —4 ¢
75 #5,689,040,0007T) & FE Y A& B R K
BEPEFRBRE SAGERBRERNGEY
BARARP RS EEREERANEEY
REEZY -

REE = E b

AEEBETEYZEERASTARRS
EETF ERREBBIEHRERSE
BEFAENERREF R AEEZR
REEHMERABDESTRAEREYE
BERZmZARBEN  BREBEEFREHBN
REeEHRINERTBREBIS RN A
HREERE NENEHLREHARDES

mEXo
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES MREREEEZENBE (&

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

40.

REBETER (&)

TRINIAEERBREMRZIENTETA
EREBEZHNBAOBRER  LATH
ARBRBRERE (BRERAONERK (WE
FR)REBN|ME AR Z M REFE 2B
F)RAEEABERRFTEZRTENR
EEMIH

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

31 December 2022
“Z--f+ZHA=1+-H

Total
contractual More than 1 More than 2
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year year but years but  More than 5
amount cash flow or on demand within 2 years within 5 years years
ARRER —FRH —F% ME#
BEHE REeRELH RER BRER BREER LEE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BET T BT T BET T
Interest-bearing bank and other SRR RAMEE
borrowings (note 25) (FizE25) 20,736,525 23,198,292 6,532,444 3,568,886 9,256,258 3,840,704
Creditors, other payables and ERER - EtEAFER
accrued expenses* et &R 3,144,877 3,148,812 3,055,401 7,677 15,354 70,380
Lease liabilities (note 15(0)) HEARE (M 15(0)) 19,562 23,480 3,676 3,626 5,695 10,483
23,900,964 26,370,584 9,591,521 3,580,189 9,277,307 3,921,567

31 December 2021

—$+ZA=+—H
Total
contractual More than 1 More than 2
Carrying  undiscounted  Within 1 year or  year but within  years but within More than 5
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years years
—ERK —Fig RE%
REE ; REX EEA EE: AF#E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  AMTR  BETR  #MTR BETR  #ETR
Interest-bearing bank and other STEBRTRAMEE
borrowings (note 25) (Ki7E25) 20,551,096 23,125,986 5,127,094 4,542,799 8,715,752 4,740,341
Creditors, other payables and ERER - HEAFER
accrued expenses” fERH & 4,111,096 4,117,358 3,963,274 40,484 57,279 56,321
Lease liabilties (note 15(b)) HEBE (HE150) 15,636 20,278 1,504 1,440 4,760 12,574
24,677,828 27,263,622 9,091,872 4,584,723 8,777,791 4,809,236
* The balances excluded deferred income — government * EHRTBIRETERA — @S -

grants.



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives for managing capital are to
maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis
and considers the cost of capital and the associated risks.
Based on recommendations of the board of directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
adjusting the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
new share issues or new debt financing.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity
and debt in a balanced position and ensure there was
adequate working capital to service its debt obligation. The
Group’s gearing ratio, being the Group’s total liabilities over
its total assets, as at 31 December 2022 was 65.4%
(2021: 65.1%).
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40.

AR EERFERBER(E)

EXxER

AEEEEEAZIEZENEEAFEY
MEEFARBRNEARLE  UXHFE
BEE - URKRRWEREAEE - AREE
EEEARRBORE  TeRHREENRR
LEPHEARBELAE - AEEETE
RS EREE  TMAZEBEARKE R
R - RIFEFECERE  AREEE
BREBERNTRREZREEE  BITHR
MABEFNEHRE BN FOEEE
RIRHE -

AEEZRBL2BEBEBARERERER
REBZERE ERFEEZEBENEE
T MRERAEELSEMNER - K=
T F+ZA=t+—H FAEECZEE
BELE(AEE BB EBRABEERN
B2ZH) H65.4% (- —F :65.1%) o
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. &R & Z B &k nsk

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NTARBERRERRMBARAKRZE

CE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WERRRE 2,337,064 2,336,994
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Y Bt /88 & R RIE 11,601,497 9,738,365
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MEE 589 775
13,939,150 12,076,134
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments E b JEBGRIA K
TEf 5B 2,452 109
Cash and cash equivalents HekReSEEY 416,859 171,602
419,311 171,711
Current liabilities HREaE
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EEH 1,644,001 1,003,702
Medium-term notes R H IR 1,117,194 —
Other payables H b pE < 3RIB 97,243 62,460
Tax payables FET IR 20,666 11,313
2,879,104 1,077,475
Net current liabilities REEEFE (2,459,793) (905,764)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBBME 11,479,357 11,170,370
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EEA 3,744,024 3,866,755
Medium-term notes FEIR B 2,456,199 2,442,478
6,200,223 6,309,233
Net assets BEFRE 5,279,134 4,861,137
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

1. N 2R K (&)

2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Capital and reserves BAR#EE
Equity attributable to equity shareholders *Efmﬂxﬁﬁg IGHER
Share capital % A< 1,608,029 1,608,029
Reserves (note) EAACED 2,864,123 3,253,108
4,472,152 4,861,137
Perpetual medium-term notes (note) KB EIE & (M aE) 806,982 —
Total equity Mo B R 5,279,134 4,861,137
QIAN Xiaodong LO Kam Fan
SRR ERE
Director Director
o EE
Note: P&E -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRB ZHBERENT -

Perpetual
Share Accumulated medium-term
premium losses notes
B A7 5 E 2R XKETHRE
HK$'000 00
BETIT
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-T=Z—F—A—Bz#&H 3,983,381 (329,271) — 5,262,139
Loss and total comprehensive loss for FEBEREZABELS
the year - (111,752) — (111,752)
2020 final dividend paid KN ZE—TFEREARE (144,625) = = (144,625)
2021 interim dividend paid /)Eﬁ_z:—ﬁr“ FEIRR B (144,625) = = (144,625)
Balance at 31 December 2021 and 1 ﬁtz:—¢+ A=+—Bk
January 2022 —F-A—Bz&H 3,694,131 (441,023) - 3,253,108
Income/(loss) and total comprehensive iﬁﬂﬁl?\/ (Eﬁ%ﬂ)&%@%)\/
income/(loss) for the year (F518) s - (231,963) 15,952 (216,011)
2021 final dividend paid (82,643) - - (82,643)
2022 interim dividend paid = = (74,379) — — (74,379)
Issuance of perpetual medium-term BITOKER BRI
notes - - 806,982 806,982
Distribution to holders of perpetual MK BT HEEFA AL SR
medium-term notes - - (15,952) (15,952)
3,537,109 (672,986) 806,982 3,671,105
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES i
ARBEEMBABFBOT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

Place of incorporation

Particulars of issued Percentage of equity attributable

Name of company

and business and paid-up capital
Eaiigzava BE#Tf
eSSk

to the Company

ARERERZADLL
Direct Indirect
B ik

Principal activities

TEXK

EB Greentech Biomass Energy (Guoyang) Limited* PRC RMB108,020,000 = 100% Design, construction, operation and
(note (b)) maintenance of biomass electricity
and heat cogeneration project
RREERREMERCBSG) BRAA HE AR 108,020,000 Rit B EERERENEREY
(B &£ (o) #ER
EB Greentech Cogeneration (Sugian) Limited*" PRC RMB105,000,000 = 100% Design, construction, operation and
(note (b)) maintenance of industrial solid
waste treatment and electricity and
heat cogeneration project
ARGERRAE (FB) AR R (MEb) I AR #105,000,0007C Rit BiE BERBETXEERE
RABEMIER
EB Greentech Renewable Energy (Xiao County) PRC RMB96,002,000 - 100% Design, construction, operation and
Limited* (note (b)) maintenance of industrial solid
waste treatment and electricity and
heat cogeneration project
RARGERRBELR(HH) BRAA i E AR #096,002,0007T Rit B EEREETEERRE
(B &£ (o) RAEBHIER
EB Greentech Renewable Energy (Yiyuan) Limited* PRC RMB185,520,000 = 95% Design, construction, operation and
(note (b)) maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project
KREERRBLELRCTIR) BRAR HE AR #185,520,0007C Rt B EBERBEENE RNR
(FiE (o) HE—BLEE
EB Greentech Technology Services (Jiangsu) PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100% Provide environmental technology
Limited* services, development, consulting
and equipment sales projects
RARZERREMRBOIEHR)BRA R I AR #20,000,0007T RERREMRSE - AR BARRE
HERE
EB Greentech Urban and Rural Renewable Energy PRC RMB95,384,000 - 100% Design, construction, operation and
(Dali) Limited* (note (a)) maintenance of waste-to-energy
project
ARGERRBBELLR(KF) BRAA" I AR #095,384,0007T Rat - BiE - BERBENRHEEA
(Bi5E ()
EB Greentech Urban and Rural Renewable Energy PRC RMB182,310,000 - 100% Design, construction, operation and
(Fengxian) Limited* (note (a)) maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project
KAGEERRABEELR(LE)BRAT i AR 182,310,000 Rat B EERAERENERAR
(P &£ (a)) FE (AR
EB Greentech Urban and Rural Renewable Energy PRC RMBB80,250,000 = 100% Design, construction, operation and
(Gutian) Limited* (note (a)) maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project
ARGERREBELLR(HA) BRAA" I AR #80,250,0007C Rat - BiE - BERBEENE RIR

(Pt % (a)

FE—@RAA



42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Fengyang)
Company Limited* (notes (a) and (b))

KRB BELR (B BRAR"
(P (a) K (b))
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Guanyun)
Company Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
KARBBBEERRCEE) BERA R
(P (a) B (b))
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Huai'an)
Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
KRB BERLRCER) ERA A"
(P (a) K (b))
EB Urban and Rural Biomass Energy (Nanjing)
Limited*”

KERBBEMEIR (AR ERAF"

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Xiao
County) Limited*" (notes (a) and (b))

RAARBBBELR(RF) BERAA"
(P (a) K (b))
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Zhecheng)
Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
KRB ERR ER) BRA R
(P (a) B (b))
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy
(Zhongjiang) Limited™ (note (b))

KA E IR (F)T) BERA A (FE )

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy
(Zhongxiang) Limited* (notes (a) and (o))

KRB BT () BRAR"
(Fif5E (@) B2 (b))
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Place of incorporation
and business

to the Company

ARFEEESED

Direct Indirect
B k23
PRC RMB183,340,000 = 100%
B AR #183,340,0007C
PRC RMB199,120,000 = 100%
I AR #199,120,0007T
PRC RMB279,000,000 = 100%
2l AR #279,000,0007C
PRC RMB97,560,000 = 100%
hEH AR #97,560,0007C
PRC RMB275,350,000 = 100%
2l AR #275,350,0007C
PRC RMB154,665,000 = 100%
I AR #154,665,0007C
PRC RMB128,333,000 = 100%
B AR #128,333,0007C
PRC RMB159,750,000 = 100%
thE AR #159,750,0007C

42. F EBHTE QA

Particulars of issued Percentage of equity attributable

A

5 (&)

Principal activities

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rit B BEREFENERK
BE—BEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rat o BE - BERBEEME RIR
HE—BEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Ret B EERERENERK
BE—BEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rat o BE - BERBEEME RIIR
HE—BEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Ret B EBERERENERE
BE—BEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rat o BE - BERBEEME RIR
HE—BEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rit B BEREFENERK
BE—BEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rat o BE - BERBEEME RIR
HE—BLEE
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company

NGIE

Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan) Company
Limited*" (note (b))

KRR (B 1) FR AR (M (b))

Everbright Biomass Cogeneration (Liuan) Company

Limited*" (note (b))

HRENRE (KNR) BRAF" (K b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Dingyuan) Limited**
(note (b))

KREMEER GER) BRAR (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Huaiyuan) Limited*
(note (a) and (b))

FREMER (B3R) BR AR (M@ X (b)

Everbright Biomass Energy (Lianshui) Limited*
(note (b))
KR EDER C-K) BR A R (B (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Lingbi) Limited*
(note (b))

HREMER (BE)BRAR (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Liuan) Company
Limited** (note (b))

RREWER (RR) BR AR (b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Rugao) Company
Limited**

RAREMEER (NR) BB AR

Place of incorporation
and business

PRC

PRC

PRC

e

PRC

PRC

PRC

e

PRC

PRC

FE

Particulars of issued Percentage of equity attributable

and paid-up capital

HK$125,800,000

7% #125,800,0007T

RMB179,360,000

AR #179,360,0007T

RMB106,670,000

AR #106,670,0007C

HK$310,288,000

7% #:310,288,0007T

RMB226,540,000

AR #5226,540,0007T

RMB106,667,000

AR #106,667,0007C

RMB113,570,000

AR #113,570,0007C

RMB142,667,000

AR #142,667,0007C

42, FEB AR

to the Company

AREEERED T
Direct Indirect

B &

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

5 (&

Principal activities

TREB

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity
and heat cogeneration project

Rit Bl BERBEENEATY
#IEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity
and heat cogeneration project

Rit Bl BERBEENEATY
#®IEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation
project

Rat o BE BEREEENMEERE
BEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rit - B BERBEENME RIR
HE—BLEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity
and heat cogeneration project

Rit Bl BERBEENEATY
#®IEE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation
project

Rat o BE BEREEENMEERE
BEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity
and heat cogeneration project

Rat o BE - BEREEENEAEY
#IER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity
and heat cogeneration project

Rat o BE - BEREEENEAEY
#IER



42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company

Everbright Biomass Energy (Shayang) Limited*
(note (b))

KREMRER D) BRD R (7 (0)

Everbright Biomass Energy (Sugian) Limited*
(note (b))

RREMRER (BB HRD R (o)

Everbright Biomass Energy (Weihai) Limited*
(note (b))

RREMEER (BUE) BR DR (7 (0)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Dangshan)
Limited* (note (a))

RRBRER (BIL) HRD R (@)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Lingbi) Company
Limited*" (note (a))

RARRERER (BE) AR AR (@)

Everbright Environmental Protection (Lianyungang)
Waste Disposal Company Limited*

ARER(BEE) EENBREERAR"

Everbright Solid Waste Landfill (Xinyi) Holdings
Limited* (note (c))

KRB BIRIRE R EYEE () BRAFR"
(Rt (o)

Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Changzhou)
Limited**

RRRKEER (FM) BRAR”

Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Sugian) Limited*

RRKREER (BB ERAR"

Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Zhenjiang) Limited*

HRAREER (FT)ERAR

287

Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % #& & Kt &

Place of incorporation
and business

to the Company

ARFEEESED

Direct Indirect
B Rl
PRC RMB127,337,000 - 100%
B AR #127,337,0007C
PRC RMB75,600,000 = 100%
B AR #75,600,0007C
PRC HK$127,337,000 = 100%
B #1127,337,0007T
PRC RMB83,340,000 = 100%
B AR #83,340,0007T
PRC RMB83,330,000 - 100%
hEH AR #83,330,0007C
PRC USD28,143,900 = 100%
B 28,143,900 7T
PRC RMB93,670,000 - 100%
thE AR #93,670,0007T
PRC RMB32,500,000 - 100%
B AR #32,500,0007C
PRC RMBB80,740,000 - 100%
B AR #80,740,0007T
PRC RMB122,090,000 - 100%
B AR #122,000,0007T

42. F EBHTE QA

A

5 (&)

Particulars of issued Percentage of equity attributable

Principal activities

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation
project

Rit B BERERENEERS
BEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass heat
supply project

Rit B BERERENERIR
B

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity
and heat cogeneration project

Rit B BERERENEREY
#5R

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of waste-to-energy
project

Rt s BERARARETAER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of waste-to-energy
project

AT B EERBENIRBEEEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste
incineration project

Bt BERAEERNARR

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste
landfill project

Rat B BERBEEBEELIER

Design, construction and operation of
solar energy project

Bit - REREERREEER

Design, construction and operation of
solar energy project

Bit - REREERREEER

Design, construction and operation of
solar energy project

Bit - REREERREEER
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Name of company

Place of incorporation
and business

NGIE

42. EBUBA TR

to the Company

Particulars of issued Percentage of equity attributable
and paid-up capital
g R

Principal activities

REEERBDT

Everbright Urban and Rural Renewable Energy PRC RMB208,780,000 -
(Sheqj) Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
KRB B LR L) BR A A HE AR #208,780,0007T
(Pt 5 (a) K (b))
Everbright Urban and Rural Renewable Energy PRC RMB186,670,000 -
(Xiayi) Limited* (notes (a) and (b))
ARBBBELR(ER)BRAF" Gl AR #6186,670,0007C
(Ff&E(a) B (b))
Everbright Wind Power (Ningwu) Company PRC RMB258,360,000 -
Limited**
ARAE(ER)BRAA" Gl AR #258,360,0007C
Everbright Solarpark Schonewalde Ldt. & Co. KG Germany €1,000 -
Everbright Solarpark Schénewalde Ldt. & Co. KG ZE 1,00080 7

Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment
enterprises

Registered under the laws of the PRC as Sino-foreign co-
operation joint ventures

For identification purpose only

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the Grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain waste-to-energy
projects and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy
projects in the PRC for a period not less than 30 years. The
Grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. During the
operating period, the Group will be responsible for
maintaining the waste-to-energy projects and integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects in good condition.

Indirect

&

100% Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rat o BE - BEREEEME KRR
BE—RBEA

100% Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy
project

Rit - B BERBEENME RIR
HE—BLEE

100% Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of wind power
project

AT e EERBEREEA

100% Design, construction and operation of
solar energy project

Rt BEREENAKRBFEER

RIEPBUERZMAIEDRZE

REPBOERZMATIIAEDRE

EXE5]

REEZEM B R BER T AR RS
AReRLY RERBEIFLEER
BE o REBEEEN G ERE  EE R
ENREEAR MAEYE R R EE 8
LEE  BHEALIR=1TF - BTFTAR
o AREE S E A B HFREURE
MR- REEHA - AEEBA B H R
REEIHE REWE PR EE LA
BER R



42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the Grantors and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy projects and integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects is recognised as
“Service concession assets”, which are included in “Contract
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the Grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain biomass direct
combustion power generation projects, biomass heat supply
project, biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects
and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects in the
PRC for a period not less than 30 years. The service fees
are based on the extent of services rendered and are
subject to the approvals from the relevant local government
authorities. During the operating period, the Group will be
responsible for maintaining the biomass direct combustion
power generation projects, biomass heat supply projects,
biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects and
integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects in good
condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the Grantors and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the biomass direct combustion power
generation projects, biomass heat supply projects, biomass
electricity and heat cogeneration projects and integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects are recognised as
“Intangible assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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42, FEMB ARG

GEE

(@)

(#)
()

MEBHFEERLTHFLEBSENER
%°%%A&$Elﬁﬁ%M%%ﬁﬁE
EREBRZER T LG -

BRI EEIRE RAEME MR EE
—88{bIA B IR A EE IR A B A e
RBRIRBEFEEEEE]  BEGEY
BHRRKRPEIAATENEE]

$EI§%W§ A B T AR BRTE B
TREER Y- @#%%%H%%E?
ﬁ $$I%W%F¢ILL W%
%Emgﬁmﬁ HAE - E%EWQE
B AWERAEHHUIEE REYE kiR
ZE—RIAR  RATIR=1F - R
BEROREZRBME  XASEEE
mﬁﬁ%%m&@ﬁﬂﬁh°m@A%

CAEERAEAREDEENEER
E EMEHRRIER  EYEAEHHIAR
BREMERARERE-BILABENR
SRR -

REFIACERLFLEBSENRE
B o BT ARKEBEIGE R GRE
BRERZBER TR

EYEEMEEERE  EMEHAIER
EMEAECHERE RAEME RREE
—RLIR B ZEERAERESMIBERRERF
ERRIELEE] -
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42.

43.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the Grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain hazardous waste
landfill projects and hazardous waste incineration projects in
the PRC for a period of 20 to 30 years. The Group has the
obligation to maintain the hazardous waste landfill projects
and hazardous waste incineration projects in good condition.
The service fees are based on the extent of services
rendered and are subject to the approvals from the relevant
local government authorities. Upon expiry of the concession
periods, the hazardous waste landfill projects and hazardous
waste incineration projects and related facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the Grantors and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the hazardous waste landfill projects and
hazardous waste incineration projects are recognised as
“Intangible assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2023.

42.

43.

FTEMBRARIFFSE (&)

MR ()

© ARBEZEWBARERERT AR
ALY RERBEFLERER
B AREERERPEREE  EE i
EEBEREEEREENKEERR  RH
“HEZFF - ARBEREAERBEER
IBIRE REBEREIEB RN RIFIRT - iR
BEROREZREME  XAGEAHE
WAL ER T AIEE - FFiRTRE
HEmR - EEREER REEEREE
AR RGBSR EE BRI ERERE -

REFACERLFTEBSENRE
B o BT ARAKEEIG AR R GRRE
BRERZERTHIEHE
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Financial Summary
MR

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—g-= ZE-F ZEZTF  —ENF  ZEFN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T BET T BET T
Assets and liabilities BEERER
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R
and interests in leasehold land IRFIEERZ
held for own use TRE s 5,044,489 5,367,020 3,848,120 2,630,584 2,502,054
Right-of-use assets EREEE 619,354 700,217 648,609 416,646 —
Goodwill S 134,207 162,638 157,609 149,079 —
Intangible assets B EE 13,355,885 14,365,263 13,311,103 10,781,335 7,486,422
Interest in associates B 2N B RS 239,883 254,413 165,415 76,621 56,216
Interest in joint ventures e 33,424 24,761 44,632 61,177 57,446
Contract assets AHEE 6,698,920 6,900,257 6,310,283 3,962,637 2,852,061
Other receivables, deposits and HihEUWHIE - Re Rk
prepayments B RE 506,297 781,099 816,945 602,982 425,957
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 80,855 82,450 64,467 29,396 34,797
Net current assets MENVEEFHE 3,381,290 3,246,504 3,561,948 2,471,322 1,832,332
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 16,560,319 17,739,255 16,062,290 10,594,427 5,816,211
Net assets BEFE 13,534,285 14,145,367 12,866,841 10,587,352 9,431,074
Share capital P A 1,608,029 1,608,029 1,608,029 1,608,029 1,608,029
Reserves h 10,776,766 12,153,166 10,916,253 8,738,190 7,730,823
Total equity attributable to equity 7N &) 4E %5 B 3R FE 15
shareholders of the Company ERER 12,384,795 13,761,195 12,524,282 10,346,219 9,338,852
Perpetual medium-term notes KERRER 806,982 — — — —
Non-controlling interests ESuli g 2 342,508 384,172 342,559 241,133 92,222
Total equity B 13,534,285 14,145,367 12,866,841 10,687,352 0,431,074
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Financial Summary Bt =

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t—RHILEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-= —T-—4% ZE-TFE —T-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T BET T BET T

Results EF
Revenue Il 8,048,171 8,446,999 9,835,376 9,279,555 7,001,820
Profit from operations R 1,269,678 2,114,772 2,489,215 2,476,468 1,870,961
Finance costs b2 (740,997) (741,858) (543,564) (376,891) (202,384)
Share of profit/(loss) Fisaat®

of joint ventures a7,/ (E518) (18,523) (24,312) (19,464) 9,890 (158)
Profit before taxation BB AT &R 510,158 1,348,602 1,926,187 2,109,467 1,668,419
Income tax FTi8# (165,158) (228,571) (412,879) (462,362) (337,068)
Profit for the year FREF 345,000 1,120,031 1,513,308 1,647,105 1,331,351
Attributable to: I
Equity shareholders of the ARTERRR

Company 340,201 1,110,385 1,502,532 1,621,477 1,324,871
Holders of perpetual medium-term k& HZEHAE A

notes 15,952 = = = =
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR M o (11,153) 9,646 10,776 25,628 6,480
Profit for the year ERRF 345,000 1,120,031 1,513,308 1,647,105 1,331,351

Basic and diluted earnings per BRERRESEF
share (HK cents) (F&L) 16.47 53.74 72.72 78.48 64.12
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